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1 BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and 1 CHMN. KATZ: Good morning, everybody. | think
2 numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the 2 everybody has their morning cups of coffeefilled, so |
3 Arizona power Plant and Transmission Line Siting 3 think were ready to get dtarted. Thisisthe third day
4 committee at the Glendale Civic Center, 5750 west Glenn 4 of our hearing in the West Valley Central 230kV
5 bprive, Glendale, Arizona, commencing at 9:08 a.m. on the 5 Connection Project.
6 2nd day of march, 2022. 6 And we now have approximate -- it's almost ten
7 7 minutes after 9, and we'll get started.
8 BEFORE: PAUL A. KATZ, Chairman 8 Counsel, we are now, | think, getting to the
o SERESEISLILGIILIY | o vedadaimmadiee
11 ARy Ay, incorporated Cities and Towns 11 morning. Members of the Gommities ¢ -'
Cvia videoconfarende) g. Members of the Com_m|ttee, good morni ng.
12 KARL GENTLES, General Public 12 CHMN. KATZ: Hold on just asecond. | notice
13 MARGARET, Lrosv: (LITTLES PE, General public 13 that Member Little and Member Grinnell always have their
14 14 camerason. But | would ask you if you have your camera
15 APPEARANCES: 15 on that your video is on so that we make sure we have a
16 For the Applicant: 16 quorum. But | would appreciateit if you are
A et 17 participdingvirually.
18 éggtga%o\éan Buren Street 18 '!'hat being said, Mr. Derstine, please fedl free
19 Phoenix, Arizona 85004 19 to begln.
20 and 20 MR. DERSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
21 PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION 21 MR. DERSTINE: We left off yesterday.
22 ggéiéi:gﬁt‘EEE?ZE‘ﬁgzl atory 22 Mr. Simpson took us through 90 percent or 95 percent of
23 Phoenix, Arizona 85004 23 the environmental studies that were performed --
24 24 CHMN. KATZ: Let mejust interrupt you for just
25 25 asecond. I'm getting a double sound. It's delayed, so
Page 332 Page 334
1 APPEARANCES: (Cont.) 1 I'm hearing an echo.
2 For City of peoria: 2 (Off the record for technical issue.)
3 Mr. Saman GoTestan ' L ToRNE! 3 CHMN. KATZ: Okay.
4 Assistant City Attorney
8401 west Monroe Street 4
S Room 280, rizona 85345 5  DAVIDWILEY, KEVIN DUNCAN, RANDALL SIMPSON,
6 6 AND KRISTIN DARR,
7 7 called as witnesses as a panel on behalf of Applicant,
8 8 having been previously sworn by the Chairman to speak the
9 9 truth and nothing but the truth, were examined and
10 10 testified asfollows:
11 11
12 12 DIRECT EXAMINATION (Cont.)
13 13 BY MR. DERSTINE:
14 14 Q. We covered the bulk of your environmental
15 15 analysis, but one of the topics that any applicant
16 16 seeking a CEC from this Committeeis required to study
17 17 and present to the Committee is noise impacts,
18 18 anticipated noise of the project.
19 19 Mr. Wiley, you're going to cover the noise
20 20 studiesthat was performed for the West Valley Centra
21 21 Project.
22 22 A. (Mr.Wiley) Certainly. APS performed noise
23 23 impact analysis under various weather conditions,
24 24 including light rain conditions and fair weather
25 25 conditions.
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1 If you take alook at the right-hand screen, 1 operations and engineering side. And all that blended
2 you'll seetwo different plots. Thetop plot here 2 together to come up with these proposed routes that we
3 representsfair weather conditions. Inthe worst case, 3 have deemed environmentally compatible.
4 it would be about 13 decibels of audible noise in fair 4 A couplethings I'd like to point out is that
5 weather conditions. The bottom plot shows noiseimpacts | 5 because the linesare primarily located in industrial
6 under light rain conditions. Under light rain 6 areasor areasthat we anticipate will be industrial in
7 conditions, we can expect up to 25 decibels of audible 7 thefuture, they do conform to the applicable general and
8 noise. 8 comprehensive plans that each of the jurisdictions have
9 If you take alook at the temperature gauge, if 9 that wecross. And, you know, that was an important
10 youwill, on the right-hand side, it gives you some 10 early consideration when we first started gathering data.
11 insight into what level that would be. And 40 decibels 11 And asthe route processing was done, it became evident
12 would be a soft whisper from 5 feet away. And, again, 12 that that was the best location for this project.
13 theworst-case scenario of light rain, you would be about |13 We are located adjacent to 5 1/2 miles of
14 25 decibels. 14 existing transmission lines, so about half the project
15 Q. Thenoiseasyou've modeled it here, the noise 15 area. We have 8 miles of roadway that we're paralleling,
16 that would be generated by the segments of the project, 16 which has a high degree of compatibility, oftentimes
17 isit comparable, the same as, what we would anticipate |17 sharing common rights-of-way. We have 1 mile of
18 from other 230kV lines on APS's system? 18 railroad, and we have four substations which exist and
19 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, itis. Itiscomparablewith 19 onethat will be build in relation to this project, that
20 other 230kV lines. Theselinesarelocated in 20 beingthe TS-2 Substation.
21 industria, residential, and agricultura areas and, as 21 Overall, our conclusion is that we don't have
22 you heard on the site tour yesterday, the operations of 22 any adverse impactsto existing and planned land uses,
23 LukeAir Force. Sowedo feel that therewill be minimal |23  recreation resources, visual resources, cultural
24  noise impacts due to this project. 24 resources, and biological resources.
25 Q. Anything else you want to add on noise impacts 25 There are impacts out there. We've disclosed
Page 336 Page 338
1 or anticipated noise impacts? 1 thoseinour findings. It'svery difficult to construct
2 A. (Mr.Wiley) No. 2 one of these projects without having some sort of impact;
3 Q. So, Mr. Simpson, that takes us back to you to 3 but considering the whole environment of this area, these
4 kind of wrap thisall up for the Committee in terms of 4 routes minimize the impacts and don't have any
5 theenvironmenta analysis, your analysis and your 5 substantial impacts that would be considered as, you
6 opinionsregarding the impact of the project. 6 know, arestriction for developing this type of project.
7 And | guess, ultimately, isit compatible? Is 7 Again, the design standards that APS employs on
8 it environmentally compatible, to use the term that's 8 these projects as well as selective mitigation measures
9 applied to these projects and that the Committee takes 9 areintended to further reduce any impacts. They do
10 into consideration? 10 include anumber of things, for example, using dull
11 A. (Mr. Simpson) Thank you. 11 metal-finish towers, spanning of certain sensitive
12 Yes. Everything we've discussed during the 12 featuresthat may bein agiven area. Nonspecular
13 hearingsand evenin thefield yesterday isincluded in 13 conductors. A lot of that iskind of part of their
14 our application and exhibits. There'safair amount of 14 standard design nowadays with these mines. And that
15 detail inthose studies. All of our methodologies, al 15 helpsto reduce some of the impacts.
16 of the results of our impact assessment isincluded in 16 Other areas, you know, they may take specific
17 thereaswell as conclusionsfor each of the different 17 actionsto reduce impacts. We've heard some about the
18 environmenta disciplines. 18 potentia for undergrounding. That would be a specific
19 So we fedl pretty confident in our findings 19 mitigation measure that they could includeif that isthe
20 here. Thiswasalong process, and we had alot of good |20 decision the Committee makes to reduce impacts.
21 engagement with the public and the agencies. So the 21 And, again, | mentioned this yesterday, we have
22 conclusions that we're making are based on thetechnical |22 seven letters of support from various entities, Luke Air
23 studies we've completed, the field work we've done, and |23  Force Base being an important part of that. It included
24  the participation we've had from the public and agencies. |24 letters from the agencies that are responsible for
25 Anditasoincluded alot of analysisfrom APS on the 25 administering plans and approvalsin this area.

Coash & Coash, Inc.

(3) Pages 335 - 338

602-258-1440 www.coashandcoash.com





Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central
Docket No. L-00000D-22-0030-00198 - L SC Case No. 198

Evidentiary Hearing - Volumel 1|

Page 339 Page 341
1 And then a couple of key land developers that we 1 milefrom theling, it takes you approximately halfway up
2 worked very closely with who own alarge portion of the | 2 thesubdivision. And | estimated there to be about 290
3 open space or the developable land in the area. So we 3 homesinthat area. So give or take 300 would be a
4 had alot of discussions with landowners. And attheend | 4 reasonable reference for that.
5 of those discussions, we got alot of support from them. 5 For the north side of the Suncliff Subdivision,
6 Andwe have an understanding of how their designs are 6 whichislocated between Olive and Northern, | estimated
7 going to go forward, and they have expressed pretty 7 thereto be approximately 400.
8 explicitly where they would like the location of the 8 At the south end of the Agua Fria -- or, excuse
9 linestobe. And | think that's going to help APS when 9 me-- Suncliff Subdivision along the Agua Fria River, it
10 they move into their right-of-way acquisition phaseand |10 narrows here. Thiswas one of our stops yesterday. |
11 alsotheir design phase. It should really do alot to 11 estimated there to be about 145 homes in that area within
12 help move that process along. 12 ahalf mileof route.
13 So, overal, in conclusion, | want to emphasize 13 And then in the Dysart Ranchettes area along
14 thetotal process taking many months, and | think wehad |14 Peoria, | estimated to be approximately 125, which would
15 alot of support from the community. And we have the 15 beupinthisvicinity right here. So ahalf mile north
16 best routes given the over 50 miles of route alternatives |16 of Peoria Avenue.
17 that we studied. 17 And then we have some of those more isolated
18 MR. DERSTINE: Member Grinnell, | think | saw |18 rural residences we pointed out in the field tour, afew
19 you on the screen, but was there a question you had? 19 of which exist along Olive Avenue. There's approximately
20 MEMBER GRINNELL: No. | wasjustgoingto--1 |20 teninthisarea. Thereareafew aong Litchfield Road,
21 was back to the previous slide that discussed -- one of 21 which are set inside the farming operations there. And
22 our conditionsis about radio waves and radio towers, 22 there are about three on the east side of the road and
23 television. | just wanted to make sure that that's all 23 thentwo that I'm aware of on the west side.
24  been addressed. 24 So, in total, approximately 975. So give or
25 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Mr. Simpson, can you speak to |25 take 1,000 would be a reasonable estimate within a half
Page 340 Page 342
1 that. Areyou aware of any potential for interference 1 mile
2 with radio towers or radio communication or cell towers 2 Maybe to further break that down to give some
3 within proximity to the new proposed transmission lines? | 3 perspective, if you were to half that distance, so a
4 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes. Thank you for the question. 4 quarter mile, you would probably expect 500 residences.
5 APS did evaluate those types of interference, 5 Atan eighth mile, which is about 660 feet, so two
6 and that isincluded in Exhibit I, and there were no 6 football field lengths, which is a pretty good distance,
7 expected interferences. 7 you could assume a quarter of that. So maybe 2- to 300
8 MEMBER GRINNELL: Thank you. 8 would be areasonable estimate for that.
9 MR. DERSTINE: Thank you for raising that, 9 And so | think the question is why don't we get
10 Member Grinnell. 10 more participation. And | actualy feel like when |
11 MR. SIMPSON: This question was asked yesterday, |11 comparethisto alot of projects I've worked on, we had
12 and maybethisisagood placetointroducethat. There |12 fairly good participation. It's not uncommon to have
13 wasaquestion about the proximity of the residences 13 fairly large study areas and alot of population. If you
14 within ahalf mile of theroutes. And | did do some 14 get two or three hundred comments, it's probably a pretty
15 tabulations to identify the number of residencesthat are |15 good process, pretty good results. Sometimes we work on
16 in proximity to the route just for perspective. These 16 projects where we get very little input, and sometimes
17 aren't precise counts. | wasn't ableto go out in the 17 yougetalot.
18 field to verify them, but | used some pretty reliable 18 But compared to some projects in the West
19 aeria imagery and feel like these numbers are fairly 19 Valley, | think we got avery similar level of
20 accurate or at least representative of the number of 20 participation. And | think, as Ms. Darr said, the people
21 homes near the lines. 21 that arein close proximity to the routes are probably
22 The Agua Fria Ranch community, whichisnorth of |22 the most likely to participate, and | think that's what
23 Peoria, thislong stretch -- or, excuse me -- north of 23 we're seeing to some degree here.
24 Olive Avenuein Youngtown is one of the communities |24 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: And | guessto close the point
25 that'sadjacent to theline. Andif you look at a half 25 onthe number of residences, whether they were a half
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1 mileaway or 660 feet away, they were within our study 1 onthe specific location of that structure. However, APS
2 area, notification area, and received newsletters and had 2 will adhereto Luke's requirement of being at 1,235 feet
3 anopportunity to provide comment? 3 withintheir APZ.
4 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yeah. Our notification would 4 Q. Okay. Sotherequestinterms of heightsthat |
5 have been at |east a mile outside of any proposed 5 think Mr. Duncan covered for the structures, we're happy
6 alternative, so quite a broad area. 6 toinclude and abide by L uke's request and include a
7 Q. Allright. Mr. Wiley, | need to circle back 7 condition in the CEC that ensures that we don't exceed
8 with you on oneitem, and that is APS Exhibit 20, which 8 that height limitation on Route A, which is the specific
9 istheletter from Mr. Abinah, the Utilities Division 9 focus of Luke's comment, right?
10 director. Asaways, the Chairman solicitsinput from 10 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes.
11 Commission Staff. Inthis case, it's aletter dated 11 Q. Allright. Mr. Simpson gave us the conclusions,
12 February 23, 2021. Do you havethat letter in front of 12 the environmental conclusions, and kind of wrapped up all
13 you? 13 theissuesthat comeinto play when we're developing a
14 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, | do. 14 project like this from an environmental perspective.
15 Q. Under the -- on the second page under 15 | wanted to circle back with the members of the
16 Conclusions and Recommendations, it states:. Basedon |16 panel and seeif you had any final comments. Maybe welll
17 Staff'sreview of the Application, aswell asthe 17 start with you, Mr. Wiley, since you started us off back
18 Applicant's response to Staff'sissued data request, 18 on Monday with a discussion of the purpose and need for
19 Staff believesthe reliability and safety of the grid 19 theproject.
20 would be maintained within the proposed 230kV 20 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes. | believe that the three
21 transmission lines. 21 separate linesthat we're requesting do meet the needs of
22 Did | read that correctly. 22 our customer, and they will serve the ultimate load of
23 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, youdid. 23 245 megawatts.
24 Q. Theconclusionsgo on to state that Staff 24 Additionally, this allows them to meet their
25 recommends inclusion, as a condition of the CEC, the 25 reliability requirements without needing backup diesel
Page 344 Page 346
1 standard cathodic study condition to evaluate the risk of 1 generation and along with that, the emissions and the
2 any existing natural gas or hazardous liquid pipelines. 2 noiseimpact that that would bring.
3 Isthat condition contained in APS's proposed 3 Lastly, it allows usto continue to allow for
4 form of CEC? 4 economic development within the project area.
5 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes,itis. 5 Q. Theresahbullet therethat says Regulatory
6 CHMN. KATZ: And | would comment we would 6 Reguirements. | think that refers to the topics that you
7 include it whether or not you had already done so, but | 7 and| just covered in terms of Staff's requestsin terms
8 appreciate that you've done that. 8 of proposed conditions for the CEC; isthat right?
9 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Andthenthelast pointraised | 9 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, that's correct.
10 in APS-20, Staff's recommendations, Staff further 10 Q. Beforel gettoyou, Ms. Darr, let me turn back
11 recommends inclusion, as a condition to this CEC, the 11 to Mr. Duncan. If you have anything you'd like to --
12 requirement for the Applicant to lower the affected 12 fina wordsyou would like to say to the Committee
13 transmission structures on Route A to at or below 1,235 |13 concerning the project and aspects of the project for
14 Mean Sealevel asrequested by Luke Air Force Base. 14 which you were responsible. And I've got some funny
15 And | think what they're referring to thereis 15 feedback on my mic at the moment.
16 to Luke'sletter, whichisAPS-15, Luke Air ForceBase |16 A. (Mr. Duncan) Thank you, Mr. Derstine.
17 letter dated January 21, 2022. 17 So | just want to thank my fellow panelists here
18 How do we trandate 1,235 mean sealevel asa 18 for the thorough and accurate story that they've told
19 height restriction into structures? As| understand it, 19 about this project and just want to conclude by
20 APSisreguesting authorization to build structures that 20 emphasizing that this project meets APS's requirements to
21 will support the segments, the line segments of this 21 fulfill our customer request. And thisprojectis
22 project, that will range up to 195 feet. 22 designed not only to fulfill that purpose and need but to
23 Isthat at or below the 1,235 mean sealevel 23 meetitinaway that minimizes the impacts while still
24 height? 24 meeting that purpose and need.
25 A. (Mr.Wiley) | believethat could vary depending 25 As Mr. Simpson stated, it does not eliminate
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Page 347 Page 349
1 impacts. Projectsof this nature have impacts. But we 1 decisions about the project.
2 havediligently worked to identify a project route and 2 Why don't you give us your wrap-up and any final
3 segmentsthat are compatible. Compatible with the nature | 3 words you'd like to present to the Committee on the
4 of the study area. Compatible. They're not zero impact. 4 outreach and public engagement campaign.
5 They do have impacts, but they are compatible, and they 5 A. (Ms. Dar) Thank you, Mr. Derstine.
6 minimize those impacts. 6 Chairman Katz and Members of the Committee, |
7 We have done adiligent and thorough public 7 appreciate this very much, being my life's work, public
8 outreach process to inform the public and gain support 8 and stakeholder involvement and engagement. | appreciate
9 when available but also identify thoseissuesand workto | 9 theimportance that you place on stakeholder and public
10 addressthoseissues and have done so as best we can 10 involvement.
11 while still meeting the objectives that we haveto 11 It is never appropriate to apply a cookie-cutter
12 fulfill our purpose and need for our customers. 12 approach to stakeholder and public involvement. And we
13 AsMr. Simpson testified, we went through avery |13  had some unique challenges, as on al projects, but we
14 thorough siting study. And through regular and routine |14 had some is unique challenges on this project, one being
15 processes that this Committee has seen before and 15 the COVID-19 pandemic and another being the complexity
16 approved projects through, we followed this process to 16 and rapid development of the study area. Anditis
17 identify areasonable set of alternatives that were 17 aways a challenge to engage the public in infrastructure
18 feasible and constructable, provided opportunity for our |18 projects. Itisnever easy to get alot of response.
19 stakeholdersto hear about those and provideinput. And |19 But we did develop a deliberate strategy and had a robust
20 we have designed, again, a project that best fits all 20 attempt to reaching out to the public in this area.
21 those. 21 Just to recap, we began by interacting with the
22 And as Mr. Simpson has stated, the fact that we 22 various affected jurisdictions in the study area, and we
23 have widespread support from multiplejurisdictionsina |23 interacted with them throughout the process as the
24 very complex areaisatestament to the thoroughnessof |24  process unfolded.
25 our public outreach, the thoroughness of our stakeholder |25 We mailed newsletters three times during the
Page 348 Page 350
1 outreach, aswell asthe fact that we have identified a 1 project to approximately 38,000 residents and businesses
2 project that does not conflict with the interests of 2 inthisarea
3 these multiple jurisdictions and the objectives that each 3 We had awebsite that provided information and
4  of those agencies have. 4 opportunity to comment that was live throughout this
5 Seven letters from multiple jurisdictions 5 processand istill live today.
6 supporting our process or even supporting the proposed 6 We held live virtual meetings so that we could
7 routeisatremendous achievement on a project of this 7 havedirect | want to say face-to-face interaction. It
8 nature and should not be discounted in terms of what that | 8 wasn't in person, but we still could see faces.
9 meansfor your consideration. 9 Also some other direct interaction was achieved
10 Again, this project islocated in compatible 10 through the telephone hotline. | had the opportunity to
11 spaces, meets the project purpose and need, is 11 speak with several residents and property ownersin the
12 environmentally compatible, and meetsthe objectivesof |12 areaand explain the project and answer their questions.
13 thefactorsthat we are asked to consider for any project |13 We also reached out -- APS reached out via
14 that we bring forward in front of this Committee. 14 social mediaand did that by paid advertisements, which
15 So thank you for your consideration on our 15 isdifferent than organic posts because they are targeted
16 project. 16 to specific areas.
17 Q. Ms. Dar, | know that you know, now having been |17 And APS also sent emails to customersin the
18 before this Committee, that the Committee takes very 18 study area. Soif someone didn't read their mail, maybe
19 seriously the need for public outreach and how important |19 they read their email.
20 that isto engage the public and getting their feedback 20 Finally, we had an email address where people
21 andinput asbest we can. | mean, we can't forcepeople |21 were ableto email us. It was me that answered those
22 toopen their mailbox and read what'sin there, but wedo |22 emails. And so we were able to have interaction that
23 our best, through avariety of channels, to communicate |23 way.
24 with them about our project and ask them to giveusinput |24 I'm very pleased to have the opportunity to work
25 and feedback that we can then use that informs our 25 onthe project and very pleased to have had this
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1 opportunity to participate in these hearings. So | thank 1 APS-20 isthe letter dated February 23, 2022,
2 you, and that's all. 2 from Commission Staff that Mr. Wiley spoke to just a
3 Q. Thankyou. 3 moment ago.
4 MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman, that concludesour | 4 APS-21 isaphoto of theriser structure that
5 case. I'mready to make our witnesses available for 5 will be utilized if -- as agreed to with the City of
6 cross. | can move our exhibits at thistime, or | can 6 Peoria, APSsinvestigation of the possibility of
7 wait till the completion of the cross. Whatever your 7 undergrounding along the segment of Route G that borders
8 pleasureis. 8 onthe City of Peoria. If that segment can be
9 CHMN. KATZ: If you wanted to offer the exhibits | 9 undergrounded, we would need to utilize ariser
10 that are marked as APS exhibits, you may do so. 10 structure. So APS-21 supplements the structures that are
11 MR. DERSTINE: All right. 1 would movethe 11 presented in Exhibit G to the application. And our
12 admission of thefollowing: APS-1, which isthe 12 intent would be that that photograph would serve as an
13 application for Certificate of Environmental 13 example of the type of structure that we request the
14 Compatibility. Mr. Duncan spoke to that. 14 Committee to approve as an alternative to the overhead
15 APS Exhibits 2, 3, 4, and 5 are the witness 15 construction along Route G if we're able to do that
16 background dlides that were used and/or part of APS-6. 16 safely and reliably.
17 And APS-6 is marked as the entire slide deck, 17 22 isthe letter from the Game and Fish
18 the PowerPoint slides that were presented herein the 18 Department that Mr. Simpson spoke to.
19 hearing room on the left and the right screen and were 19 APS-23 isthe |etter from the State Historic
20 presented by Zoom to the Members of the Committeewho are |20  Preservation Office that Mr. Simpson testified to.
21 appearing virtualy and to member of the public. The 21 So | would move those exhibits. 1t would be
22 witnesses have testified to those slides and testified to 22 APS-1through 6, 8 through 23 for admission.
23 theaccuracy of the information contained in those dides |23 APS-24 isthe form of the CEC. | know,
24 and maps. 24 Mr. Chairman, you'll be having your own form of CEC that
25 APS-8 -- I'll skip APS-7 for the moment. 25 well screen. But | guess | would move the admission of
Page 352 Page 354
1 APS-8 isthe Affidavit of Publication. 1 24 andinclude that smply because the corridor map and
2 Mr. Duncan testified concerning the Notice of Hearing 2 the corridor description are contained in APS-24. And
3 that was published and the evidence of the publication 3 whatever form of CEC we ultimately utilize, | think
4 contained in APS-8. 4 APS-24 includes the map and the corridor description that
5 APS-9, the proof of the delivery of the 5 wewould ask that the Committee consider and approve as
6 application to the library locations as required by the 6 part of any CEC that's granted for the project. So 24
7 Chairman's Procedural Order. 7 would be included.
8 APS-10 isthe proof of the website posting. 8 | skipped APS-7 for the reason that that was an
9 That wastestified to by Mr. Duncan. 9 early draft of aproposed form of CEC, and it's been
10 APS-11 isthe proof of notice to the affected 10 replaced by 24.
11 jurisdictions. Again, Mr. Duncan covered that in his 11 So everything other than 7, APS-1 through 24.
12 testimony. 12 CHMN. KATZ: Arethere any objections?
13 APS-12 isthe proof of the posting of the signs 13 MR. GOLESTAN: Just some clarification. It's my
14 that we saw on the route tour but are also included with |14  understanding that APS-7 contains the changes that we
15 the map that'sincluded on APS-12. 15 discussed about undergrounding. Isit reflected anywhere
16 The APS-13 is the summary of public outreach 16 €ese?
17 that wastestified to extensively by Ms. Darr. APS-13is |17 MR. DERSTINE: It's also reflected in APS-24,
18 simply anarrative description or a summary of what's 18 the samelanguage.
19 contained in Exhibit Jto the application. 19 MR. GOLESTAN: The same portionisin 24?
20 APS Exhibits 14, 15, 16, 17, and 18 are the 20 MR. DERSTINE: Exactly the same language in
21 lettersof support that Mr. Duncan and Mr. Simpson just |21 terms of the form of CEC.
22 referred to that came as aresult of the engagement and 22 In includes -- what are the changes,
23 outreach with those agencies or entities. 23 Ms. Benally, if you can comment, between 7 to 247
24 APS-19 istheroute itinerary and the map that 24 MS. BENALLY': Good morning, Mr. Chairman and
25 wefollowed on our tour on Tuesday morning. 25 Committee.

Coash & Coash, Inc.

(7) Pages 351 - 354

602-258-1440 www.coashandcoash.com





Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central
Docket No. L-00000D-22-0030-00198 - L SC Case No. 198

Evidentiary Hearing - Volumel 1|

Page 355 Page 357
1 The changes that are in APS-24 as compared to 7 1 not agreed to.
2 isessentially the corridor map has moved to final form 2 MR. DERSTINE: Wedo. It's my understanding
3 for the Committee's consideration. So it excludesall 3 that APS has agreed to language that's suggested by the
4 thereferencesto "proposed,” "preferred," al of those 4 City through counsel. We've reviewed it, and this
5 typesof descriptives. Soit'sinfina form, if you 5 proposed condition language is acceptable. We can email
6 will, that could essentially be attached to the proposed 6 itto Tod now, and then it can be screened and considered
7 form of order that is voted on by the Committee today. 7 by the Committee when we get there.
8 MR. DERSTINE: So | guess, speaking to 8 CHMN. KATZ: That'sfine. And go ahead and
9 Mr. Golestan's question about the parties, APS and the 9 email it to Tod indicating that -- well, you don't need
10 City of Peoria, as an intervenor, have had ongoing 10 to. | aready texted him earlier that there may be an
11 discussions about resolving the City's concerns about 11 additional condition. Once that's added, I'll instruct
12 Route G. And so we had included, | believe, somedraft |12 whoever you want us to send the Word version and the PDF
13 language that we've been discussing. 13 version, to. You'll let Tod know where to send that.
14 But | don't know that that language has made its 14 I'll have Tod send that by email to the Committee Members
15 way into 24. Isthat correct, Ms. Benally? 15 sothose who are appearing virtually will haveit. Those
16 MS. BENALLY': The potential to underground a 16 who are herewill seeit up on the screen. But if you
17 segment of Route G, based on investigation that APSis |17 could get me ahard copy of the CEC once it's revised and
18 performing or will perform, isillustrated in the 18 Tod sendsit to you, | would appreciate it.
19 cal-out No. 12 in the corridor map. The narrative 19 MR. DERSTINE: Well doit.
20 description also, under Route G, does indicate or explain |20 CHMN. KATZ: We can go ahead with
21 that the potential underground corridor would extendup |21  cross-examination.
22 to 2,000 feet west of the existing El Sol-White Tanks 22
23 230kV corridor. Soit doesincludethat languageinthe |23 CROSS-EXAMINATION
24 event that that undergrounding option isavailableforus |24 BY MR. GOLESTAN:
25 to construct. 25 Q. Okay. Good morning. Let'ssee. Who shall |
Page 356 Page 358
1 MR. DERSTINE: And we can table APS-24. Again, | 1 start with.
2 it'stheform of -- 2 | think Ms. Darr.
3 CHMN. KATZ: WEell, at this juncture, Exhibits 1 3 A. (Ms Dar) Yes
4 through 6 have been offered into evidence. 7 has not 4 Q. Sinceyou finished, | guesswe'll start with
5 been. Exhibits 8 through 24 have been admitted. 5 you.
6 I will admit all of those except No. 24 at this 6 Okay. Onyour direct examination, you mentioned
7 time, and that can be offered at alater point in time. 7 that you had some comments -- you had comments in many
8 (Exhibits APS-1 through APS-6 and APS-8 through | 8 different forms that mentioned various routes or
9 APS-23 were admitted into evidence.) 9 mentioned Olive and Northern route. For the comments
10 CHMN. KATZ: The other thing | did before 10 that you receive online, do you confirm that those
11 cross-examination is| spoke with all three of the 11 comments come from within the study area?
12 attorneysearlier today. And Tod, with my help, has 12 A. (Ms. Darr) People-- some people provided their
13 redrafted the CEC with very minor changes but hasn't yet |13  address, and others did not.
14 sent it out to the parties because we werewaitingtosee |14 Q. Okay. Sowhen you have an address, are you able
15 whether or not we were going to add an additional 15 to confirm if that comment came from within the study
16 condition with agreed-upon language regarding the 16 area?
17 potentia or the investigation for potentially 17 A. (Ms. Darr) | would be able to do that, yes.
18 undergrounding the segment. 18 Q. Didyoudo thatin thiscase?
19 And if the parties have approved of that 19 A. (Ms. Darr) | have not gone through each of the
20 language, I'd like you to send that to Tod Brewer. Tod 20 comments and confirmed that they are from within the
21 will incorporate that into Chairman Exhibit No. 1and 2. |21 study area.
22 No. 1 will bein PDF format so it ispermanent. Andthe |22 Q. Andthenintheinstanceswhere you don't have
23 other version will bein Word. And we will wordsmith 23 an address, you're unable to confirm whether that person
24  things aswe go and offer any amendmentsand so forthas |24 iswithin the study area?
25 weproceed. But | don't know if we have that languageor |25 A. (Ms. Darr) Correct.
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1 Q. Youdiscussed alot of outreach in your direct 1 Q. Soyou'renot awareof any mailing difficulties?
2 examination. Y ou specifically mentioned theimportance | 2 A. (Ms. Darr) | wasn't made aware of any.
3 of outreach to Glendale and El Mirage, working withthem. | 3 Q. Andinanalyzing the number of your responses
4 And that in working with them, they were accommodated and | 4 overall that you've received, how would you compare the
5 change were made. Could you describe what sorts of 5 responses that you received to this application that
6 changeswere made to this proposal as aresult of the 6 happened during COVID to other projects that you've
7 collaboration with Glendale and El Mirage. 7 worked on before COVID? Did you ever see a substantial
8 A. (Ms Darr) I'dliketo go back to the first 8 difference in the number of responses?
9 question really quickly based another thought, and | will 9 A. (Ms. Dar) |didnot.
10 answer your question. 10 Q. Inanyformat?
11 Q. Thanks. 11 A. (Ms. Darr) | would say that we are receiving
12 A. (Ms. Dar) Some people didn't necessarily give 12 more responses nowadays on this and other projects than
13 anaddress, but they said, My houseisin this 13 wegeneraly would because of the availability of the
14 neighborhood, or things like that. So therewerewaysto |14 information online.
15 infer that acomment came from the study areaother than |15 Q. Okay. But you don't have any specific numbers
16 people providing an address. Not very many people 16 tosay it'smoreor lessor otherwise?
17 provided their actual, physical address, but there was 17 A. (Ms. Darr) | don't have any specific numbers,
18 some descriptive language. 18 but | have hundreds of projects of experience to base my
19 Q. Butthepointis, even with an address, you 19 statement on.
20 didn't go through and confirm them? 20 Q. Okay. | wantto move to talk about the
21 A. (Ms. Darr) No, | have not done that. 21 mailings, because you mentioned on direct examination
22 Q. And even with the descriptive address, you 22 that you didn't send them certified mail. Does that mean
23 didn't go through and confirm that somebody that says 23 they weren't tracked in any way with the U.S. mail?
24 they livein the Ranchettes -- Dysart Ranchettes, you 24 A. (Ms. Darr) I'mnot aware of any way to track
25 didn't go through and confirm that they lived in the 25 U.S. mall.
Page 360 Page 362
1 Ranchettes community, right? 1 Q. Andyoudidn't send it with a mechanism whereby
2 A. (Ms Dar) No,sir. 2 it could betracked? Let meask it that way.
3 Q. Going back to the outreach that you discussed on 3 A. (Ms. Dar) |didntsendit. APS'smail house
4 direct examination. You specifically mentioned Glendale | 4 sentit.
5 and El Mirage as being important to your outreach. So 5 Q. Okay. That'sagood answer to my question. But
6 I'dlike to know what sorts of changes that were made to 6 you're not aware that APS's mail house sent it with any
7 thisapplication essentially in response to the feedback 7 tracking mechanism? That's what you said in your direct
8 you received from Glendale and El Mirage. 8 examination. They were not sent certified.
9 A. (Ms Darr) Mr. Simpson would have to answer 9 A. (Ms. Dar) They were not sent certified to my
10 what sorts of changes would have been made. Butwhat| |10 knowledge.
11  wasreferring to was those entities providing information |11 Q. Okay. Andisthat abest practice? | mean, in
12 about land development. 12 thissort of thing, does that meet best practicesin your
13 Q. Okay. I'dliketo moveon to talk about COVID 13 industry, sending these U.S. mail, not tracked or
14 because | know you mentioned, obviously, doing this 14 certified?
15 outreach during COVID was aunique challenge, obviousdy |15 A. (Ms. Darr) That is standard practice. | have
16 unprecedented. | don't think anybody haslived througha |16 had instances on other projects where there'savery
17 pandemic. Nobody isover 100 yearsold, so nobody has |17 small areaand we need access to a person's property.
18 lived through a pandemic here. 18 Andif we can't get them to answer the door, if we knock
19 | just want to talk about staffing. Did you 19 onthedoor or something, that something would be sent
20 have any difficulties with staffing during this time. 20 certified mail. Very small numbers. In an area of
21 A. (Ms. Darr) No, | did not. 21 38,000 addresses, | have never experienced that size of
22 Q. Any difficultieswith mail or things of that 22 mailing being sent certified.
23 nature? 23 Q. Youaso taked about paid advertisements such
24 A. (Ms. Darr) | wouldn't be able to answer that 24 asones posted on social media, including Facebook. Do
25 because APS did the mailing in-house. 25 you remember that discussion?
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1 A. (Ms Darr) Yes. 1 Q. Andsincethe Federal Highway Administrationis
2 Q. Andyou mentioned Facebook uses geofencing to 2 involved, you're aware that there's federal funding
3 determine the boundaries of the targets of those ads. 3 involved in that project?
4 Right? 4 A. (Ms. Dar) Yes. That would make sense.
5 A. (Ms Darr) Yes. 5 Q. Andareyou aware of any terms and conditions
6 Q. Ifwelook at--if welook at APS-6, the 6 that that federal funding might come with?
7 project study area-- let me pull a page number for 7 A. (Ms. Dar) | guessyou would have to be more
8 you -- that included the geofencing. Do you remember 8 gpecific.
9 looking at that dlide? 9 Q. Wadll, doyou know any of the details about how
10 A. (Ms. Dar) Yes 10 that federal funding is allocated?
11 Q. Okay. That'sAPS-6. The physical page number 11 A. (Ms. Darr) Notinagreat amount of detail. M
12 onthatis93. Thedigita PDF page number is100. Let |12 position on that project wasto support the Maricopa
13 me know when you're looking at that sheet. 13 County Department of Transportation in outreach efforts.
14 A. (Ms. Dar) Okay. I'vegot it. 14 So at their direction, | did logistics related to public
15 Q. Okay. Sothisproject study area, again, APS-6, 15 meetings, prepared natifications, and was part of
16 page 93, PDF page 100, that showsthe overall study area, |16 stakeholder meetings on the project.
17 right? 17 Q. Okay. So no specific knowledge about the
18 A. (Ms. Dar) Yes. 18 details of the -- you know that there is federal funding.
19 Q. Andthenwithinthat study area, it shows three 19 Youdon't know the details of the federal funding?
20 circlesindicating the geofencing locations of the target 20 A. (Ms. Darr) | remember that federal highwayswas
21 ads? 21 part of the stakeholder group, which would make me infer
22 A. (Ms. Darr) Yes. 22 that there was federal funding on the project.
23 Q. Youwould agree with methat the three 23 Q. Okay. So beyond that, you wouldn't be aware,
24 geofencing circles within the study area are smaller than |24 likel said, of any sort of conditions, the details of
25 theentirety of the study area? 25 that funding, right?
Page 364 Page 366
1 A. (Ms Darr) Yes. 1 A. (Ms Darr) Not specific -- not overall. The
2 Q. Andyouwould agree with me that there are some 2 project wasafew yearsago. There would be people,
3 residences, for example, to the northeast of the yellow 3 subject matter experts, from the Maricopa County
4 circlethat are within the study area but outside of the 4 Department of Transportation that would be monitoring any
5 geofencing target circle? 5 kinds of specific requirements related to the federal
6 A. (Ms Darr) Thatiswhat | see onthe map. 6 funding.
7 Q. | wanttomoveto discussthe Northern Parkway 7 Q. Okay. That'sal the questions| have for you,
8 project. You mentioned the Northern Parkway projectin | 8 Ms. Darr. Thank you.
9 your examination, so, clearly, you're aware of the 9 A. (Ms. Dar) Thank you.
10 existence of the Northern Parkway project. 10 MR. GOLESTAN: Can | move down the list?
11 A. (Ms.Dar) | am. 11 MR. DERSTINE: Y eah.
12 Q. Youreawarethat it'samultijurisdictional 12 Q. BY MR.GOLESTAN: Mr. Duncan, good morning.
13 project? 13 A. (Mr.Duncan) Good morning.
14 A. (Ms. Dar) | am. 14 Q. Doyourecal when Mr. Derstine yesterday asked
15 Q. Thatinvolvesthe City of Peoria? 15 you about undergrounding segment 625, the potential for
16 A. (Ms. Dar) Yes. 16 undergrounding segment 625?
17 Q. Glendae? 17 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, | remember.
18 A. (Ms. Dar) Yes. 18 Q. Andyou'reawarethat APSis evaluating that as
19 Q. El Mirage? The project involves El Mirage? 19 anaternative?
20 A. (Ms. Darr) Yes. 20 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes.
21 Q. MaricopaCounty? 21 Q. Andyou'reaware-- do you recall hearing
22 A. (Ms. Darr) Yes. 22 Mr. Derstine's comments that APS is committed to
23 Q. And, ultimately, the Federa Government through 23 undergrounding that section 625 if it istechnically
24  the Federal Highway Administration? 24 feasible?
25 A. (Ms. Darr) Yes. 25 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes.
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1 Q. Andyou heard Mr. Derstine's comments that the 1 And based on looking at the overall routes -- |
2 undergrounding is funded through a third party? 2 mean, there's been alot of discussion | think by both of
3 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, I'maware. 3 you, but correct meif I'mwrong. If it's Mr. Simpson,
4 Q. Ilwanttotak toyou about some of the 4 I'll discussit with Mr. Simpson -- that the route --
5 technicalities of undergrounding in terms of footprints, 5 that the mgjority of the routes do go through industrial
6 comparing the footprint of something placed underground | 6 areas. | mean, looking at Route A on the site visit, the
7 tothefootprint of an overhead line. 7 majority portions of the routes, your would agree, are
8 We've heard various things about 230kV 8 industrial or commercial?
9 transmission lines and various heights. Can you remind 9 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, | would concur with that
10 me of generally the range of the heights of a 230kV 10 statement.
11 transmission line? 11 Q. And based on the mapping and based on the site
12 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. They canrange-- for this 12 visit, you would agree that the segments of the route
13 project, we are estimating that they will be 155 to 195 13 that affect Peoriaanyway are primarily residential ?
14 feettall. 14 A. (Mr.Duncan) No, | would disagree with that
15 Q. And for those structures, can you tell me how 15 statement.
16 wide essentially the base -- let's say the contact point 16 Q. Youwoulddisagree. Okay. Let'slook at a map.
17 with the ground and the portion that might needing to 17 Go ahead and pull up for me, please -- give mea
18 underground to support that structure, can you tell me 18 moment. Let'slook at APS-6, Figure No. 4, PDF page 10.
19 how wide and how deep those supports are? 19 That's Figure 4, existing land use, PDF page 110,
20 A. (Mr.Duncan) No, I cannot. 20 physical copy page 103.
21 Q. Youcan't because you don't know, or you can't 21 Let me know when you're looking at the same.
22 becauseit depends on the nature of the structure and 22 A. (Mr.Duncan) I'm sorry, which map?
23 therearevariables? 23 Q. APSFigureNo. 4, land use. That's electronic
24 A. (Mr.Duncan) First of all, some structures are 24 page 110, physical page 103.
25 custom ordered, and it depends on the specific designfor |25 A. (Mr. Duncan) Yes. | haveit.
Page 368 Page 370
1 thisproject. But secondly, the specific design of these 1 Q. Yes, of course. | don't know why I'm giving you
2 structuresisnot my expertise. 2 theelectronic page. You'relooking at a physical copy.
3 Q. That'sfine. | don't want you to opine on 3 For the benefit of, | suppose, anybody else who might be
4 anything that's outside of your area. Thank you. 4 looking at it electronically.
5 In your direct, Mr. Duncan, you were referring 5 So we're both looking at page 103, Figure 4.
6 tovariousjurisdictions that you had interfaced with on 6 CHMN. KATZ: Arewe ableto pull that up on the
7 impacts. Obviously, you mentioned that this project, as 7 screen?
8 any project, has an impact on the surrounding 8 AV TECH MOELLER: Just about there.
9 jurisdiction. Right? You're aware of that? 9 MR. GOLESTAN: Isthat it?
10 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. 10 CHMN. KATZ: That'sit.
11 Q. Andyou're aware of the -- were you present at 11 MR. GOLESTAN: Oh, there we go.
12 thesite tour yesterday morning? 12 Q. BY MR.GOLESTAN: So thisfigure showsthe
13 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, | was. 13 boundary of the variousjurisdictionsin the study area,
14 Q. | wasdidyou hear Mr. Simpson's comments on 14 right?
15 that sitetour? 15 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes.
16 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, | did. 16 Q. Thoseboundaries arereflected by let's call
17 Q. Didyou hear Mr. Simpson while we were at the 17 them the salmon-colored lines.
18 Northern segment -- | want to say that was Stop No. 7. 18 A. (Mr.Duncan) | understand.
19 Didyou hear Mr. Simpson say that APS had analyzedthe |19 Q. You agree with that description?
20 burden to that residential neighborhood, particularly,to |20 A. (Mr. Duncan) Yes.
21 befrom moderate to high? 21 Q. Okay. Thezones-- rather, theland useis
22 A. (Mr.Duncan) My understandingis-- | did hear 22 shown, obviously, in different colors. Y ou see that
23 that phrasing, and my understanding was that the 23 yellow isresidential ?
24 neighborhood was considered a high sensitivity. 24 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes.
25 Q. Right. Okay. 25 Q. You seethat thelight orange or peach color, |
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1 supposs, isother employment? Would you agreewiththat? | 1 Q. I'll wait for the electronic to catch up.
2 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. 2 Therewe go. Thank you.
3 Q. Okay. And then the darker purple color on this 3 Y ou would agree with me again, comparing this
4 map, maybe magentaisthe word for it, you would agree | 4 map to the other maps, that the portion that we have been
5 that that represents the industrial zones, as least as 5 talking about between Northern Avenue and Olive Avenue to
6 exigting, existing land use? 6 the east of that green dotted line that you can see that
7 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. 7 runs essentialy between -- that green dotted line that
8 Q. Okay. Looking at thismap, you'll agree with me 8 runs between segment 630 and 550, that's the segment that
9 thatif you'relooking at the boundaries west of Peoria 9 we've been talking about? Y ou would agree with me that
10 aong -- between Northern Avenue and Olive Avenuewhere |10 that's the areathat we're talking about?
11 theroutes -- where the proposed routes are, you would 11 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes.
12 agreewith methat west of the boundary of Peoria, you 12 Q. And, again, that areais-- in that portion is
13 don't see any residential zone there? 13 theresidential community that was part of our tour?
14 A. (Mr.Duncan) Agreed. 14 A. (Mr.Duncan) | would agree with that.
15 Q. Okay. Andlooking along where the -- going up 15 Q. Okay. Andlooking at these lines, you can see
16 and around Luke Air Force Base, essentially following the |16 that on thismap -- first of al, there's an existing
17 route, and we can compare it to the other map, but you 17 corridor, transmission corridor. A lot of discussions
18 would agree with me that throughout that area of Air 18 have already been had about that.
19 Force Base west essentially over to Falcon Substationat |19 On the eastern side of this community in Peoria,
20 thewestern boundary, you would agree with me that, 20 there's an existing transmission corridor, and that's
21 again, not really any residential, that's a mixture of 21 reflected on this map with the blue and yellow dotted
22 other land use types there? 22 lines; isthat right?
23 A. (Mr.Duncan) Agreed. 23 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes.
24 Q. Okay. | want to direct your attention to APS-6. 24 Q. Andthe proposal from APS would place a new
25 That's PDF 114, electronic 114, and physical 107. 25 230kV corridor to the north and to the south of the
Page 372 Page 374
1 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. 1 community?
2 Q. Thisiswhat wewerediscussing earlier. You 2 A. (Mr.Duncan) Correct.
3 mentioned that Mr. Simpson's commentswereinrelationa | 3 Q. Soif the proposal isbuilt exactly as it
4 high congtraint area. That's | think the word that you 4 appears on this map, in the end, this community would be
5 used, right? 5 surrounded on three sides by 230kV transmission lines?
6 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. 6 A. (Mr.Duncan) That iscorrect.
7 Q. Andthat'sreflected in thismap. If welook 7 Q. Andyou are not aware of any other part of this
8 between Northern Avenue and Olive Avenue, you would agree | 8 study areathat has a similar effect, are you?
9 with methat that -- the red portion of this-- the red 9 A. (Mr.Duncan) Not -- no, I'm not.
10 portion of the map that islocated between Northern 10 Q. Okay. That's becausethereisn't one, right?
11 Avenueand Oliveis overlaid with that same residential 11 You would agree with me that there is no other part of
12 areathat we saw on the previous map? 12 thisstudy areathat contains aresidential community
13 A. (Mr.Duncan) Agreed. 13 that would be surrounded on three sides by 230kV
14 Q. Andyouwould agree with me that that is 14 transmission lines?
15 entirely within the boundaries of the City of Peoria? 15 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, | agree.
16 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. 16 Q. Okay. Ithink that'sal | havefor you,
17 Q. Looking at -- moving forward to APS-6 -- well, 17 Mr. Duncan. Thank you.
18 continuing with APS-6, rather, physical page 111, PDF 18 A. (Mr.Duncan) You'rewelcome.
19 €lectronic page 118. Let meknow whenyou'relookingat |19 Q. Mr. Simpson, how are you?
20 oneof them. 20 A. (Mr.Simpson) Fine. Thank you.
21 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. 21 Q. | suspect you have some inkling about the
22 Q. Actuadly, let me move you one further. Digital 22 questions I'm going to ask you?
23 page 120, physical page 113. Arewelooking atthesame |23 A. (Mr. Simpson) | have all the answers.
24  page? 24 Q. Fine. Iloveit.
25 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. 25 Let me start with -- you started off in your
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1 testimony talking alot about the growth and the economic | 1 minimize impactsto their land. City of El Mirage wanted
2 benefits and such. 2 to minimize impacts to their communities and their City
3 | just want to make sure -- you're not an 3 complex. Sowe did have some back-and-forth discussions
4 economist, right? 4 that allowed usto arrive at this route that we have
5 A. (Mr.Simpson) That's correct. 5 shown herein green, Route A.
6 Q. Youdontwork infinance? 6 Q. Sowithrespectto Route A, then, you received
7 A. (Mr.Simpson) That's correct. 7 feedback from both private landowners and the City of
8 Q. Youhaven't presented this Committee with any 8 El Mirage. It'sfair to say that you incorporated that
9 economic data? 9 feedback into the design of Route A?
10 A. (Mr. Simpson) There were no socioeconomic 10 A. (Mr. Simpson) Ultimately, what happened iswe
11 studies completed. 11 did study some other options that would have included
12 Q. Youdon't have any datafrom the Census Bureau, 12 going further east as well as south in this half section
13 for example, to show population growth of this area? 13 route through the APZs. Ultimately, we ended back with
14 A. (Mr. Simpson) We have general information that 14 theroute that weinitially had brought to them as the
15 wasgathered as part of the studies, but it was not a 15 one we thought we were most compatible with. So we did
16 focusof our analysis. 16 essentialy end up back at the same place, but we went
17 Q. Sono specific population data from the U.S. 17 through the analysis to help them understand why we were
18 Government? 18 reguesting to be there.
19 A. (Mr. Simpson) Correct. 19 Q. Okay. Andlet'stalk about Luke Air Force Base
20 Q. Nothing from the Bureau of Labor Statistics 20 because you recall on direct examination, you mentioned
21 showing the workforce in the area? 21 how important that was to the analysis. Do you remember
22 A. (Mr.Simpson) Correct. 22 that discussion?
23 Q. Andasfar asyou know, anyway, no economic 23 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes Yes, | do.
24 impact dataasit relates to the City of Peoria? 24 Q. Andyou obvioudy discussed the complexities of
25 A. (Mr.Simpson) That is correct. 25 Luke Air Force Base on the site tour, correct?
Page 376 Page 378
1 Q. Sol wantto move to the site tour and 1 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes.
2 discussions we had on the site tour. Give me a moment. 2 Q. Based onfeedback you had with them and based on
3 | am getting my notes since | had to take them on my 3 certain parameters that had to be met in order for these
4 phone on our field trip. 4 linesto be placed in the vicinity of Luke Air Force
5 You recall, of course, being on the site tour 5 Base, right?
6 with Members of the Committee, with counsel and other 6 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes.
7 witnesses and mysdlf yesterday? 7 Q. Thoseinclude the Accident Potential Zones that
8 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes, | do. 8 you discussed?
9 Q. Sorry, give me one moment. 9 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes Yes.
10 Well, at that site tour, you had discussed 10 Q. That'ssomethingyou absolutely had to plan
11 accommodations that were made for Glendale and El Mirage, |11 around?
12 correct? 12 A. (Mr. Simpson) Absolutely, yes.
13 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yeah. | don't know if there were 13 Q. Thatincluded things such asthe 1,235 maximum
14 any specific accommodations, but we had alot of dialogue |14 height from sealevel cap that you discussed, right?
15 with them about different topics, and wewent back and |15 A. (Mr. Simpson) Yes, that is correct.
16 forth with them sharing data and whereroutescouldbe |16 Q. That is something that had to be met?
17 located. 17 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes.
18 Q. Anddidany of those discussions produce changes |18 Q. And so thisreflects the accommodations that
19 intherouting? 19 were madefor -- thefinal Route A, for example, reflects
20 A. (Mr.Simpson) Therewere some areasin 20 those accommodations that were made for Luke Air Force
21 El Mirage where we studied different alternatives that 21 Base?
22 weren'tinitialy identified. That was at the request of 22 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yeah. And not necessarily
23 theCity of El Mirage. And then the property ownersalso |23 accommodations. It reflects all the analysis of all the
24 had opinions about that. So there was some 24  routesthat we evaluated crossing through the APZs, and
25 back-and-forth with them. Property owners wanted to 25 thisone was the one deemed most compatible and also met
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1 thestatelaw. Sol wouldn't say it was necessarily an 1 A. (Mr.Simpson) Correct.

2 accommodation. It was aresult of the analysisfor three 2 Q. Andif you arelooking at the proposal for

3 magor aternatives that we considered to cross through 3 RouteE, that'sthe purple line on this figure, right?

4 the APZs. 4 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes.

5 Q. Sure. Andthat analysisincluded receiving 5 Q. TheRoute E proposa would be due north of this

6 information from Luke Air Force Base and meeting the 6 residential community in the City of Peoria?

7 criteriathat they have established, correct? 7 A. (Mr.Simpson) That is approximate location that

8 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes. 8 we're considering.

9 Q. Onthat note, onething that you were evaluating 9 Q. And, likewise, looking at segment -- excuse me,
10 and you mentioned on the site visit moving 69kV linesin |10 Route G, segment 625, that would be due south of the
11 responseto Luke Air Force Base'srequest, whichwould |11 residential community in the City of Peoria?

12 digtinctly benefit afew residences along Route A. Do 12 A. (Mr. Simpson) That is correct.

13 you remember discussing that? 13 Q. Andsoinlooking at this map, you would agree

14 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes. 14 with methat if the routes were constructed as depicted

15 Q. Andthat'struethat that's part of the current 15 on this map, that that community would then be surrounded

16 analysis, is potentially moving the 69kV line for the 16 by 230kV transmission lines on three sides?

17 benefit of Luke Air Force Base and those residences? 17 A. (Mr. Simpson) Therewould be 230kV lines

18 A. (Mr.Simpson) Itisone potentia option. 18 adjacent to the north, east, and south side of the

19 Q. Andthat'sbeing evaluated? 19 residential community, but not surrounded.

20 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes. No final decision yet. 20 Q. Soyouwould agree, then, that there are 230kV

21 Q. | wanttomoveto tak about the siting and 21 transmission lines on three out of four sides of that

22 environmenta studiesthat you've done and kind of talk |22 community? Let's put it that way.

23 through some of the same figures that we talked about. 23 A. (Mr. Simpson) That would be a correct

24 But | suppose we can start here since we're 24 statement.

25 dready looking at Figure 1, proposed routes. That'sPDF |25 Q. Andinlooking at this map, that condition does
Page 380 Page 382

1 page 113, electronic page 120. Let meknow whenyouare | 1 not exist anywhere else in this study area?

2 looking at the same, please. 2 A. (Mr.Simpson) That precise condition doesn't.

3 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes. 3 | would offer that, again, you do see immediately

4 Q. So,likewise, inlooking at this map, you would 4 adjacent, also in the City of Peoria, multiple

5 agreewith methat, first of al, thereisaunique 5 transmission line corridors crossing through what, in

6 burden on the residents of the City of Peoria, and APS 6 essence, isalso part of the same residential

7 has acknowledged that? 7 development, Horizons, here. So there are similar

8 MR. DERSTINE: Object to the form. | don't 8 dituations, dightly different.

9 think that's accurate testimony. 9 Q. Sure. And | appreciate the thoughts on the
10 CHMN. KATZ: Rephrase, please. 10 other situations.

11 Q. BY MR.GOLESTAN: Okay. Youwould acknowledge |11 | just want to know that this particular

12 that inlooking at this map, there is a burden on Peoria 12 dituation we're talking about, aresidential community

13 residents? 13 having three sides of its community -- having 230kV lines
14 A. (Mr.Simpson) Thereisanimpact to the 14 adjacent to three sides of the community doesn't exist

15 residential community, as we have disclosed on our 15 anywhere elsein this particular study area.

16 Exhibit E, visua impacts, viewing across the roads. 16 A. (Mr.Simpson) Not inthe exact same

17 Q. Andinlooking at this map, again, you would 17 configuration; but in other configurations, it would.

18 agreewith methat there is an existing 230kV 18 Q. And, again, my question islimited to that

19 transmission line on the east of the particular community |19 configuration. That configuration doesn't exist anywhere
20 inquestionin the City of Peoria? 20 €dseinthisstudy area?

21 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes. Theresa230kV line a 21 A. (Mr.Simpson) Correct.

22 single pole, a230kV line lattice, and a 345kV 22 Q. Andthat configuration doesn't exist anywhere

23 transmission linein that location. 23 esedong these three proposed routes?

24 Q. Okay. Inthe eastern -- that transmission 24 A. (Mr.Simpson) Correct.

25 corridor isdue east of the community in question? 25 Q. Andthat'sbecause, inlooking at the other
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1 routes, moving farther west, the mgjority of the 1 few feet to several feet, and it's all based on the
2 remainder of those routes pass through industrial and/or 2 geotechnical conditions of the soil and the size of the
3 commercial areas. You would agree with that? 3 line. But, again, | did not consider any of that in my
4 A. (Mr.Simpson) Generally, yes. 4 evauations.
5 Q. Okay. | wanttotalk alittle bit about the 5 Q. Okay. Andwhen you say could be afew, could be
6 alternative undergrounding that's under -- the 6 several, arewetalking -- again, | understand these are
7 undergrounding alternative that's under consideration. 7 approximations. | understand it's not in the
8 Would you be able to speak to some of the technical 8 presentation. Under 50 feet? Under 25 feet? If you
9 detailsthat -- first of al, are you familiar with the 9 havean estimation. If you don't, that's okay.
10 process of undergrounding? | guess let's start there. 10 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yeah. | would not be able to
11 A. (Mr. Simpson) Generaly speaking, yes. The 11 edtimateit. There hasn't been any information conveyed
12 analysisthat we've conducted for this project, the 12 to methat would allow meto answer that, and | don't
13 environmenta analysis, was for double-circuit overhead |13 havethat expertiseto design it.
14 230kV lines, and we did not evaluate specific underground |14 Q. Okay. So your expertise doesn't include --
15 options with respect to environmental studies. 15 while your expertise includes the actual height of the
16 Q. Butyou'reawarethat that is something that is 16 structure, it doesn't include the supports and the
17 being undertaken right now? 17 portions necessary to support that structure? | just
18 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes, | am. 18 want to understand that.
19 Q. Andyouareawarethat, asyou heard 19 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yeah. Again, | have seeninthe
20 Mr. Dergtine say yesterday, that if it istechnically 20 past final design drawings, so I'm familiar with how that
21 feasible, that APSis committed to undergrounding this 21 concept works, but we have not done any final design
22 segment? 22 here, so | wouldn't be able to offer any specifics.
23 A. (Mr. Simpson) | believe they're committed to 23 Q. Okay. Andinyour experience with
24 evauating whether that's feasible. Not committed to 24 undergrounding a 230kV line, can you speak again -- if
25 doing it that way. Those studies have to progress. 25 you have the experience and knowledge, that's great. If
Page 384 Page 386
1 Q. Right. Thepoint being, if it'stechnically 1 youdon't, | don't want you to speculate -- can you speak
2 feasible, it will be done. Not committing to doing it 2 togeneraly what depths or widths those structures would
3 without knowing the technical feasibility. 3 beif it were undergrounded?
4 A. (Mr.Simpson) | can't make that commitment on 4 A. (Mr. Simpson) | have not worked on any projects
5 their behaf. I'm aware of the discussions that they're 5 that involved designing of those facilities. And, again,
6 having regarding that option. 6 somy genera analysis and general understanding isthat,
7 Q. Andinyour experience undergrounding, can you 7 you know, you're constructing them similar to the way you
8 compare for me, please -- and if there's adifferencein 8 would conduct any underground utility. You're going to
9 ranges, that'sfine. You can provide me the difference 9 haveatrench and so on, so forth, but that's the limit
10 inrange. Let's start with the aboveground 230kV 10 of my knowledge.
11 structures. Generally speaking, how far intotheground |11 Q. Okay. With regards to undergrounding
12 and how wide are the base of those structures? 12 gpecifically and some issues you mentioned on direct
13 A. (Mr. Simpson) My visual experiencein 13 examination, you were talking about benefits and
14 observations of thefield, an overhead line like this, 14 drawbacks of undergrounding. Do you recall that
15 the base of the structure could be anywhere from, you 15 discussion yesterday?
16 know, 4 feet al theway up to 6 feet, maybeevenlarger. |16 A. (Mr. Simpson) Yes. Generdly, | offered a
17 Q. Isthat thewidth -- sorry. That's the width of 17 comparative discussion on the two options.
18 that base? 18 Q. Okay. And one benefit that you, of course,
19 A. (Mr. Simpson) It'snot a precise measurement. 19 mentioned is that from the perspective of nearby
20 I'venever physically measured one. It's an observation 20 residential homes, they would not see the transmission
21 standing next to similar facilities. 21 lines, right? Do you recall that piece?
22 Q. Okay. Do you have an understanding of how far 22 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yeah. | think for the residents
23 downinto the ground that the supports for such an 23 on the north side of Northern Parkway, you know, the
24 overhead line go? 24  biggest advantage would be they would not see the wires
25 A. (Mr.Simpson) Generaly, they can range from a 25 above ground between the structures that start at the
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1 existing transmission line corridor to where they would 1 Can wetak about the NERC standards in regards
2 end further down. Y ou know, you would eliminatetheview | 2 to circuiting and, specifically, double-circuiting. Talk
3 of the conductors. | don't think the structures 3 tomealittle bit about that. And if you need more
4 themselves would be directly viewable, at least in areas 4 precise questions, | can give you more precise questions.
5 wherethere aren't currently structures. 5 A. (Mr.Wiley) A more precise question, please.
6 Q. Andasyou discussed yesterday, you believeit's 6 Q. Youreawarethat there are NERC standards
7 reasonable to consider undergrounding for this project? 7 regarding double-circuiting?
8 You think that's a reasonable evaluation to conduct? 8 A. (Mr.Wiley) There are standards that include
9 A. (Mr.Simpson) If the parties agreeto that, | 9 language around having circuits on a common structure.
10 think it does have adlight benefit. | think, given the 10 Q. Okay. Andthat'sfair to say that that's
11 consideration of the adjacent land use and theindustrial |11 commonly referred to as double-circuiting?
12 areabehind it, the views towards the landfill, again, | 12 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes.
13 would say that it may not have the same benefitasif we |13 Q. And those NERC standards on having the circuits
14 werelooking at anice mountain landscape or apristine |14 onasingle structure, that essentially, again, to put it
15 landscape. So | think there's some benefit, but itisin 15 inlayperson'sterms, that essentially would be relating
16 anindustrial setting, and that was the basis of our 16 to standardsfor double-circuiting on asingle pole,
17 analysis. 17 essentidly? Isthat afair layperson trandation of
18 Q. Okay. But, ultimately, there's some benefit, 18 what you just said?
19 and it'sreasonable to conduct that analysis? 19 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes.
20 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes. 20 Q. That arethe NERC standards regarding
21 Q. Okay. Okay. Mr. Simpson, thank you. | don't 21 double-circuiting on asingle pole?
22 have any further questions for you. 22 A. (Mr.Wiley) The NERC standard | was referring
23 Mr. Wiley, good morning. 23 towasatransmission planning standard, which is
24 A. (Mr.Wiley) Good morning. 24 TPL-001-4. And that requires each transmission planner
25 Q. How areyou doing? 25 to perform areliability assessment. In the assessment,
Page 388 Page 390
1 A. (Mr.Wiley) Good. 1 thestandard calls out various planning events. One of
2 Q. Let'ssee. You mentioned something on direct 2 these planning eventsis to study the impacts of losing
3 examination | think in response to one of the Committee | 3 al circuits on acommon structure.
4 Membersregarding NERC standards. And you mentionedthat | 4 Q. So that standard TPL-001-4 doesn't expressly
5 APSisinfull compliance with all NERC standardsfor new | 5 prohibit double-circuit on asingle pole. It laysout a
6 substations. | think that was relating to wall and 6 procedurethat isrequired to evaluate the feasibility of
7 security. Do you remember that conversation? 7 such astructure?
8 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, | do. 8 A. (Mr.Wiley) The standard does not prohibit
9 Q. Ijustwant to step back a50,000-foot view and 9 double-circuit. It doesrequire the analysis and
10 first ask you, what is NERC? 10 specifically calls out the credibility of such events as
11 A. (Mr. Wiley) NERC isthe North American 11 losing adouble-circuit pole.
12 Reliability Corporation. 12 Q. What doyou mean when you say credibility of
13 Q. And how doesthis entity set the standards that 13 certain events aslosing a double-circuit pole? Can you
14 you or other electric -- rather, that APS or other 14 expand on that?
15 utilities have to follow? 15 A. (Mr.Wiley) Meaning that if the pole was
16 A. (Mr.Wiley) They set and enforce the standards. 16 rendered inoperable for any reason that we have to study
17 Q. Onwhich authority? How does this entity have 17 theimpact of both of those circuits being lost
18 the authority to do that? 18 simultaneoudly.
19 A. (Mr.Wiley) From FERC. 19 Q. Okay. Andisthat something you conducted asa
20 Q. AndFERCis? 20 part of your analysisfor this project?
21 A. Federa Energy Regulatory Commission. 21 A. (Mr.Wiley) These circuits were planned on
22 Q. Okay. And canyou tak to me about, to your 22 separate structures, so that specific contingency was not
23 knowledge, the NERC standards, now that we know what NERC |23  evaluated.
24 is. And thank you for explaining that to the laypeople 24 Q. That contingency was not evaluated because of
25 intheroom, myself, me. 25 theplanning on separate structures. Okay.
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1 Do you recall on direct examination, you were 1 CHMN. KATZ: And we've been going about an hour
2 talking about the Contrail Substation? 2 andahalf. Sosometime within the next minute or two,
3 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, | do. 3 we need to take about a 10- or 15-minute break whenever
4 Q. Okay. Andyou would agree with me that, of 4 you think it's appropriate.
5 course, the Contrail Substation iswhere all three of the 5 MR. GOLESTAN: Certainly, Mr. Chairman. | think
6 proposed routes, that's Route A, Route E, and Route G, 6 | only have afew more questions.
7 dl three of those routes -- | don't want to say end. 7 Q. BY MR.GOLESTAN: Soit'sunder considerationin
8 That might not be technically accurate. But all three of 8 thiscasein this condition that we've talked about as it
9 thoseroutes|ead to that substation. They pass through 9 relatesto entering the Contrail station and it being

10 that substation. Isthat afair way of describing that? 10 double-circuiting on asingle pole.

11 A. (Mr. Wiley) Yes. 11 But that was not the -- as you mentioned

12 Q. Okay. Andinlooking at this particular 12 earlier, the TPL-001-4 analysis wasn't conducted for

13 diagram, I'mlooking at Figure 1, proposed routes, that 13 other parts of this route because APS did not consider

14 isphysical page 113, PDF page 120. Let meknow when |14 double-circuiting on asingle pole in any of those other

15 you'rethere. 15 areas, right?

16 A. (Mr.Wiley) Okay. 16 A. (Mr.Wiley) The requirement to evaluate under

17 Q. Areyoulooking at this? Yeah. Very good. 17 TPL-001-4 was conducted. The specific contingency of

18 This diagram seemsto at |east corroborate 18 evaluating multiple circuits on asingle structure was

19 something you said on direct examination yesterday, that |19 not evaluated in that assessment since the planned lines

20 APSisconsidering, quote/unguote, double-circuitingona |20 were not going to be collocated on a single structure.

21 single pole, again, layman understanding, that's the 21 MR. GOLESTAN: Thank you, Mr. Wiley.

22 layman'sterms here, for a portion of Route A and Route E |22 That's all the questions | have.

23 asthey approach the Contrail Substation. 23 CHMN. KATZ: It'sjust past 20 minutesto 11.

24 Do you remember -- does this diagram accurately 24 Let'splan on getting started between 10:55 and 11 and

25 reflection that comment that you made yesterday. 25 ask everybody to be back here by around 10:55, and welll

Page 392 Page 394

1 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, it does. 1 et started as soon aswe can. Thank you.
2 Q. Okay. So APSisconsidering that alternative 2 (A recess was taken from 10:42 am. to
3 but has yet to evaluate whether -- has yet to do that 3 11:.01am.)
4 anaysisthat isrequired by TPL-001-4? 4 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Golestan, do you have any
5 A. (Mr.Wiley) I'll speculate acouple of items 5 further cross-examination?
6 here. We have performed the analysis as required by 6 MR. GOLESTAN: | don't want to make promises |
7 TPL-001-4. It specifically calsout for circuits that 7 can't keep, Mr. Chair. | might have afew more questions
8 aredouble-circuited for more than one mile. Under this 8 for Mr. Simpson. But depending on -- | know that the --
9 condition, we would be talking about one span of 9 things are done alittle loosely around here, as you had

10 double-circuit. 10 alludedto earlier, but if you don't want me to go back

11 Q. Okay. Andisthisspan -- to your knowledge, at 11 to Mr. Simpson, that'sfine.

12 least, do you know if this span is greater than amile, 12 CHMN. KATZ: | would prefer that we go with

13 lessthan amile, or unclear as of yet? 13 direct, cross, and redirect. No recross unless a new

14 A. Thefina designisn't performed, but it would 14 subject matter isintroduced during the redirect

15 bemuch lessthan 1 mile. 15 examination. If you have any questionsright now, you're

16 Q. Inany configuration, you're certain that it's 16 freeto ask.

17 lessthan 1 mile? 17 MR. GOLESTAN: No. That'sfine. 1'm good.

18 A. (Mr.Wiley) Correct. We cannot span for 1 18 CHMN. KATZ: And do you have any redirect

19 mile. 19 examination, Ms. Benally or Mr. Derstine?

20 Q. Becauseif you span more than 1 mile, that would 20 MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman, | have afew

21 trigger additional analysis under TPL-0001-4, or that 21 questionson redirect.

22 would be prohibited, essentialy, under that analysis? 22

23 A. (Mr.Wiley) By "span," I'm talking about the 23 REDIRECT EXAMINATION

24  distance between neighboring structures. 24 BY MR. DERSTINE:

25 Q. Okay. 25 Q. Ms. Dar, let's start with you. Counsdl for the
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1 City asked you about the geofencing that was used to 1 easiertopull up.
2 definethe radius of the Facebook or social media ads. 2 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Mr. Simpson, can you aid me
3 Doyourecal that? 3 and point meto your jurisdictional land use map.
4 A. (Ms.Dar) Correct. 4 A. (Mr. Simpson) There'sonein theland use
5 Q. Canwepull up Slide95. Or | think it's 5 exhibits, 121.
6 physical Slide 95, 102 on the electronic version. 6 Q. Okay. Yeah.
7 Thank you. 7 MR. DERSTINE: Soit's Slide 121 or the PDF 128
8 Looking at the slide that's now projected on the 8 of the 234, if we can pull that up. Isthat what's there
9 screen marked 95 or 102 in the PDF, as| ook at it, the 9 on the screen?
10 circlesarewhat are used to definethe areain whichthe |10 AV TECH MOELLER: Yes, that's correct.
11 Facebook or social media ads went out withintheproject |11 Q. BY MR. DERSTINE: So, Mr. Duncan, can you use
12 study area; isthat right? 12 your laser pointer isidentify the City of Peoriathat's
13 A. (Ms. Dar) Yes. 13 bounded by the proposed Routes E and G.
14 Q. AndI think, as counsel noted in his questions 14 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. TheCity of Peoriais
15 toyou, there are -- the corners of the study areawhere 15 indicated here in this orange-type color. And the area
16 they are more at aright angle are cut off on the study 16 within where Route E and G iswhich is the City of Peoria
17 area. Isthat what's shown? 17 isthisareathat I'm bounding right here on the north
18 A. Yes 18 and here on the west and down here on the south.
19 Q. Withinthecircles, those are the areas that did 19 Q. SoifI'mlooking at this correctly, that light
20 receive Facebook and social media ads, right? 20 brown color isthe City of Peoria. It becomes darker
21 A. Correct. 21 brown, and that indicates the transition to Maricopa
22 Q. And withinthose circles of the coverage of the 22 County jurisdiction; isthat right?
23 socia mediaads, that includes the Suncliff Subdivision, |23 A. (Mr. Duncan) Yes.
24  correct? 24 Q. Andsothelinksthat arein question or that
25 A. Yes 25 arethefocus of the City of Peorias concerns and
Page 396 Page 398
1 Q. Alsotheincludesthe other residentia areas 1 questionsarelink 650 and link 625. Do | have that
2 that are adjacent to the line, that is, the residential 2 right?
3 areainthe Town of Youngtown, theresidential areain 3 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes.
4 the Dysart Ranches along Peoria, correct? 4 Q. Astotheportion of Route E on Olive, that's
5 A. (Ms. Dar) Correct. 5 the northern boundary of the Suncliff Subdivision. Is
6 Q. And putting aside the geofencing circles, the 6 that line being constructed in the City of Peoria?
7 entire study areawas used to develop the address list? 7 A. (Mr.Duncan) No,itisnot.
8 A. (Ms Darr) Themailng list, yes. 8 Q. Andwhereisit?
9 Q. Themailinglist. 9 A. (Mr.Duncan) Itisbeing constructed inthe
10 A. (Ms. Dar) Yes 10 Town of Youngtown.
11 Q. Or for the mailing of the newsletters? 11 Q. Solink 650, which isthe easternmost segment of
12 A. (Ms. Dar) Correct. 12 theroute on Olive, which is Route E, is being
13 Q. Sonewsletters went out to the entire larger box 13 constructed on the north side of Olivein the Town of
14 beyond just the circles? 14 Youngtown?
15 A. (Ms. Darr). 15 A. (Mr.Duncan) That iscorrect.
16 MR. GOLESTAN: I'm going to object to form. 16 Q. And ontheroutetour, when we stood on Olive
17 CHMN. KATZ: Overruled. You may answer. 17 and were looking across at where the line will be
18 MS. DARR: That is correct. 18 constructed, this portion, 650, we were staring into the
19 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Mr. Duncan, youwereasked |19 Town of Youngtown, correct?
20 about land use within the City of Peoria adjacent to the 20 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes.
21 line. Do you recdl that? 21 Q. Andwhat we're seeing isanumber of
22 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. 22 transmission lines and a substation, correct?
23 MR. DERSTINE: Can | have -- and theremay bea (23 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes.
24 didefor this, but I'm looking at the application, it's 24 Q. Andthat areaiszoned industrial, that portion
25 A-2-2. | believeit'sintheland use dides. It may be 25 up tothe edge of the El Sol Substation?
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1 A. (Mr.Duncan) We believe so. 1 landfill, whichis severa hundred feet in height. That

2 Q. And sotheimpact of the construction of Route E 2 isthedirect view.

3 onOlive aong segment 650, which borders the City of 3 The view as you turn your head slightly to the

4 Peoria, will in some way impact the views of this 4 leftisof the multitransmission line corridor that is

5 industria transmission line area, correct? 5 proceeding north and south.

6 MR. GOLESTAN: I'll object to form. 6 And in theimmediate foreground of the view is

7 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Describewhat theviewshedis | 7 what iscurrently Northern Avenue but soon to be Northern

8 that we saw when we were standing looking across Olive | 8 Parkway.

9 Avenue towards where the line will be constructed? 9 Q. Mr. Simpson, you were asked some questions about
10 CHMN. KATZ: Y ou may answer the rephrased 10 theimpacts of and how you graded the impacts of Route G
11 question. 11 on Northern.

12 MR. DUNCAN: The view isof the El Sol 12 Can you -- when you said that the impacts are

13 Substation directly to the north. To the northeast and 13 high, what are you referring to?

14 tothe east is an existing multitransmission -- 14 A. (Mr. Simpson) So for visua impacts, we take

15 high-voltage transmission line corridor that is 15 into anumber of different factors. Visibility isone,

16 diagonally crossing into the view asit proceeds to the 16 and that means, isit opened? Isit backdropped? What

17 north. 17 distance are you viewing at?

18 There'salso a69kV subtransmission east to west 18 And then we take in other factors, which are

19 located on the north side of Olive Avenuethat hasa12kV |19 called visud contrasts. So that is consideration for

20 double-circuit underbuild. 20 what other facilities you may seein the existing

21 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Andit'sthoselinesthat will |21 landscape.

22 bechanged by this project, and we saw a simulation 22 In this case, Mr. Duncan just mentioned the

23 yesterday from Mr. Simpson in terms of what that'slikely |23 multiline transmission corridor to the east, which is

24 tolook like; isthat correct? 24 highly visible from those locations and the landfill to

25 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, that's correct. 25 thesouth. And then to the west, the sand and gravel and
Page 400 Page 402

1 Q. Let'sgodown to Northern and looking at link 1 materiasyardsthat exist there.

2 625. The City of Peoria, it looks like the Suncliff 2 So when we consider visua contrast, isthere

3 Subdivision narrows as it moves down to the southalong | 3 aready, say, industrial features or transmission line

4 Northern Avenue. Am | looking at that correctly? 4 features. All of that affects how aviewer would

5 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, that's correct. 5 perceive anew linein the landscape. And each of those

6 Q. And sothe balance of that area within the City 6 factorswas aconsideration in how we arrived at the

7 of Peoriajurisdiction, what isthat? Asthe subdivision 7 impacts.

8 narrows, what isto the west of it? 8 And they would be alittle bit variable,

9 A. (Mr.Duncan) Thatisacommercial sand and 9 depending upon where you're at in the subdivision. We
10 gravel operation. Mr. Simpson described that duringthe |10 recognized that the first row or two of houses along
11 tour yesterday. 11 Northern would have those high impacts as a result of
12 Q. AndtheRoute G that is proposed to be 12 being able to see the conductor overhead or perhaps the
13 constructed on Northern, is that being constructed within |13  lineson either side.

14 the City of Peoria? 14 Asyou move further away from the roadway over
15 A. (Mr.Duncan) No, itisnot. 15 tothe north, you get moreto the interior of the

16 Q. Andwhosejurisdictionisit being constructed 16 subdivision, those views become harder to see. They're
17 in? 17 not asopen. They not visiblein the same way, so the
18 A. (Mr.Duncan) Itisbeing constructed within the 18 impact would drop off from there.

19 City of Glendale, Glendale's landfill. 19 So that high impact largely being the first

20 Q. Andaswe stood on Northern at the edge of the 20 couple of rows of housesthat are closest to that line

21 Suncliff Subdivision looking at where the line will be 21 wherethey would see the most visible portions of the new
22 constructed, what are we seeing? 22 line

23 A. (Mr.Duncan) The straight-ahead view isof a 23 Q. Arethereimpactsto the Suncliff Subdivision

24 wall, adecorative wall, for lack of a better term, that 24 other than the visual impacts you just described?

25 issuperseded in height by the first cell of the Glendale 25 A. (Mr.Simpson) No. Weare not located on the
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1 property. The primary concern there were the visual 1 applicablesinceit isastandard under NERC. And, of
2 impacts. 2 course, when we do go to build that second line in the
3 Q. Andthevisua impacts are adding a 230kV 3 future, we would include that as part of our TPL analysis
4 transmission line to the view of the dump? 4 atthat time.
5 A. (Mr.Simpson) That iscorrect. 5 MEMBER LITTLE: Thank you.
6 MR. DERSTINE: No further questions. 6 CHMN. KATZ: Let mejust ask as afollow-up,
7 CHMN. KATZ: Anything further? 7 Mr. Wiley, would the poles that are erected be erected in
8 Do you essentialy rest your case? 8 contemplation of adding that second line, or are we
9 MR. DERSTINE: Yes. 9 looking at tearing down those poles and replacing them
10 CHMN. KATZ: We don't know whether or not Peoria |10 with onesthat are capable of carrying double-circuit?
11 wishesto call any witnesses? 11 MR. WILEY: Chairman Katz, thank you.
12 MR. GOLESTAN: Peoriawill not call any 12 The structures that we're proposing to install
13 witnesses, Mr. Chairman. 13 would be capable of adding a second circuit. At which
14 CHMN. KATZ: What we can do ishear any closing |14 timethat second circuit is needed, replacement of
15 argumentsthat you wish to make if you'reready dothat. |15 structures would not be needed.
16 MEMBER LITTLE: Mr. Chairman. 16 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you.
17 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Member Little. 17 And | didn't mean to ignore other Committee
18 MEMBER LITTLE: | have aquestion, and I'mnot |18 Members.
19 surewho to address this to because | was having a hard 19 Does anyone else have any questions of the other
20 time following who was being questioned in cross. 20 witnesses before we go to closing arguments from both
21 But this project is requesting the authorization 21 parties?
22 for asecond circuit and getting to the question about 22 (No response.)
23 following the NERC standards in doing the studies for 23 CHMN. KATZ: Hearing nothing further, are you
24  double-circuit construction -- any double-circuit 24 gentlemen -- ladies and gentlemen ready to present your
25 construction that might happen in the future. 25 closing arguments, or do you need afew minutes?
Page 404 Page 406
1 Thereisaconditionin aimost al of the CECs 1 MR. DERSTINE: | think so. The only thing |
2 that requiresthe applicant to follow all NERC standards. 2 needisto check with the AV team to seeif -- | threw
3 And I'm just wondering whether that condition would cover | 3 them some slidesfor aclosing.
4 any required NERC studies in the future having to do with | 4 CHMN. KATZ: If you need a couple minutes.
5 double-circuit lines. 5 MR. DERSTINE: If we can take --
6 MR. DERSTINE: Thank you, Member Little. | 6 CHMN. KATZ: Let'sjust take afive-minute
7 think that's a question that should be responded to by 7 break.
8 Mr. Wiley. 8 (A recess was taken from 11:20 am. to
9 MEMBER LITTLE: Thank you. 9 11:34am.)
10 MR. WILEY: Member Little, I'm sorry, | didn't 10 CHMN. KATZ: We're ready to begin.
11 catch your specific question. Would you mind repeating |11 | did indicate to the attorneys that once we are
12 that? 12 done with our closing arguments, we're going to take a
13 MEMBER LITTLE: It waskind of convoluted. | 13 lunch break and then come back and review the proposed
14 apologize. 14 CEC, make whatever edits and approvals or disapprovals
15 Thereisaconditionin amost CECs, and | see 15 that we collectively as a Committee agreeto do. But |
16 itinthisproposed CEC also, that requires the applicant 16 told the lawyersthat we wanted to boost everybody's
17 tofollow all NERC standards, WECC standards, and others, |17 blood sugar with lunch.
18 but NERC is also specified. 18 | don't know whether it will be Ms. Benally or
19 Do you believe that that condition would require 19 Mr. Derstine, but you're welcome to make the closing
20 APSdo any required studies having to do with 20 argument on behalf of Arizona Public Service.
21 double-circuiting any of these linesin the future? 21 MR. DERSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members
22 MR. WILEY: Thank you for the question, Member |22 of the Committee and as well asthe Members| see on the
23 Little. 23 screenin front of me. Thank you for your time and
24 | haven't seen this specific condition. Hearing 24 atention.
25 that it coversal NERC standards, this would be 25 Thank you, Madam Court Reporter, as always, for

Coash & Coash, Inc.

(20) Pages 403 - 406

602-258-1440 www.coashandcoash.com





Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central
Docket No. L-00000D-22-0030-00198 - L SC Case No. 198

Evidentiary Hearing - Volumel 1|

Page 407 Page 409
1 doing such anicejob keeping track and givingusagood | 1 Contrail Substation with the necessary 230kV
2 transcript whether it's here in the hearing room or 2 transformers, bus work, and then to construct three
3 driving around the West Valley inavan. We appreciate 3 independent double-circuit 230kV lines. Thoselinesare
4 it 4 proposed to be constructed on Routes A, E, and G set
5 In my opening, | had stated that you can't have 5 forthin the application and as the Committee has seen on
6 growth without power. APS has aduty to serve all the 6 the maps.
7 customers, customers that exist today aswell as 7 What are the benefits of the project? Well, it
8 anticipating and being prepared for the customers of the 8 doesanumber of things. Those three new 230kV
9 future, the growth that's going to happen. 9 double-circuit lines allow Microsoft -- not only alow
10 Different customers have different needs. Not 10 APSto serve Microsoft and satisfy the high load of a
11 every customer is going to require a CEC and we don't 11 datacenter, but they allow Microsoft to eliminate the
12 haveto bring a project before this Committee. At the 12 need for diesel generation, which would be the third leg
13 sametime, APS has the same duty to serve that growth 13 of the stool in terms of their reliability requirements.
14 with the appropriate facilities. And the challengeisto 14 And that third circuit allows us to eliminate diesel and
15 alwaysbein aposition to site and construct those 15 the noise and the environmental impacts that come with
16 facilitiesin time to meet customer needs while at the 16 diesel generation onsite.
17 sametime minimizing the impacts of that new 17 As | mentioned, the project connects the 230kV
18 infrastructure on the surrounding community. Andthat's |18 systemson the east and the west sides of the West Valley
19 what this case is about, and that's what we've presented 19 much like the Northern Parkway is intended to do,
20 toyou. 20 connecting freeways on the east and the west of the West
21 I noted in my opening and shared a couple of 21 Valey. Thisproject servesto connect those systems and
22 recent articles about all the growth that's happening in 22 improvesthereliability of the 230kV infrastructure and
23 theWest Valley. But you don't have to read the 23 will alow usto serve alot of the high-level customers
24 newspaper to see the growth that's happening inthe West |24 and commercial and industrial growth that's occurring in
25 Valley. For those who were on the tour and drove around, |25 thisarea
Page 408 Page 410
1 yousaw al the construction that's occurring, the 1 We covered the planning process. Mr. Simpson
2 transition of the agricultural fieldsto new logistics 2 tedtified at length about kind of what went into those,
3 centers, commerce parks, manufacturing facilities, cold 3 theactivities that went into those 18 months of work.
4 doragefacilities. All that is happening at avery 4 Environmental studies, engineering studies, al the
5 rapid pace herein the West Valley. 5 outreach that occurred over that 18-month timespan. And
6 And the Loop 303, as | mentioned, has become a 6 through all that, APS and its consultants analyzed the 41
7 hubfor that growth. But it's not just the Loop 303. It 7 square miles of areato identify potential routes,
8 extendsinto Glendale. It extendsinto El Mirage. All 8 identify early on small links that were numbered. These
9 of the communitiesin the West Valley are experiencing 9 numbered links still show on our route maps today. And
10 thisgrowth. And the growth isnot only the business 10 those small numbered links were then connected and used
11 growth. It'stheresidential growth that's following 11 todevelop lettered preliminary routes.
12 that business growth. 12 Those preliminary routes, | think A through H,
13 This project serves two needs: 13 were then shared with the surrounding community in the
14 It satisfies the need to serve a high-level 14 newsletter that went out. And we solicited not only
15 customer, the Microsoft datacenter. It'sin El Mirage. 15 showing them where those preliminary routes would be but
16 It'sinthe early stages of development. At full 16 asked them to comment, give us feedback. Tell uswhether
17 buildout, that datacenter is going to require 245 17 you like them, whether you hate them, and what's the
18 megawatts of power. 18 preferred route for the community, landowners,
19 In addition, this project will be able to serve 19 developers.
20 thegrowth that's occurring using the second circuit, the |20 Ultimately, utilizing that feedback and the
21 230circuit that will tiein the lines on the east, the 21 outreach campaign that was presented to inform us and
22 230kV infrastructure on the west of the project areaand |22 help us develop the final routes, A, E, and G were
23 ontheeast. 23 selected. And those are the routes that are before the
24 What's needed to satisfy the needs, the two 24  Committee in our CEC application that we're asking you to
25 needsthat | identified, are to expand the existing 25 approvein thiscase.
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1 Ms. Darr covered the public outreach, and | was 1 them here. Whether it happens late in the process or
2 pleased -- | guess | might say -- | shouldn't say 2 early, it'simportant for us to know, you know, what the
3 surprised, but | was pleased to hear Member Gentles say 3 jurisdictions, what landowners, what residents are
4 that he thought we had done a good, thorough job because | 4 thinking. And if they show up here at the time of the
5 hedoesn't lavish praise or approval without good reason. | 5 hearing and want to participate and state their views
6 And hisusual takeisvery critical and at least uses a 6 concerning the project, we're happy to have them do that.
7 critical eyeto analyze outreach campaigns. | 7 In this particular case, the City has concerns
8 appreciated his comments. | know the company did too. 8 about Routes E and G, which are not within the City of
9 Not to say that we're perfect inthisarea. We 9 Peoriabut border along its boundaries on Olive Avenue
10 never are. But we continue to strive to do our best. 10 and Northern Avenue.
11 And as aways, the objective isto gain input, let folks 11 The focus of the City's attention are, as|
12 know what we're thinking, what we're planning, what we're |12 mentioned, E and G. And in fact the short segments that
13 doing, gain their feedback, use that information to 13 border on the City of Peoria-- and if the AV people
14 inform us about how we move forward with the project and |14 could pull up those simulations for me, it may be helpful
15 ultimately to help us design and present a project to 15 for the Committee to just, one more time, see what the
16 this Committee. And | think we did an effective job of 16 City of Peoriaistaking about and is concerned about.
17 thatinthiscase. 17 This Visua Simulation No. 4 shows the view on
18 Mr. Simpson had mentioned it, and | haveto 18 Olive Avenue looking to the west along Olive. The
19 agreethat | have not -- having handled a number of these |19 existing condition shows what it looks like today. All
20 cases, | haven't been involved in a case that involved 20 theexisting -- at least the transmission lines, what's
21 thismany different jurisdictionsin which we had to 21 out of the frame on the existing condition is the
22 communicate and engage and inform and work with. There's |22 substation and the other transmission lines that are
23 anumber of larger and smaller communitiesinthe West |23  further to the east. But thisisthe view of Olive
24 Valey that make up this project area, and we had towork |24  Avenue as you're looking to the west on the Suncliff
25 withall of them. 25 Subdivision, the edge of that subdivision. And the
Page 412 Page 414
1 In addition to the jurisdictions, the cities and 1 proposed condition is on theright.
2 thetowns, we worked with Luke Air Force Base, Maricopa | 2 The testimony that you heard is that the plan to
3 County Department of Transportation, and then the 3 construct those 230kV lines across Olive within the Town
4 individual private landowners who are building large, 4 of Youngtown or their jurisdiction will increase the span
5 multiple thousand, in some cases millions, of squarefeet | 5 length and eliminate some of the infrastructure that
6 of development that have a significant interest in what 6 you'reseeing there. The 12kV will go underground. The
7 we're building, where we're building it, and how it 7 69kV will be collocated with the new 230 lines. The 230
8 impactstheir development. And as| think was mentioned | 8 structures will betaller. Y ou can see for yourself
9 during the testimony, wondering whether therewould be | 9 whether you think that's an improvement or whether that
10 sufficient power to serve their development in the 10 worsensal the infrastructure that is existing here
11 future. And with this project, there will be. 11 today and what folks see when they're leaving the
12 Aswe mentioned, it's also a bit unusual for us 12 Suncliff Subdivision and turning onto Olive Avenue and
13 togain letters, feedback in writing. Many of these 13 driving to the west.
14 lettersindicated their appreciation for their being 14 If you can pull up the next slide, please.
15 involved in the project and the manner in which we 15 Thisisthe other side of an area of concern for
16 engaged them and sought their input. Some indicated 16 the City of Peoria. Thisis Northern Avenue. On
17 their approval for the project, but every one of those 17 Northern, the Suncliff Subdivision narrows down, but
18 entitiesthat submitted aletter stated their 18 there'sstill an entrance and an exit to that subdivision
19 appreciation for our process and the manner in whichwe |19 there. And what you see running along Northern, as has
20 worked with them throughout the 18-month planning history |20 been testified to, is the City of Glendale's landfill.
21 for the project. We awaysask for letters. We don't 21 And thelandfill is surrounded by this large retaining
22 usually get them. And in this case, we got them, and | 22 wall. You'relooking at Northern. That will betorn up
23 think it says something about the process. 23 and widened as part of this Northern Parkway project as
24 But the project is not without opposition. The 24 it extends back towards the east and comes the direction
25 City of Peoriais here, and, frankly, we're happy to have |25  of the City of Peoria.
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In addition to the road widening, you'll see
that we have -- or in order to avoid the road widening,
our proposal isto construct the new transmission line
within the boundary of the landfill within the City of
Glendale. And so what residents within Suncliff, those
new residents who might see these structures from their
backyard or as they're driving out of the Suncliff
Horizon Subdivision out onto Northern Avenue, will see
the new transmission lines, and the poles span out
approximately 750 feet. And that will be their new view.
It won't just be the landfill. 1t will be the landfill
and these 230kV structures.

APS is committed to work with the City of Peoria
to try to address their concerns. We've agreed to

© 00N O WNP

10
11
12
13
14

Page 417

and you'll hear here in a minute closing argument from
counsel for the City of Peoria.

As| indicated, we're requesting a CEC that
approves the construction of the double-circuit lines on
Routes A, E, and G on monopole structures ranging from
130 to 195 feet. Included, asyou'll see, isthe
exhibit, the map which shows the routes, identifies the
corridor and the width of the corridor for those three
routes.

And the corridor, as you know, as this Committee
well knows, isthe key consideration that allows us to
develop these projects and design them in away that
minimizesthe impacts. It allows us, after this hearing,
when we get along further in engineering, to continue to

15 evaluate undergrounding a portion of the line on Northern |15 working with landowners and jurisdictions to continue to
16 here. Andif it can be feasibly undergrounded there 16 place polesand adjust the alignment in away that it
17 without impacting the landfill operationsand will result |17 addresses the concerns of residents.
18 inasafeand reliable installation that can be 18 We can't always give folks what they ask for.
19 maintained and repaired over time, APShasagreedtodo |19 Our commitment is simply to do what we can and to
20 that. 20 communicate and to do our very best to try to minimize
21 | don't know that we have -- we've continued to 21 theimpactswithin the call or the authority that this
22 work with the other jurisdictions. In this case, we're 22 Committee gives usin identifying a corridor for
23 working with the City of Peoria. And that isn't unique 23 constructing the project. And we'll do that here.
24 tothiscase. That'swhat wedo inevery case. Ourjob 24 In terms of the term of the project, we're
25 isto engage with and work with affected jurisdictions 25 asking for aten-year term, which is the standard CEC
Page 416 Page 418
1 and landowners and do the best we can to mitigate the 1 termto construct thefirst circuit. That's the circuit
2 impacts of the project. 2 that'sgoing to be dedicated to serving Microsoft.
3 But in general, we're not undergrounding 3 The second circuit, we're asking for a 20-year
4 transmission lines unlessthereis a safety 4 term because at the present time, we don't know when
5 consideration, that the project is needed in that 5 well need that circuit. We know we don't need it today.
6 location, and the only way to install it there or 6 Weknow it's going to be sometime in the future, but
7 construct it thereisto underground it; or, asin this 7 we'reasking for the longer term for that reason.
8 case, athird party iswilling to cover the cost to 8 In my opening, | indicated that this was an
9 construct this underground segment. Andinthiscase,we | 9 important project, and | stand by those words. It'san
10 have Microsoft who has indicated their willingness to 10 important project for Microsoft, and it's an important
11 mitigate the impact of this project on the City of Peoria |11 project to serve the growth that's occurring in the West
12 andtheresidentsin this area by agreeing to cover the 12 Valley.
13 cost of undergrounding if that can be safely and feasibly |13 And with that, we're going to request that you
14 done. 14 grant usthe CEC and look forward to your deliberation
15 So that'swhere we are. The results of those 15 over the CEC. And, as aways, we thank you for your time
16 studieswon't be known for sometime. It will takesome |16 and attention.
17 timeto fully understand what can be constructed therein |17 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you kindly.
18 termsof an underground construction. But we'll continue |18 Mr. Golestan.
19 toworking with and communicate and cooperate with the |19 MR. GOLESTAN: Mr. Chairman, Members of the
20 City of Peoria. And I think you'll see language to that 20 Committee, thank you very much for the opportunity to be
21 effect in the proposed CEC. 21 here.
22 Y ou heard our case, four witnesses using the 22 Peoriaintervened in this matter to present
23 various PowerPoint slides and exhibits. Y ou saw the 23 concerns to this Committee about the impacts of this
24 flyover simulation. Those of you who were here were able |24  project on the City, and Peoria appreciates the
25 totaketheroutetour. Andyou heard cross-examination, |25 opportunity to do so, appreciates APS's commitment and
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1 counsel's remarks about working together and continuing | 1 other stakeholders, including other jurisdictions, and
2 todo so to determine solutions to the issues that have 2 that was a give-and-take process as described by members
3 beenraised. 3 of thewitness panel for APS, and that resulted in some
4 Through some of the exhibits and the witness 4 changes. And Peoriasimply wants that dialogue, that
5 testimony, realy, Peorias two concerns were, firstly, 5 samedialogue. And we appreciate that APS has been doing
6 the nature of the impact on Peoria. That's been 6 that. Ultimately, Peoriasrequest isthat if the CEC is
7 acknowledged by APS, as we heard from the witnesses. 7 approved, it is approved with that jointly proposed
8 That impact is shown by frankly this map that we're 8 condition that both of the parties have proposed to the
9 looking at right now and the other maps that showed the 9 Committee that requires the parties to continue to
10 nature of the land use. 10 negotiatein good faith and come up with solutions to
11 Most of the routes outside of the City of Peoria 11 addressthese concerns.
12 gothrough industrial or commercial areas. The portions |12 And with that, we appreciate the opportunity and
13 of the Routes E and G that are closest Peoria Avenue 13 appreciate the Committee'stime. Thank you.
14 border the Suncliff Subdivision. 14 CHMN. KATZ: Anything -- you don't have any
15 Aswe heard on cross-examination through 15 additional exhibits, correct, Mr. Golestan?
16 Mr. Simpson and to some extent Mr. Duncan, the condition |16 MR. GOLESTAN: No.
17 that thiswould create, Routes E and G, is unique. 17 CHMN. KATZ: Anything further before we take our
18 There's no other place in the study areawhere a 18 lunch break?
19 residential community is surrounded or -- essentially 19 MR. GOLESTAN: No.
20 surrounded on three sides by 230kV transmission lines. 20 CHMN. KATZ: I'm showing that it's just about
21 And Mr. Simpson discussed on his own direct 21 exactly noon. Doesthe Committee want to consider 1:00?
22 examination arough sort of back-of-the-napkin 22  Well start back at 1:00 and start our deliberations.
23 calculation of the impact on theresidents. And even 23 And, Mr. Golestan, what we'll dois!'ll go
24 that analysisindicates that the burden and theimpact on |24 through sections of this and ask the Committee to either
25 Peoria, particularly for residential as compared to other |25  approve or disapprove of that section.
Page 420 Page 422
1 jurisdictions, is unique and much greater. 1 But on page No. 2, lines 17 through 23, we're
2 He approximated that the routes affect 2 not going to take the vote or fill that section in or
3 approximately 300 homesin Y oungtown within half amile, | 3 seek approval until all of the other conditions can be
4 approximately 400 homes on the Olivelinewithinhalfa | 4 agreed to aswe might modify. And then welll -- and the
5 mile. That'sin Peoria. And approximately 145 homeson | 5 votesto approve various sectionswill be just verbal.
6 the Northern segment. So that's atotal of 545 homesin 6 But the final vote asto whether or not the CEC should be
7 Peoriaand residents therein that are affected, nearly 7 issued will bearall call vote with each Member having
8 doublethat of other jurisdictions. So theimpact is 8 tosay yeaor nay, yesor no.
9 certainly unique and has been acknowledged. 9 Okay. WE'l see you in about an hour.
10 The other issue that Peoriahasraised isjust a 10 (A recess was taken from 12:01 p.m. to
11 question of continued investigation to ensure that the 11 1:.03p.m.)
12 Northern segment, specifically, ssgment G -- Route G, 12 CHMN. KATZ: What we're going to do, and this
13 excuse me, doesn't unduly impact the Northern Parkway |13 should have been emailed to our Committee Members, and it
14 project, which, aswe've heard, isamultijurisdictional 14 was handed to usthat are present here in the hearing
15 project that's been going on for a number of years. 15 room. But we're going to mark as Chairman-1 the PDF
16 That'scontinuing. Aswe heard from witnesses, thereare |16 version, which will be kept asis.
17 federal fundstied up in that project, but they weren't 17 On theright side will be the Word version of
18 ableto comment about the ramifications and theinterplay |18 the same document that we will work from. Once that's
19 between this proposed route and any federal funding. 19 been finalized and approved, that will become Chairman
20 Obvioudly, as Peoriamentioned in itsintervening papers, |20 No. 2. Sowe will be changing what will beinitialy put
21 that'sthe primary concern, is ensuring that no federal 21 upontheright screen. We will be modifying that aswe
22 fundingislost. And that wouldn't only affect Peoria. 22 go, and thefinal version will be Chairman-2.
23 That would affect EI Mirage, Glendale, other 23 And if wereready to go, we can. And what we
24 jurisdictions that areinvolved in that project. 24 normally do is go through certain paragraphs, sometimes
25 Peoria appreciates that APS has worked with 25 severa linesat once. We will go through the additional
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1 conditions as well asthe Findings of Fact and 1 it'sline 3, we have David French that's been substituted
2 Conclusions of Law one by one. And after that, we go 2 infor John Riggins from the Water Department -- or the
3 back to the earlier portion of the document. And that's 3 Department of Water Resources.
4 onpage?2, lines 17 through 22. And that we will skip 4 Going down to line 10, Jack Haenichen is not
5 over until it'stime to vote on whether to issue the CEC 5 present. He's having some health-related issues.
6 ornot. 6 But | believe all the other numbers of our
7 MR. GOLESTAN: Mr. Chairman. 7 Committee that are listed in the document are present
8 CHMN. KATZ: Yes. 8 either in person or virtually.
9 MR. GOLESTAN: | propose a housekeeping matter | 9 And wewould be adding in at line 14, | think it
10 if | may. 10 is, Peoriaasthe intervenor or the City of Peoria,
11 CHMN. KATZ: Yes. 11 represented by Saman Golestan, Assistant Peoria City
12 MR. GOLESTAN: | didn't have the opportunity 12 Attorney.
13 before, but Peoriadid include a handful of exhibits that 13 MR. GOLESTAN: Saman Golestan, Mr. Chairman.
14 was submitted by the deadline that you had set out, Mr. 14 CHMN. KATZ: What did | say?
15 Chairman, by last Friday. | spoke with Mr. Derstine. We |15 MR. GOLESTAN: A little different pronunciation.
16 stipulated to the entry of Peoria's exhibits into the 16 CHMN. KATZ: And take alook at page No. 1, line
17 record. 17 14, through page No. 2, line 16, with the striking of the
18 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. Peoria exhibits are -- 18 two representatives on the Committee that aren't here and
19 MR. GOLESTAN: Peoria-1, 2, 3, and 4. 19 adding the City of Peoriarepresented by their counsel.
20 CHMN. KATZ: Peoria Exhibits 1, 2, 3, and 4 will |20 And then once you've done that, | would welcome
21 beadmitted. 21 amotion to approve this portion of the CEC document.
22 (Exhibits Peoria-1 through Peoria-4 were 22 MEMBER PALMER: Mr. Chairman, | move approval of
23 admitted into evidence.) 23 page 1, line 15, through page 2, line 16, as amended.
24 CHMN. KATZ: Y ou need to get copies of those 24 MEMBER HAMWAY : Second.
25 exhibitsto our court reporter. 25 CHMN. KATZ: All infavor say "aye."
Page 424 Page 426
1 MR. GOLESTAN: Yes, Mr. Chairman. 1 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Chairman.
2 So Exhibit 1 isthe Intergovernmental Agreement. 2 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, sir.
3 That'sPeorial. 3 MEMBER GRINNELL: May we get the edited version
4 Peoria 2 is Northern Parkway: AguaFria River 4 up on our screen versus the other?
5 to 99th Avenue Scoping and Design Report. 5 Thank you, sir.
6 And Peoria 3 isthe relevant page of the fiscal 6 CHMN. KATZ: Isit up on there now?
7 year 2022 to 2025 Maricopa Association of Governments | 7 MEMBER GRINNELL: Yes.
8 Transportation Improvement Program. 8 CHMN. KATZ: Y ou should be looking at the edited
9 And then Peoria 4 is maps showing the segments 9 version, and I'm assuming that -- are we editing it as we
10 that are bordering Peoria aong with Northern Parkway 10 go?
11 scheduleinformation. 11 MR. DERSTINE: Yes.
12 CHMN. KATZ: And well get copies of those to 12 MEMBER GENTLES: Mr. Chairman.
13 you so that we can confirm everything that was just 13 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Mr. Gentles.
14 dtated. 14 MEMBER GENTLES: | don't know if thisis-- hold
15 If everybody would please take alook at the 15 onasecond. Let mejust try something.
16 first page of the document. 16 Okay. | solved my issue. Thank you.
17 Beginning at line 14 through page 2, line 17 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
18 No. 16. | need everybody to take alook at that. And 18 I'll ask again, al in favor.
19 welll be showing at the very beginning of that, going 19 (A chorus of "ayes.")
20 back to page 1, we haveto fill in the date as March 2nd, |20 CHMN. KATZ: Anyone opposed.
21 2022. 21 (No response.)
22 And on that first page, we also need to strike 22 CHMN. KATZ: That is approved.
23 Zachary Branum. Hedid not appear at all in these 23 Well skip lines 17 through 23. That's our
24  proceedings. 24 final vote.
25 And going on to the next page, page 2, | think 25 But we begin, then, with Section B at line 24,
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1 Project Overview. And that runs on through adescription | 1 MEMBER GRINNELL: We have -- I'm with Ms. Little
2 of the project to the top of page 3, line 3. And we will 2 here. We have 10 years or 20 years or to the time of
3 beattaching a project map to this. 3 construction or to the time of completion.
4 And once you've had a chance to look at it, | 4 | think lines 6 through | guessit would be line
5 will gladly receive amotion to approve. 5 12, becauseit lookslikeit takes up to ten years. So
6 MEMBER GRINNELL: So moved. 6 there'salittle bit of acontradiction in here. Shall
7 MEMBER HAMWAY : Second. 7 expiretenyears. Andthenitisdeleted, yetitisto
8 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 8 construct the project shall expire ten years, but that's
9 (A chorus of "ayes.") 9 beendeleted. So are we approving 20 years?
10 CHMN. KATZ: Anyone opposed. 10 CHMN. KATZ: We're approving ten years for
11 (No response.) 11 Phase 1 and 20 years for Phase 2.
12 CHMN. KATZ: We next have the paragraph that 12 MEMBER PALMER: If they need to add the second
13 beginsat line 5 on page 3 and goes through line -- 13 circuit later, they get 20 years to add those second
14 actudly, line 13. We've stricken from the document 14 lineson.
15 lines 13 through lines 18. So we're looking at the 15 MEMBER LITTLE: And what that says to your
16 paragraph aswritten from line No. 5 on page 3 through 16 lawyersisthat? They have ten yearsto do the first
17 linel2. 17 circuit unlessthey apply for an exception, and then they
18 And whenever, you can move. 18 have 20 yearsto do the second circuit, unless they apply
19 MEMBER LITTLE: Mr. Chairman, | haveaquestion. |19 for an extension. That's what those words say?
20 Do wewant to moveit first and then discussit? 20 CHMN. KATZ: | believe that's what they state.
21 CHMN. KATZ: Yeah. If wehavethemotionanda |21 Do either of the lawyers disagree with how we have
22 second, we then can discuss the language. And if there's |22 phrased this?
23 any concerns by either of the parties, they can also 23 MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman, | don't disagree.
24  expressthat concern before we take the vote. 24 | do pause, and maybe that was the reason for the
25 But do we have a motion to approve that 25 question from Member Little and Member Grinnell.
Page 428 Page 430
1 Condition No. 1? 1 The "unless' parenthetical phrase may be
2 MEMBER HAMWAY: So moved. 2 unnecessary inthiswording. So that if you strike it
3 MEMBER PALMER: Second. 3 from the word "unless" to the semicolon, it would read:
4 CHMN. KATZ: If there's any discussion. 4 Thisauthorization to construct the Project shall expire
5 Member Little, if you had a discussion or some 5 ten (10) years from the date the Certificate is approved
6 suggested changes. 6 by the Arizona Corporation Commission; provided, however,
7 MEMBER LITTLE: Maybe I'm being dense, but I'm | 7 that the authorization to construct the second circuit of
8 not quite sure what the first part of that sentence 8 the Project shall expire twenty (20) years from the date
9 means. Isthat saying that the CEC expiresten years 9 of this Certificate.
10 from when it's approved or until the project is 10 And then you could put a period there, and it
11 completed? 11 couldjust indicate that -- it can still be the
12 CHMN. KATZ: | think the first phaseisfor ten 12 semicolon, but there'stwo of these "provided." Y eah,
13 years. 13 it probably should be a period after "Certificate.”
14 MEMBER LITTLE: No. | understand that. The 14 CHMN. KATZ: And then "However"?
15 part that says. Unless construction is completed to the 15 MEMBER LITTLE: Not even "However." Just
16 point that the first circuit is capable of operating by 16 "Provided."
17 that time. 17 MR. DERSTINE: Provided that prior to either
18 CHMN. KATZ: But if they wanted more time, they |18 such expiration the Applicant or its assignees may
19 would haveto make aformal request to amendif I'mnot |19 request that the Commission extend this time limitation.
20 mistaken. 20 MEMBER LITTLE: | personally think that's more
21 MEMBER LITTLE: Okay. 21 clear.
22 CHMN. KATZ: Any comment from either of the 22 CHMN. KATZ: Do you want to move that we would
23 lawyers? 23 amend?
24 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Chairman. 24 MEMBER LITTLE: Yes.
25 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, sir, Mr. Grinnell. 25 MEMBER GRINNELL: Well, before we get to that
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1 amendment, I'd like to go back to the document instead of | 1 right now in No. 1 whereit reads. This authorization
2 my picture. 2 toconstruct thefirst circuit shall expire ten (10)
3 Bring the document back up to the screen, 3 yearsfrom the date of the Certificate -- from the
4 please. I'm seeing Ms. Little, which isfine, except | 4 date -- the date the Certificate is approved by the
5 can't read the document. 5 Arizona Corporation Commission and the authorization to
6 There we go. 6 construct the second circuit -- | don't know if "the
7 | guess -- 7 project” isneeded, but it can be there -- of the Project
8 CHMN. KATZ: Go ahead. 8 shall expire twenty (20) years from the date of this
9 MEMBER GRINNELL: | guesswereasking fortwo | 9 Certificate. Provided, however, that prior to either
10 ten-year approvals now, in essence. Sotheauthorizedto |10 such expiration the Applicant or it's assignee may
11 construct a second circuit -- 11 request that the Commission extend this time limitation.
12 CHMN. KATZ: It's 20 years from right now. 12 MEMBER HAMWAY : Mr. Chairman, isn't that
13 MEMBER GRINNELL: Why don't wedo 20 years |13 Condition 2?
14 altogether or say approve the second project for an 14 MR. DERSTINE: 2 does cover the extension,
15 additional ten years? 15 correct.
16 MEMBER HAMWAY:: | personally fedl thisisfine. |16 CHMN. KATZ: Do we need that last "provided" in
17 It'simportant that they get the first onein. And they 17 thereat all, then?
18 just didn't want to come back in for the secondone. So |18 MR. DERSTINE: Probably does not need to be
19 | think if we can make that clear, we're good. 19 there.
20 MEMBER GRINNELL: I'm alittle apprehensiveto |20 CHMN. KATZ: Why don't we take it out because
21 give 20 years out because of the constant change. What |21 it's covered in the next section.
22 if they decide to do solar instead of these power lines. 22 Any disagreement with taking that " provided"
23 I'malittle concerned because we don't know what's going |23 out?
24  to happen ten years from now, let alone 20. 24 All in favor of the amendment that we've just
25 CHMN. KATZ: If they decide that they're not 25 discussed please say "aye."
Page 432 Page 434
1 going to build the second circuit and they're going to 1 (A chorus of "ayes.")
2 replaceit with battery storage or solar, they can filea 2 CHMN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?
3 motion to amend the CEC. But I'd rather not have them 3 MEMBER GRINNELL: Opposed.
4 come back to usif the second phase begins at year 8 and 4 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. It passes.
5 doesn't finished until year 15 or doesn't get started 5 Condition No. 2 --
6 until year 11 and finishes at year 20. | just think that 6 MEMBER PALMER: Mr. Chairman, we voted on the
7 that contingency is helpful. 7 amendment. | move we approve Condition 1 as amended.
8 MEMBER PALMER: | agree. 8 MEMBER HAMWAY : Second.
9 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Gentles. 9 CHMN. KATZ: Any further discussion?
10 MEMBER GENTLES: | agree, Mr. Chairman. 10 (No response.)
11 CHMN. KATZ: Ms. Little, do you move that we 11 CHMN. KATZ: All infavor.
12 amend in accord with what was suggested by Mr. Derstine? |12 (A chorus of "ayes.")
13 MEMBER LITTLE: | do. And could we perhapssee (13 CHMN. KATZ: Opposed?
14 that written in that form? 14 MEMBER GRINNELL: Opposed.
15 MR. DERSTINE: Yes. 15 CHMN. KATZ: The measure passes as amended.
16 CHMN. KATZ: Before we vote on it, we certainly |16 No. 2 begins -- that deals with extensions.
17 will. 17 Beginsat line 19 on page 3 and runs through page 4, line
18 But isthere a second for the amendment to this 18 3.
19 section? 19 Do we have a motion to approve?
20 MEMBER PALMER: Second. 20 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Condition 2.
21 CHMN. KATZ: Do we have -- okay. It'sseconded. |21 MEMBER PALMER: Second.
22 And go ahead and take from line 6 through 22 MEMBER GENTLES: Second.
23 line-- what isnow line 12 and make the amendmentsthat |23 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor.
24 werejust proposed. Add them to the document. 24 (A chorus of "ayes.")
25 MR. DERSTINE: | think they are shown there 25 CHMN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?
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1 (No response.) 1 CHMN. KATZ: The matter passes.
2 CHMN. KATZ: Condition 3isbeginningonline-- | 2 Moving on to page 5 --
3 | believeit's5 on page 4 and runs through line 20 of 3 MEMBER GENTLES: Mr. Chairman, just a point of
4 that page. Andtakealook at it. 4 reference. Isthat how Condition 4 is usually worded,
5 And if we are in agreement with -- and it does 5 with the exception, of course, of the specific
6 have some changes from other counties becausethiswas | 6 municipalities?
7 taken from another CEC. The additions and 7 MEMBER HAMWAY:: Yes. | believeitis.
8 dtrike-throughs are part of it. 8 CHMN. KATZ: | believeitis.
9 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Chairman, may we seeline | 9 MEMBER GENTLES: Okay.
10 18,19, and 20 just to confirm? Oh, | guessline 17. 10 CHMN. KATZ: No. 5ison page5, lines 1 through
11 Excuseme. 11 4.
12 CHMN. KATZ: It'shard to tell. A lot of this 12 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move condition 5.
13 isbetween lines. 13 CHMN. KATZ: Second?
14 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mation to approve. 14 MEMBER PALMER: Second.
15 CHMN. KATZ: Any second? 15 CHMN. KATZ: All infavor.
16 MEMBER FRENCH: Second. 16 MEMBER LITTLE: Mr. Chairman, | have a question.
17 CHMN. KATZ: Any further discussion? 17 CHMN. KATZ: Certainly, Member Little.
18 (No response.) 18 MEMBER LITTLE: Doesthis-- and maybeit'sa
19 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 19 legal question. I'm not sure. Does this condition
20 (A chorus of "ayes.") 20 obligate the applicant to follow the recommendations that
21 CHMN. KATZ: The next section or condition is 21 were made with regard to -- there were several species,
22 Condition No. 4 that begins at line 22 and ends on -- 22 theowl, the burrowing owl, and several speciesthat the
23 well, it ends at the bottom of this page at line 26 or 23 recommendation was that a survey be done before
24 26 1/2. And it dealswith the applicant shall obtain all 24  construction begins.
25 approvals and permits necessary to construct beforethey |25 MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman, Member Little, | do
Page 436 Page 438
1 begin construction of the project. 1 readit asyou have stated, that it does require that we
2 MEMBER HAMWAY : Mr. Chairman, shouldweadd Luke | 2 consult with Arizona Game and Fish concerning the
3 Air Force Base? Do they give apermit? 3 recommendations set forth in their letter to Burns &
4 MR. SIMPSON: It's operational review and 4 McDonnell concerning this project as well as consult with
5 approval of the design. | don't think there'san 5 them on agoing-forward basis and to comply with all of
6 official permit the FAA would issue. 6 their guidance.
7 MEMBER HAMWAY : Sowould we need to put the FAA | 7 CHMN. KATZ: And that's also with respect to
8 inthere? 8 U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.
9 CHMN. KATZ: Well, we have the jurisdiction, 9 Isthere a motion to approve?
10 including, but not limited to, the United States of 10 MEMBER HAMWAY : So moved.
11 American. 11 MEMBER PALMER: Second.
12 MEMBER HAMWAY: Okay. That'sfine. 12 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor.
13 CHMN. KATZ: In my experiencein dealing with |13 (A chorus of "ayes.")
14 Luke, because | do military airport-related mattersin 14 CHMN. KATZ: The condition is approved.
15 reviewing general plans, | think we'refineasis. They 15 Condition 6 requires the applicant design the
16 don't generally issue a permit, but they'll issue a 16 project to incorporate reasonable measures to minimize
17 letter. 17 electrocution of avian species. And we're now dealing
18 MEMBER HAMWAY: Okay. | move Condition4. |18 with guidelines that have been promulgated but not
19 MEMBER DRAGO: Second. 19 formally adopted yet asrules.
20 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion? 20 But is there a motion to approve No. 6.
21 (No response.) 21 MEMBER PALMER: Move Condition 6.
22 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 22 MEMBER HAMWAY : Second.
23 (A chorus of "ayes.") 23 CHMN. KATZ: All infavor.
24 CHMN. KATZ: All opposed. 24 (A chorus of "ayes.")
25 (No response.) 25 CHMN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?
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1 (No response.) 1 16, No. 11, that requires within 130 days of the decision
2 CHMN. KATZ: And that waslines6 through 11 on | 2 theapplicant isrequired to post signsto the extent
3 pageb. 3 authorized by law advising the public of the decision.
4 Moving to line 12, Condition 7. And it requires 4 And we did add not too long ago that the
5 consultation with the State Historic Preservation Office 5 applicant at page 7, line No. 1 and 2, which iswhere the
6 regarding archeological and other cultural resources. 6 condition ends, that applicant shall make every
7 And that'sthrough line 18. 7 reasonable effort to communicate the decision either
8 MEMBER HAMWAY: So moved, Condition No. 7. | 8 approving or disapproving the certificate in digital
9 MEMBER PALMER: Second. 9 media
10 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 10 |sthere any motion to approve?
11 (A chorus of "ayes.") 11 MEMBER PALMER: So moved 11.
12 CHMN. KATZ: Anyone opposed? 12 MEMBER HAMWAY : Second.
13 (No response.) 13 CHMN. KATZ: Any further discussion?
14 CHMN. KATZ: Condition 8. The applicant shall 14 (No response.)
15 comply with the notice and salvage requirements of the |15 CHMN. KATZ: All infavor.
16 ArizonaNative Plant Law. And | won't read the rest of 16 (A chorus of "ayes.")
17 it 17 CHMN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?
18 But do we have a motion? 18 (No response.)
19 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Condition 8. 19 CHMN. KATZ: That's approved.
20 MEMBER PALMER: Second. 20 And welll move on to page 7, Condition No. 12.
21 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 21 MEMBER HAMWAY: : | move Condition 12.
22 (A chorus of "ayes.") 22 MEMBER GENTLES: Second.
23 CHMN. KATZ: Anybody opposed? 23 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion?
24 (No response.) 24 (No response.)
25 CHMN. KATZ: Moving onto line either 24 /2 or |25 CHMN. KATZ: All infavor.
Page 440 Page 442
1 25, butit'sNo.9. 1 (A chorus of "ayes.")
2 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Condition 9. 2 CHMN. KATZ: It goes on page 7, again, lines 4
3 CHMN. KATZ: Any second? 3 through 13.
4 MEMBER GRINNELL: Second. 4 Condition No. 13.
5 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion? 5 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Condition 13.
6 (No response.) 6 MEMBER GENTLES: Second.
7 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 7 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion?
8 (A chorus of "ayes.") 8 (No response.)
9 CHMN. KATZ: Anybody opposed? 9 CHMN. KATZ: All infavor.
10 (No response.) 10 (A chorus of "ayes.")
11 CHMN. KATZ: | didn't mention that that 11 CHMN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?
12 condition goes on to page 6 through line 10. 12 (No response.)
13 Moving on to Condition No. 10. And it deals 13 CHMN. KATZ: Condition 13 is approved.
14 with the discovery of human or funerary remains or 14 Condition 14.
15 objects and the requirement to comply with A.R.S. 41-865 |15 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Condition 14.
16 and 41-844. 16 CHMN. KATZ: Second?
17 MEMBER PALMER: Move Condition 10. 17 MEMBER PALMER: Second.
18 MEMBER HAMWAY : Second. 18 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion?
19 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion? 19 (No response.)
20 (No response.) 20 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor.
21 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 21 (A chorus of "ayes.")
22 (A chorus of "ayes.") 22 CHMN. KATZ: And that's through lines 16 through
23 CHMN. KATZ: Anyone opposed? 23 line 20.
24 (No response.) 24 Line 21 isrecommend Condition 15.
25 CHMN. KATZ: The next provision beginsat line |25 MEMBER PALMER: Move Condition 15.
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1 MEMBER HAMWAY:: Second. 1 The state statutes that | regularly deal with just
2 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 2 require usto notify the affected military facility and
3 (A chorus of "ayes.") 3 not the Department of Defense. But | don't know whether
4 CHMN. KATZ: And | forgot to ask if there was 4 counsel thinksit should be added or not.
5 any discussion, but anybody opposed? 5 MR. DERSTINE: WEell, | would say that the
6 (No response.) 6 requirement to comply with Luke's height limitations and
7 CHMN. KATZ: Condition 16 begins on line 26 or 7 concerns, as | understand it, is enforced by the Federal
8 2612 8 Aviation Administration, and that requirements are
9 MEMBER HAMWAY : Move Condition 16. 9 covered by Condition No. 4.
10 MEMBER DRAGO: Second. 10 This provision deals with the compliance
11 CHMN. KATZ: And that goesontopage 8, linel. |11 certificate and | guess notification. Or | guesswe're
12 Is there a second? 12 on--areweon 19?
13 MEMBER HAMWAY': Yes, therewas, Len. 13 MEMBER HAMWAY:: 18.
14 CHMN. KATZ: Any further discussion? 14 MR. DERSTINE: And so | think if it'sthe
15 (No response.) 15 Committee's desire that we somehow notify Luke Air Force
16 CHMN. KATZ: The condition is approved. 16 Basein addition to these local jurisdictions, | think
17 MEMBER HAMWAY : We've got to take avote. 17 we're okay with that.
18 CHMN. KATZ: I'm getting old and senile. 18 CHMN. KATZ: Do | have amotion to amend to
19 All in favor of Condition 16. 19 include Luke Air Force Base?
20 (A chorus of "ayes.") 20 MEMBER GRINNELL: I'll make that motion.
21 CHMN. KATZ: Anybody opposed? 21 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Grinnell has moved.
22 (No response.) 22 Any second?
23 CHMN. KATZ: The condition passes. 23 MEMBER HAMWAY : Second.
24 Take your timeto read Condition 17, which 24 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion?
25 beginson page 8, line 3, through line 23 on that page. 25 (No response.)
Page 444 Page 446
1 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Condition 17. 1 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor of the amendment.
2 MEMBER PALMER: Second. 2 (A chorus of "ayes.")
3 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion. 3 CHMN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?
4 (No response.) 4 (No response.)
5 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 5 CHMN. KATZ: Wewill add Luke Air Force Base to
6 (A chorus of "ayes.") 6 that condition on page 9.
7 CHMN. KATZ: Anyone opposed. 7 Condition 19?
8 (No response.) 8 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Condition --
9 CHMN. KATZ: Condition 18 requiresthe 9 CHMN. KATZ: Oh wait. Wedidn't vote on the --
10 applicant, APS, to submit the compliance letter annually |10 | think we voted on the amendment.
11 identifying the progress of the project. And it goeson. 11 MEMBER GRINNELL: | move Condition 18 as
12 And that's on page 8, line 25 1/2, going through page 12  amended.
13 No. 9, lineNo. 9. 13 MEMBER HAMWAY: Second.
14 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Condition 18. 14 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion?
15 MEMBER PALMER: Second. 15 (No response.)
16 MEMBER GRINNELL: Quick question, Mr. Chairman. | 16 CHMN. KATZ: All infavor.
17 CHMN. KATZ: Sure. 17 (A chorus of "ayes.")
18 MEMBER GRINNELL: Somebody said earlier about (18 CHMN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?
19 Luke Air Force Base. Wouldn't that be the Department of |19 (No response.)
20 Defense or even the State Department would beincluded in |20 CHMN. KATZ: Now we'll move to Condition 19.
21 dl these? Because they are an interested party, to say 21 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Condition 19.
22 theleast. Isthat necessary for these, or isthisjust 22 MEMBER DRAGO: Second.
23 astate document again? 23 MEMBER LITTLE: Can | propose an amendment that
24 CHMN. KATZ: Any comment from counsel? | don't |24 we also add Luke Air Force Base to that one?
25  know that it hurts us to include Luke Air Force Base. 25 CHMN. KATZ: Was there a second to the motion to
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1 amend? 1 (A chorus of "ayes.")
2 MEMBER HAMWAY : Second. 2 CHMN. KATZ: And that runs through page 10, line
3 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion? 3 4
4 (No response.) 4 MEMBER LITTLE: Mr. Chairman.
5 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 5 CHMN. KATZ: Yes.
6 (A chorus of "ayes.") 6 MEMBER LITTLE: | don't see anything in there
7 CHMN. KATZ: Wewill add Luke Air ForceBaseas | 7 about the areathat is being investigated for
8 aparty to get notified. 8 undergrounding. | don't see any --
9 And now do we have amotion -- 9 CHMN. KATZ: That's the next condition.
10 MEMBER PALMER: Move 19 as amended. 10 MEMBER LITTLE: It's not on the one on my
11 MEMBER HAMWAY:: Second. 11 screen. | apologize.
12 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 12 CHMN. KATZ: While we could have done it
13 (A chorus of "ayes.") 13 differently, thisiswhat was stipulated or agreed to
14 CHMN. KATZ: Anybody opposed? 14 between Arizona Public Service and the City of Peoria.
15 (No response.) 15 Isthat substantially correct, Counsel?
16 CHMN. KATZ: Moving on. The next section -- and |16 MR. GOLESTAN: That's correct, Mr. Chairman,
17 that was Condition 19, lines 11 through 13 on page 9. 17 with one small grammatical correction, but, yes, it has
18 We're now picking up at line 14 with Condition 18 been stipulated to in substance.
19 20 that deals with transfer or assignment of the 19 CHMN. KATZ: And do you agree, Mr. Golestan?
20 certificate. 20 MR. GOLESTAN: Yes.
21 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Condition 20. 21 CHMN. KATZ: And where is the grammatical error
22 MEMBER GRINNELL: Second. 22 in Condition No. -- thiswould be No. 23.
23 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion? 23 MR. GOLESTAN: Line 10 says "constructed.”
24 (No response.) 24  Should be "construed" after "current."
25 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 25 CHMN. KATZ: | don't think we need aformal
Page 448 Page 450
1 (A chorus of "ayes.") 1 motiontoamend. That'sjust agrammatical error. So
2 CHMN. KATZ: Anyone opposed? 2 pleasereadit. Andline 10, "construed" rather than
3 (No response.) 3 "constructed."
4 CHMN. KATZ: It passes. 4 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Condition 23.
5 No. 21 ison line 18 through line 22 of page 9. 5 CHMN. KATZ: Any second?
6 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Condition 21. 6 MEMBER DRAGO: Second.
7 CHMN. KATZ: Isthere a second? 7 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion?
8 MEMBER PALMER: Second. 8 (No response.)
9 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion? 9 CHMN. KATZ: All infavor.
10 (No response.) 10 (A chorus of "ayes.")
11 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 11 CHMN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?
12 (A chorus of "ayes.") 12 (No response.)
13 CHMN. KATZ: Anybody posed? 13 CHMN. KATZ: We now have some Findings of Fact
14 (No response.) 14 and Conclusions of Law that begin on page 10, line 14.
15 CHMN. KATZ: Condition 22 beginsat line | guess |15 And Finding of Fact or Conclusion of Law No. 1:
16 231/2or 24. That runsto line 28 on page 9 or the 16 The Project aids the state and the southwest region of
17 bottom of page 9. And | know that our lines and page 17 the United States in meeting the need for an adequate,
18 numbers may have been changed on the amended document |18 economical, and reliable supply of renewable electric
19 Chairman No. 2. 19 power.
20 But do we have a motion to approve Condition 22? |20 MEMBER PALMER: Move Finding of Fact and
21 MEMBER HAMWAY: So moved. 21 Conclusion of Law 1.
22 MEMBER PALMER: Second. 22 MEMBER HAMWAY : Second.
23 CHMN. KATZ: Discussion? 23 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion?
24 (No response.) 24 (No response.)
25 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 25 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor.
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1 (A chorus of "ayes.") 1 CHMN. KATZ: And the condition does go on to

2 CHMN. KATZ: The second Finding is the project 2 page 11 through line 2.

3 aidsthe state preserving a safe and reliable electric 3 And picking up at line 3, No. 6, Finding of Fact

4 transmission system. 4 and Conclusion of Law. The Project isin the public

5 Motion? 5 interest.

6 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Fact and Conclusionof | 6 And when you're comfortable.

7 Law No. 2. 7 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Finding of Fact No. 6.

8 MEMBER PALMER: Second. 8 MEMBER PALMER: Second.

9 CHMN. KATZ: It's been seconded. 9 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor.

10 Any discussion? 10 (A chorus of "ayes.")
11 (No response.) 11 CHMN. KATZ: Now what we're going to do is take
12 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 12 alook at page No. 2, lines 17 through 22. And I'll read
13 (A chorus of "ayes.") 13 that for the record.
14 CHMN. KATZ: Anyone opposed? 14 At the conclusion of the hearing, the Committee,
15 (No response.) 15 after considering the (i) Application, (ii) evidence,
16 CHMN. KATZ: The condition is approved. 16 testimony and exhibits presented by Applicant and
17 Finding of Fact and Conclusion of Law No. 3 on 17 intervenors, and (iii) comments of the public, and being
18 page 10, line 21 through 22. 18 advised of thelegal requirements of Arizona Revised
19 Do we have amotion? 19 Statutes Section 40-360 through Section 40-360.13, upon
20 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Finding of Fact No. 3. |20 motion duly made and seconded.
21 MEMBER PALMER: Second. 21 And we're now going to take avote on this. And
22 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion? 22 itwill bearoall call vote. And we're going to need a
23 (No response.) 23 motion to -- | think we have amotion right now. | think
24 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 24 weneed avote. And then we approve. Any disagreement?
25 (A chorus of "ayes.") 25 Okay. What I'd liketo do isif you are going

Page 452 Page 454

1 CHMN. KATZ: Anybody opposed? 1 tobevotinginfavor of this CEC asit's currently

2 (No response.) 2 written with whatever amendments we've agreed to and |

3 CHMN. KATZ: It passes. 3 would just ask -- I'm going to start with Mr. Drago.

4 No. 4 isat line 23 through line 25. 4 How do you vote on this matter?

5 MEMBER PALMER: Move Finding of Fact and 5 MEMBER DRAGQO: | vote aye.

6 Conclusion 4. 6 CHMN. KATZ: Ms. Hamway.

7 MEMBER HAMWAY : Second. 7 MEMBER HAMWAY:: | vote aye.

8 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion? 8 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Pamer.

9 (No response.) 9 MEMBER PALMER: | vote aye and would just like
10 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 10 tocommend the applicant on agood application. These
11 (A chorus of "ayes.") 11 arenever easy, and there are always mitigating
12 CHMN. KATZ: Anybody opposed? 12 circumstances. Andthisisimportant. And | appreciate
13 (No response.) 13 thefact that they look far enough out ahead to keep
14 CHMN. KATZ: Finding of Fact and Conclusion of |14 thingsmoving. We can't wait until the 11th hour to do
15 Law No. 5: The conditions placed on the Project in the 15 these. And | appreciate their foresight and preparation
16 Certificate resolve matters concerning balancing theneed |16 in getting these ready.

17 for the Project with itsimpact on the environmental and |17 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. French.

18 ecology and so forth. 18 MEMBER FRENCH: | vote aye.

19 Please read it and if we could have amation. 19 CHMN. KATZ: And Mr. Grinnell.

20 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move Finding of Fact No. 5. |20 MEMBER GRINNELL: I'm sorry. | was on mute.
21 MEMBER PALMER: Second. 21 For me, | guessit's getting alittle easier to

22 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion? 22 read information beforehand and follow it alot easier
23 (No response.) 23 without having 20 letters arrive with changes and

24 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor. 24 additions and everything else.

25 (A chorus of "ayes.") 25 I'm not comfortable with the 10-year extension
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1 or 20-year part. But overal, it'sagood plan. And | 1 everybody for their participation.

2 will leaveit to Mr. Gentles to opine on the public 2 Our next hearing for the Committee Membersis|

3 relationssince that's his bailiwick. 3 believe on March the 14th in Florence, Arizona. And I'm

4 But thank you to all the people present. 4 encouraging everybody, if they can, to be physically

5 | vote aye. 5 presentif you are able. | understand some of you, it's

6 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you. 6 ahardship or along-distancetrip, and I understand

7 Member Little. 7 that.

8 MEMBER LITTLE: | vote aye. 8 Anyway, | appreciate all of you.

9 I would like to second what Mr. Drago said about 9 And the last thing | would ask iswe need APS to
10 theapplication. And | would aso like to encouragethe |10 make sure that this CEC, as approved and edited, gets
11 applicant and the City of Peoriato do everything 11 sentto Tod. Tod and | will probably meet tomorrow or on
12 possibleto get that section of the line underground. | 12 Friday, and I'll make sureit'sin proper order and sign
13 know that it's very expensive to underground transmission |13 off onit, and we'll get it back to you.

14 linesof thisvoltage. However, particularly when we 14 Thank you al.

15 have acustomer who iswilling to bear the cost, | think 15 (The hearing concluded at 1:49 p.m.)
16 that it'simportant that we recognize the needs of the 16

17 publicin these aress. 17

18 Thank you. 18

19 CHMN. KATZ: And you vote how again? Aye. 19

20 MEMBERLITTLE: Aye. 20

21 CHMN. KATZ: And last, but not least, 21

22  Mr. Gentles. 22

23 MEMBER GENTLES: | vote aye. 23

24 And | would just like to say that | do 24

25 appreciate the applicant's forward thinking and their 25

Page 456 Page 458

1 work ahead of time with the public to get their input. ; ;’:;:Y";FAE?I’:;‘PA §

2 And while we redlize there are some people that say they ) _

3 weren't notified or didn't receive the notification, I'm 3 aken Feforkhowy that the foregeing proceedings yers.

4 comfortablewith the process that they followed tomake | 4 Shiey, 20 accurats eford of the procgecings, o1] done, to_

5 surethat notification was appropriate. 5 Mé?)repr!:1?rl1(“canu(rj1(():lménr‘ bnz/ymgi}récsg!iogﬁl:land and thereafter reduced

6 And so while | do Comp”ment the applicant- I 6 I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of the

7 don't want people to think I'm going soft or anything. 7 parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the

8 I'm gOi ng to keEp asharp eyeon how this pUbliC outreach 8 . I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical

9 works. Butinthiscase, | think they did afairly O igat o S M aCEs) Aol () and ix,

10 decent job. 10 Arizona, this 6th day of march, 2022.
11 With that, | vote aye. 11
12 CHMN. KATZ: And | vote aye. 12
13 And | do want to thank the lawyers for their 13
14 organized preparation. And | trust that both the City of |14 _CAROLYN T. SULLIVAN
) A ) . . X Arizona Certified Reporter
15 Peoriaand APSwill continue to negotiate in good faith 15 No. 50528
16 to determine the best route in the subject areain 16
17 dispute asto whether it should be undergrounded or its 17 )
18 location or otherwise modified. 18 with the othical oblSgations cet Forth in o> compiied
19 And that being said, as| said, | vote aye. 19 " 77206 (D (9 (1) through (6).
20 And | think there are eight of us. And the vote 20
21 waseight in favor and zero opposed. 21
22 Is there anything further that we need to take 22
23 care of before we recess this proceeding? 23
24 (No response.) 24 COASH & COASH, INC,
25 CHMN. KATZ: Hearing nothing, | want tothank |5 ArTzona Beogaseed T
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BE | T REMEMBERED t hat t he above-entitled and
nunbered matter cane on regularly to be heard before the
Ari zona Power Plant and Transm ssion Line Siting
Comm ttee at the A endale Cvic Center, 5750 West { enn
Drive, dendale, Arizona, comrencing at 9:08 a.m on the

2nd day of March, 2022.

BEFORE: PAUL A KATZ, Chairman

LEONARD DRAGO, Departnent of Environnental Quality
DAVI D FRENCH, Arizona Departnent of \WAter Resources
JAMVES PALMER, Agriculture Interests
MARY HAMAMAY, | ncorporated Cities and Towns
RI CK GRI NNELL, Counti es
(vi a vi deoconf erence)
KARL CGENTLES, CGeneral Public
(vi a vi deoconf erence)
MARGARET "TOBY" LITTLE, PE, General Public
(vi a videoconf erence)

APPEARANCES:
For the Applicant:

SNELL & WLMER, L.L.P.

M. J. Matthew Derstine
400 East Van Buren Street
Suite 1900

Phoeni x, Ari zona 85004

and

Pl NNACLE WEST CAPI TAL CORPORATI ON
Ms. Linda Benally

Seni or Attorney, Regul atory

400 North Fifth Street

Phoeni x, Arizona 85004
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CHWN. KATZ: Good norning, everybody. | think
everybody has their norning cups of coffee filled, so |
think we're ready to get started. This is the third day
of our hearing in the West Valley Central 230kV

Connecti on Project.

And we now have approximate -- it's al nobst ten
m nutes after 9, and we'l|l get started.
Counsel, we are now, | think, getting to the

noi se-rel ated environnental issues.

MR. DERSTINE: Thank you, M. Chairman. Good
norni ng. Menbers of the Conmittee, good norning.

CHWN. KATZ: Hold on just a second. | notice
that Menber Little and Menber Ginnell always have their
caneras on. But | would ask you if you have your canera
on that your video is on so that we nmake sure we have a
quorum But | would appreciate it if you are
participating virtually.

That being said, M. Derstine, please feel free
to begin.

MR. DERSTI NE: Thank you, M. Chairnman.

MR. DERSTINE: W left off yesterday.

M. Sinpson took us through 90 percent or 95 percent of
t he environnental studies that were perfornmed --

CHWN. KATZ: Let ne just interrupt you for just

a second. I'mgetting a double sound. It's delayed, so

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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| *' m hearing an echo.
(Of the record for technical issue.)

CHWN. KATZ: kay.

DAVI D W LEY, KEVI N DUNCAN, RANDALL SI MPSQON,
AND KRI STI N DARR,
call ed as wtnesses as a panel on behalf of Applicant,
havi ng been previously sworn by the Chairman to speak the
truth and nothing but the truth, were exam ned and

testified as foll ows:

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON ( Cont . )
BY MR DERSTI NE:
Q We covered the bul k of your environnenta
anal ysis, but one of the topics that any applicant
seeking a CEC fromthis Conmmittee is required to study
and present to the Commttee is noise inpacts,
antici pated noi se of the project.

M. WIley, you're going to cover the noise
studi es that was perforned for the Wst Valley Central
Proj ect .

A (M. Wley) Certainly. APS perfornmed noise
i npact anal ysi s under various weat her conditions,
including light rain conditions and fair weat her
condi ti ons.

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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If you take a | ook at the right-hand screen,
you'll see two different plots. The top plot here
represents fair weather conditions. 1In the worst case,
it would be about 13 decibels of audible noise in fair
weat her conditions. The bottom pl ot shows noi se inpacts
under light rain conditions. Under light rain
conditions, we can expect up to 25 decibels of audible
noi se.

If you take a |l ook at the tenperature gauge, if
you will, on the right-hand side, it gives you sone
insight into what | evel that would be. And 40 deci bels
woul d be a soft whisper from5 feet away. And, again,
the worst-case scenario of light rain, you would be about
25 deci bel s.

Q The noi se as you've nodeled it here, the noise
that woul d be generated by the segments of the project,
is it conparable, the sane as, what we would antici pate
from other 230kV Iines on APS s systenf

A (M. Wley) Yes, it is. It is conparable with
ot her 230kV lines. These lines are located in
i ndustrial, residential, and agricultural areas and, as
you heard on the site tour yesterday, the operations of
Luke Air Force. So we do feel that there will be m ni mal
noi se inpacts due to this project.

Q Anyt hi ng el se you want to add on noi se i npacts

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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or antici pated noi se inpacts?

A (M. Wley) No.

Q So, M. Sinpson, that takes us back to you to
kind of wap this all up for the Committee in terns of
t he environnental anal ysis, your analysis and your
opi nions regardi ng the inpact of the project.

And | guess, ultimately, is it conpatible? 1Is
it environnentally conpatible, to use the termthat's
applied to these projects and that the Conmttee takes
i nto consideration?

A (M. Sinpson) Thank you.

Yes. Everything we've discussed during the
hearings and even in the field yesterday is included in
our application and exhibits. There's a fair anount of
detail in those studies. Al of our nethodol ogies, al
of the results of our inpact assessnent is included in
there as well as conclusions for each of the different
envi ronnment al di sci plines.

So we feel pretty confident in our findings
here. This was a | ong process, and we had a | ot of good
engagenent with the public and the agencies. So the
concl usions that we're naki ng are based on the technical
studi es we've conpleted, the field work we've done, and
the participation w've had fromthe public and agenci es.
And it also included a | ot of analysis from APS on the
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operations and engineering side. And all that bl ended
together to cone up with these proposed routes that we
have deened environnental ly conpati bl e.

A couple things I'd like to point out is that
because the lines are primarily located in industri al
areas or areas that we anticipate will be industrial in
the future, they do conformto the applicable general and
conpr ehensi ve plans that each of the jurisdictions have
that we cross. And, you know, that was an inportant
early consideration when we first started gathering data.
And as the route processing was done, it becane evi dent
that that was the best location for this project.

We are | ocated adjacent to 5 1/2 m | es of
existing transm ssion lines, so about half the project
area. We have 8 mles of roadway that we're paralleling,
whi ch has a high degree of conpatibility, oftentines
sharing common rights-of-way. W have 1 mle of
rail road, and we have four substations which exist and
one that will be build in relation to this project, that
bei ng the TS-2 Substati on.

Overall, our conclusion is that we don't have
any adverse inpacts to existing and planned | and uses,
recreation resources, visual resources, cultural
resources, and bi ol ogi cal resources.

There are inpacts out there. W've disclosed
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those in our findings. |It's very difficult to construct
one of these projects wthout having sone sort of inpact;
but considering the whole environnent of this area, these
routes mnimze the inpacts and don't have any
substantial inpacts that woul d be consi dered as, you
know, a restriction for developing this type of project.

Agai n, the design standards that APS enpl oys on
these projects as well as selective mtigation nmeasures
are intended to further reduce any inpacts. They do
i ncl ude a number of things, for exanple, using dul
nmet al -fini sh towers, spanning of certain sensitive
features that may be in a given area. Nonspecul ar
conductors. A lot of that is kind of part of their
standard desi gn nowadays with these m nes. And that
hel ps to reduce sone of the inpacts.

Gt her areas, you know, they may take specific
actions to reduce inpacts. W've heard sone about the
potential for undergrounding. That would be a specific
mtigation neasure that they could include if that is the
deci sion the Commttee nakes to reduce i npacts.

And, again, | nentioned this yesterday, we have
seven letters of support fromvarious entities, Luke Air
Force Base being an inportant part of that. It included
letters fromthe agencies that are responsible for
adm ni stering plans and approvals in this area.
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And then a couple of key | and devel opers that we
wor ked very closely with who own a | arge portion of the
open space or the developable land in the area. So we
had a | ot of discussions with | andowners. And at the end
of those discussions, we got a |ot of support fromthem
And we have an understandi ng of how their designs are
going to go forward, and they have expressed pretty
explicitly where they would |Ii ke the |ocation of the
lines to be. And | think that's going to hel p APS when
they nove into their right-of-way acquisition phase and
al so their design phase. It should really do a lot to
hel p nove that process al ong.

So, overall, in conclusion, I want to enphasize
the total process taking many nonths, and | think we had
a lot of support fromthe community. And we have the
best routes given the over 50 mles of route alternatives
t hat we studi ed.

MR. DERSTINE: Menber Ginnell, | think | saw
you on the screen, but was there a question you had?

MEMBER GRI NNELL: No. | was just going to -- |
was back to the previous slide that discussed -- one of
our conditions is about radio waves and radi o towers,
television. | just wanted to nmake sure that that's al
been addressed.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: M. Sinpson, can you speak to
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that. Are you aware of any potential for interference

wth radio towers or radi o conmuni cation or cell towers

wWthin proximty to the new proposed transm ssion |ines?
A (M. Wley) Yes. Thank you for the question.

APS di d eval uate those types of interference,
and that is included in Exhibit I, and there were no
expected interferences.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Thank you.

MR. DERSTINE: Thank you for raising that,
Menber Ginnell.

MR, SIMPSON: This question was asked yest erday,
and maybe this is a good place to introduce that. There
was a question about the proximty of the residences
wthin a half mle of the routes. And | did do sone
tabul ations to identify the nunber of residences that are

in proximty to the route just for perspective. These

aren't precise counts. | wasn't able to go out in the
field to verify them but | used sone pretty reliable
aerial inmagery and feel |ike these nunbers are fairly

accurate or at |least representative of the nunber of
hones near the |ines.

The Agua Fria Ranch community, which is north of
Peoria, this long stretch -- or, excuse ne -- north of
Adive Avenue in Youngtown is one of the communities
that's adjacent to the line. And if you |look at a half
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mle fromthe line, it takes you approximately hal fway up
t he subdivision. And | estinmated there to be about 290
honmes in that area. So give or take 300 would be a
reasonabl e reference for that.

For the north side of the Suncliff Subdivision,
which is | ocated between Aive and Northern, | estinmated
there to be approximately 400.

At the south end of the Agua Fria -- or, excuse
me -- Suncliff Subdivision along the Agua Fria River, it
narrows here. This was one of our stops yesterday. |
estimated there to be about 145 hones in that area within
a half mle of route.

And then in the Dysart Ranchettes area al ong
Peoria, | estimated to be approxinmately 125, which would
be up in this vicinity right here. So a half mle north
of Peoria Avenue.

And then we have sone of those nore isolated
rural residences we pointed out in the field tour, a few
of which exist along Aive Avenue. There's approximately
ten in this area. There are a few along Litchfield Road,
whi ch are set inside the farm ng operations there. And
there are about three on the east side of the road and
then two that |I'm aware of on the west side.

So, in total, approximately 975. So give or
take 1,000 woul d be a reasonable estinmate within a half
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mil e.

Maybe to further break that down to give sone
perspective, if you were to half that distance, so a
quarter mle, you would probably expect 500 residences.

At an eighth mle, which is about 660 feet, so two
football field lengths, which is a pretty good di stance,
you could assune a quarter of that. So maybe 2- to 300
woul d be a reasonable estinmate for that.

And so | think the question is why don't we get
nore participation. And | actually feel |ike when I
conpare this to a lot of projects |I've worked on, we had
fairly good participation. [It's not uncomrmobn to have
fairly large study areas and a | ot of population. |If you
get two or three hundred comments, it's probably a pretty
good process, pretty good results. Sonetines we work on
projects where we get very little input, and sonetines
you get a | ot.

But conpared to sone projects in the West
Valley, | think we got a very simlar |evel of
participation. And I think, as Ms. Darr said, the people
that are in close proximty to the routes are probably
the nost likely to participate, and I think that's what
we're seeing to sone degree here.

Q BY VR DERSTINE: And | guess to close the point
on the nunber of residences, whether they were a half
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mle away or 660 feet away, they were w thin our study
area, notification area, and received newsletters and had
an opportunity to provide conmment ?

A (M. Sinpson) Yeah. Qur notification would
have been at |l east a mle outside of any proposed
alternative, so quite a broad area.

Q All right. M. Wley, | need to circle back
wth you on one item and that is APS Exhi bit 20, which
is the letter fromM. Abinah, the Uilities Division
director. As always, the Chairman solicits input from
Commi ssion Staff. |In this case, it's a letter dated

February 23, 2021. Do you have that letter in front of

you?

A (M. Wley) Yes, | do.

Q Under the -- on the second page under
Concl usi ons and Recommendations, it states: Based on

Staff's review of the Application, as well as the
Applicant's response to Staff's issued data request,
Staff believes the reliability and safety of the grid
woul d be mai ntained wthin the proposed 230kV
transm ssi on |ines.
Did | read that correctly.

A (M. Wley) Yes, you did.

Q The conclusions go on to state that Staff
reconmends inclusion, as a condition of the CEC, the

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | || 03/ 02/ 2022 344

standard cathodi c study condition to evaluate the risk of
any existing natural gas or hazardous |iquid pipelines.

Is that condition contained in APS s proposed
form of CEC?

A (M. Wley) Yes, it is.

CHWN. KATZ: And | would comment we woul d
include it whether or not you had al ready done so, but |
appreci ate that you've done that.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: And then the last point raised
in APS-20, Staff's recommendati ons, Staff further
recommends inclusion, as a condition to this CEC, the
requi renment for the Applicant to | ower the affected
transm ssion structures on Route A to at or below 1,235
Mean Sea Level as requested by Luke Air Force Base.

And | think what they're referring to there is
to Luke's letter, which is APS-15, Luke Air Force Base
| etter dated January 21, 2022.

How do we translate 1,235 nean sea |level as a
height restriction into structures? As | understand it,
APS i s requesting authorization to build structures that
w ||l support the segnents, the line segnents of this
project, that will range up to 195 feet.

Is that at or below the 1,235 nean sea | evel

hei ght ?
A (M. Wley) | believe that could vary dependi ng
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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on the specific |location of that structure. However, APS
w Il adhere to Luke's requirenent of being at 1,235 feet
wthin their APZ.

Q Ckay. So the request in terns of heights that |
think M. Duncan covered for the structures, we're happy
to include and abi de by Luke's request and include a
condition in the CEC that ensures that we don't exceed
that height Ilimtation on Route A, which is the specific
focus of Luke's comment, right?

A (M. Wley) Yes.

Q Al right. M. Sinpson gave us the concl usions,
t he environnental concl usions, and kind of wapped up all
the issues that cone into play when we're devel oping a
project like this froman environnental perspective.

I wanted to circle back with the nenbers of the
panel and see if you had any final comments. Maybe we'll
start with you, M. WIley, since you started us off back
on Monday wth a discussion of the purpose and need for
t he project.

A (M. Wley) Yes. | believe that the three
separate lines that we're requesting do neet the needs of
our custoner, and they will serve the ultimte | oad of
245 nmegawatts.

Additionally, this allows themto neet their
reliability requirenents w thout needi ng backup di esel
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generation and along with that, the em ssions and the
noi se i npact that that would bring.
Lastly, it allows us to continue to allow for
econom ¢ devel opnent within the project area.
Q There's a bullet there that says Regul atory
Requirenents. | think that refers to the topics that you
and | just covered in terns of Staff's requests in terns

of proposed conditions for the CEC, is that right?

A (M. Wley) Yes, that's correct.
Q Before | get to you, Ms. Darr, let nme turn back
to M. Duncan. |If you have anything you'd like to --

final words you would like to say to the Conmttee
concerni ng the project and aspects of the project for
whi ch you were responsible. And |I've got sone funny
f eedback on nmy mc at the noment.

A (M. Duncan) Thank you, M. Derstine.

So I just want to thank ny fell ow panelists here
for the thorough and accurate story that they've told
about this project and just want to concl ude by
enphasi zing that this project neets APS s requirenents to
fulfill our custoner request. And this project is
designed not only to fulfill that purpose and need but to
neet it in a way that mnim zes the inpacts while still
meeti ng that purpose and need.

As M. Sinpson stated, it does not elimnate
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i mpacts. Projects of this nature have i npacts. But we
have diligently worked to identify a project route and
segnents that are conpatible. Conpatible with the nature
of the study area. Conpatible. They're not zero inpact.
They do have inpacts, but they are conpatible, and they
m ni m ze those i npacts.

We have done a diligent and thorough public
outreach process to informthe public and gai n support
when avail abl e but also identify those i ssues and work to
address those issues and have done so as best we can
while still nmeeting the objectives that we have to
ful fill our purpose and need for our custoners.

As M. Sinpson testified, we went through a very
t horough siting study. And through regular and routine
processes that this Commttee has seen before and
approved projects through, we followed this process to
identify a reasonable set of alternatives that were
f easi bl e and constructabl e, provided opportunity for our
st akehol ders to hear about those and provide input. And
we have designed, again, a project that best fits all
t hose.

And as M. Sinpson has stated, the fact that we
have w despread support frommultiple jurisdictions in a
very conplex area is a testanent to the thoroughness of
our public outreach, the thoroughness of our stakehol der
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outreach, as well as the fact that we have identified a
project that does not conflict with the interests of
these multiple jurisdictions and the objectives that each
of those agenci es have.

Seven letters frommultiple jurisdictions
supporting our process or even supporting the proposed
route is a trenendous achi evenment on a project of this
nature and should not be discounted in terns of what that
means for your consideration.

Again, this project is located in conpatible
spaces, neets the project purpose and need, is
environnmental ly conpati ble, and neets the objectives of
the factors that we are asked to consider for any project
that we bring forward in front of this Conmttee.

So thank you for your consideration on our
pr oj ect .

Q Ms. Darr, | know that you know, now havi ng been
before this Commttee, that the Commttee takes very
seriously the need for public outreach and how i nmport ant
that is to engage the public and getting their feedback
and i nput as best we can. | nean, we can't force people
to open their mail box and read what's in there, but we do
our best, through a variety of channels, to conmunicate
W th them about our project and ask themto give us input
and feedback that we can then use that inforns our
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deci si ons about the project.

Way don't you give us your wap-up and any fi nal
words you'd like to present to the Commttee on the
outreach and public engagenment canpai gn

A (Ms. Darr) Thank you, M. Derstine.

Chai rman Katz and Menbers of the Coormttee, |
appreciate this very much, being ny life's work, public
and st akehol der invol venent and engagenent. | appreciate
t he i nportance that you place on stakehol der and public
i nvol venent .

It is never appropriate to apply a cookie-cutter
approach to stakehol der and public involvenent. And we
had sone uni que chal | enges, as on all projects, but we
had sone is uni que challenges on this project, one being
t he COVI D-19 pandem ¢ and anot her being the conplexity
and rapi d devel opnent of the study area. And it is
al ways a challenge to engage the public in infrastructure
projects. It is never easy to get a | ot of response.

But we did develop a deliberate strategy and had a robust
attenpt to reaching out to the public in this area.

Just to recap, we began by interacting with the
various affected jurisdictions in the study area, and we
interacted with themthroughout the process as the
process unf ol ded.

We mail ed newsletters three tines during the
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project to approximately 38,000 residents and busi nesses
in this area.

W had a website that provided information and
opportunity to comment that was |ive throughout this
process and is still |ive today.

We held live virtual neetings so that we could
have direct | want to say face-to-face interaction. It
wasn't in person, but we still could see faces.

Al so sone other direct interaction was achi eved
t hrough the tel ephone hotline. | had the opportunity to
speak with several residents and property owners in the
area and explain the project and answer their questions.

We al so reached out -- APS reached out via
social nedia and did that by paid advertisenents, which
is different than organic posts because they are targeted
to specific areas.

And APS al so sent enmils to custonmers in the
study area. So if soneone didn't read their mail, nmaybe
they read their email.

Finally, we had an enmil address where people
were able to enail us. It was ne that answered those
emails. And so we were able to have interaction that
way .

I'"'mvery pleased to have the opportunity to work
on the project and very pleased to have had this
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opportunity to participate in these hearings. So | thank
you, and that's all.
Q Thank you.
MR. DERSTINE: M. Chairman, that concl udes our

case. |I'mready to nake our w tnesses avail able for
cross. | can nove our exhibits at this time, or | can
wait till the conpletion of the cross. Watever your

pl easure is.

CHWN. KATZ: If you wanted to offer the exhibits
that are marked as APS exhibits, you may do so.

MR. DERSTINE: All right. | would nove the
adm ssion of the foll ow ng: APS-1, which is the
application for Certificate of Environnental
Conpatibility. M. Duncan spoke to that.

APS Exhi bits 2, 3, 4, and 5 are the w tness
background slides that were used and/or part of APS-6.

And APS-6 is marked as the entire slide deck,
t he Power Point slides that were presented here in the
hearing roomon the |left and the right screen and were
presented by Zoomto the Menbers of the Commttee who are
appearing virtually and to nenber of the public. The
W t nesses have testified to those slides and testified to
t he accuracy of the information contained in those slides
and naps.

APS-8 -- 1'll skip APS-7 for the nonent.
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APS-8 is the Affidavit of Publication.

M. Duncan testified concerning the Notice of Hearing
t hat was published and the evidence of the publication
cont ai ned i n APS- 8.

APS-9, the proof of the delivery of the
application to the library locations as required by the
Chai rman's Procedural Order.

APS-10 is the proof of the website posting.

That was testified to by M. Duncan.

APS-11 is the proof of notice to the affected
jurisdictions. Again, M. Duncan covered that in his
t esti nony.

APS-12 is the proof of the posting of the signs
that we saw on the route tour but are also included wth
the map that's included on APS-12.

The APS-13 is the summary of public outreach
that was testified to extensively by Ms. Darr. APS-13 is
sinply a narrative description or a sunmary of what's
contained in Exhibit J to the application.

APS Exhi bits 14, 15, 16, 17, and 18 are the
letters of support that M. Duncan and M. Sinpson just
referred to that came as a result of the engagenent and
outreach with those agencies or entities.

APS-19 is the route itinerary and the map that
we foll owed on our tour on Tuesday norni ng.
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APS-20 is the letter dated February 23, 2022,
from Conm ssion Staff that M. WIley spoke to just a
nonent ago.

APS-21 is a photo of the riser structure that
will be utilized if -- as agreed to with the City of
Peoria, APS s investigation of the possibility of
under groundi ng al ong the segnent of Route G that borders
on the City of Peoria. |If that segnment can be
under grounded, we would need to utilize a riser
structure. So APS-21 supplenents the structures that are
presented in Exhibit Gto the application. And our
intent would be that that photograph would serve as an
exanpl e of the type of structure that we request the
Conmttee to approve as an alternative to the overhead
construction along Route Gif we're able to do that
safely and reliably.

22 is the letter fromthe Gane and Fi sh
Departnent that M. Sinpson spoke to.

APS-23 is the letter fromthe State H storic
Preservation Ofice that M. Sinpson testified to.

So | would nove those exhibits. It would be

APS-1 through 6, 8 through 23 for adm ssion.

APS-24 is the formof the CEC | know,
M. Chairman, you'll be having your own form of CEC that
we'll screen. But | guess | would nove the adm ssi on of
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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24 and i nclude that sinply because the corridor map and
the corridor description are contained in APS-24. And
what ever formof CEC we ultimately utilize, | think
APS- 24 includes the map and the corridor description that
we woul d ask that the Commttee consider and approve as
part of any CEC that's granted for the project. So 24
woul d be i ncl uded.

| skipped APS-7 for the reason that that was an
early draft of a proposed formof CEC, and it's been
repl aced by 24.

So everything other than 7, APS-1 through 24.

CHWN. KATZ: Are there any objections?

MR. GOLESTAN. Just sone clarification. [It's ny
under standi ng that APS-7 contains the changes that we
di scussed about undergrounding. |Is it reflected anywhere
el se?

VMR. DERSTI NE: It's also reflected i n APS- 24,
t he sane | anguage.

MR. GOLESTAN. The sane portion is in 247

MR. DERSTINE: Exactly the sane | anguage in
terms of the form of CEC

In includes -- what are the changes,
Ms. Benally, if you can comrent, between 7 to 247

MS. BENALLY: Good norning, M. Chairman and
Commi ttee.
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The changes that are in APS-24 as conpared to 7
is essentially the corridor map has noved to final form
for the Commttee's consideration. So it excludes all
the references to "proposed,"” "preferred,” all of those
types of descriptives. So it's in final form if you
will, that could essentially be attached to the proposed
formof order that is voted on by the Commttee today.

MR. DERSTINE: So | guess, speaking to
M. CGol estan's question about the parties, APS and the
City of Peoria, as an intervenor, have had ongoi ng
di scussi ons about resolving the City's concerns about
Route G And so we had included, | believe, sone draft
| anguage t hat we've been di scussi ng.

But | don't know that that | anguage has nade its
way into 24. 1Is that correct, Ms. Benally?

MS. BENALLY: The potential to underground a
segnent of Route G based on investigation that APS is
performng or will perform is illustrated in the
call-out No. 12 in the corridor map. The narrative
description al so, under Route G does indicate or explain
that the potential underground corridor would extend up
to 2,000 feet west of the existing El Sol-Wite Tanks
230kV corridor. So it does include that | anguage in the
event that that undergrounding option is avail able for us
to construct.
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MR. DERSTINE: And we can table APS-24. Again,
it's the formof --

CHWN. KATZ: Well, at this juncture, Exhibits 1
t hrough 6 have been offered into evidence. 7 has not
been. Exhibits 8 through 24 have been admtted.

I will admt all of those except No. 24 at this
time, and that can be offered at a later point in tine.

(Exhibits APS-1 through APS-6 and APS-8 through
APS-23 were adnmitted into evidence.)

CHWN. KATZ: The other thing | did before
cross-exam nation is | spoke with all three of the
attorneys earlier today. And Tod, with ny hel p, has
redrafted the CEC with very m nor changes but hasn't yet
sent it out to the parties because we were waiting to see
whet her or not we were going to add an additi onal
condi tion with agreed-upon | anguage regardi ng the
potential or the investigation for potentially
under groundi ng t he segnent.

And if the parties have approved of that
| anguage, |1'd like you to send that to Tod Brewer. Tod
w Il incorporate that into Chairman Exhibit No. 1 and 2.
No. 1 will be in PDF format so it is permanent. And the
other version wll be in Word. And we will wordsmth
things as we go and offer any amendnents and so forth as
we proceed. But | don't know if we have that | anguage or
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not agreed to.

MR. DERSTINE: W do. |It's ny understanding
that APS has agreed to | anguage that's suggested by the
City through counsel. W've reviewed it, and this
proposed condition | anguage is acceptable. W can enail
it to Tod now, and then it can be screened and consi dered
by the Commttee when we get there.

CHWN. KATZ: That's fine. And go ahead and

email it to Tod indicating that -- well, you don't need
to. | already texted himearlier that there may be an
addi tional condition. Once that's added, I'll instruct

whoever you want us to send the Wrd version and the PDF
version, to. You'll let Tod know where to send that.
I'll have Tod send that by email to the Commttee Menbers
so those who are appearing virtually wll have it. Those
who are here will see it up on the screen. But if you
could get ne a hard copy of the CEC once it's revised and
Tod sends it to you, | would appreciate it.

MR. DERSTINE: We'Il do it.

CHWN. KATZ: W can go ahead wth

Cross-exam nati on.

CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR GOLESTAN:
Q Ckay. Good nobrning. Let's see. Who shall |
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start wth.
| think Ms. Darr.
A (Ms. Darr) Yes.
Q Since you finished, | guess we'll start with
you.

Ckay. On your direct exam nation, you nentioned
that you had sone comments -- you had comments in nmany
different fornms that nentioned various routes or
menti oned Aive and Northern route. For the coments
that you receive online, do you confirmthat those
comments cone fromw thin the study area?

A (Ms. Darr) People -- sone people provided their
address, and others did not.
Q Ckay. So when you have an address, are you able

to confirmif that comment came fromw thin the study

area?
A (Ms. Darr) | would be able to do that, yes.
Q Did you do that in this case?
A (Ms. Darr) | have not gone through each of the

comments and confirned that they are fromwithin the
study area.

Q And then in the instances where you don't have
an address, you're unable to confirm whether that person
is wthin the study area?

A (Ms. Darr) Correct.
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Q You di scussed a | ot of outreach in your direct
exam nation. You specifically nentioned the inportance
of outreach to dendale and EIl Mrage, working with them
And that in working with them they were accommbdated and
change were nmade. Could you describe what sorts of
changes were made to this proposal as a result of the
col |l aboration with 3 endale and EIl Mrage.

A (Ms. Darr) 1'd like to go back to the first
question really quickly based another thought, and I wll
answer your question.

Q Thanks.

A (Ms. Darr) Sone people didn't necessarily give
an address, but they said, My house is in this
nei ghbor hood, or things like that. So there were ways to
infer that a comrment cane fromthe study area other than
peopl e providing an address. Not very nany people
provi ded their actual, physical address, but there was
sone descriptive | anguage.

Q But the point is, even with an address, you
didn't go through and confirmthenf

A (Ms. Darr) No, | have not done that.

Q And even with the descriptive address, you
didn't go through and confirmthat sonmebody that says
they live in the Ranchettes -- Dysart Ranchettes, you
didn't go through and confirmthat they lived in the
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Ranchettes comunity, right?

A (Ms. Darr) No, sir.

Q Goi ng back to the outreach that you di scussed on
direct exam nation. You specifically nmentioned d endal e
and El Mrage as being inportant to your outreach. So
I'd i ke to know what sorts of changes that were nade to
this application essentially in response to the feedback
you received fromd endale and EIl M rage.

A (Ms. Darr) M. Sinpson would have to answer
what sorts of changes woul d have been nmade. But what |
was referring to was those entities providing i nformation
about | and devel opnent.

Q Ckay. 1'd like to nove on to tal k about COVI D
because | know you nentioned, obviously, doing this
outreach during COVID was a uni que chal | enge, obviously
unprecedented. | don't think anybody has |ived through a
pandem c. Nobody is over 100 years old, so nobody has
l'ived through a pandem c here.

I just want to tal k about staffing. D d you

have any difficulties with staffing during this tinme.

A (Ms. Darr) No, | did not.

Q Any difficulties with mail or things of that
nat ure?

A (Ms. Darr) | wouldn't be able to answer that

because APS did the mailing in-house.

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | || 03/ 02/ 2022

Q So you're not aware of any mailing difficulties?
A (Ms. Darr) | wasn't nmade aware of any.
Q And i n anal yzi ng the nunber of your responses

overall that you' ve received, how woul d you conpare the
responses that you received to this application that
happened during COVID to other projects that you' ve
wor ked on before COVID? Did you ever see a substantia

difference in the nunber of responses?

A (Ms. Darr) | did not.
Q In any fornmat?
A (Ms. Darr) | would say that we are receiving

nore responses nowadays on this and ot her projects than
we generally woul d because of the availability of the
i nformati on online.

Q Ckay. But you don't have any specific nunbers
to say it's nore or |ess or otherw se?

A (Ms. Darr) | don't have any specific nunbers,
but | have hundreds of projects of experience to base ny
st at enent on.

Q Ckay. | want to nove to tal k about the

mai | i ngs, because you nentioned on direct exam nation

that you didn't send themcertified nmail. Does that nean

they weren't tracked in any way with the U S. nmail?
A (Ms. Darr) |[|I'mnot aware of any way to track
US mil.
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Q And you didn't send it with a nechani sm wher eby

it could be tracked? Let ne ask it that way.

A (Ms. Darr) | didn't send it. APS s mail house
sent it.
Q Ckay. That's a good answer to ny question. But

you're not aware that APS' s nmail house sent it with any
tracki ng nechani sn? That's what you said in your direct

exam nation. They were not sent certified.

A (Ms. Darr) They were not sent certified to ny
know edge.
Q Ckay. And is that a best practice? | nean, in

this sort of thing, does that neet best practices in your
i ndustry, sending these U.S. mail, not tracked or
certified?

A (Ms. Darr) That is standard practice. | have
had i nstances on other projects where there's a very
smal |l area and we need access to a person's property.
And if we can't get themto answer the door, if we knock
on the door or sonething, that sonething would be sent
certified mail. Very snmall nunbers. |In an area of
38, 000 addresses, | have never experienced that size of
mai | i ng being sent certified.

Q You al so tal ked about paid advertisenents such
as ones posted on social nedia, including Facebook. Do
you renenber that di scussion?
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A (Ms. Darr) Yes.
Q And you nenti oned Facebook uses geofencing to

determ ne the boundaries of the targets of those ads.

Ri ght ?

A (Ms. Darr) Yes.

Q If we look at -- if we |ook at APS-6, the
project study area -- let ne pull a page nunber for
you -- that included the geofencing. Do you renmenber

| ooki ng at that slide?

A (Ms. Darr) Yes.

Q Ckay. That's APS-6. The physical page nunber
on that is 93. The digital PDF page nunber is 100. Let
me know when you're | ooking at that sheet.

A (Ms. Darr) Okay. |'ve got it.

Q Ckay. So this project study area, again, APS-6,
page 93, PDF page 100, that shows the overall study area,

right?
A (Ms. Darr) Yes.
Q And then within that study area, it shows three

circles indicating the geofencing | ocations of the target

ads?
A (Ms. Darr) Yes.
Q You would agree with nme that the three

geofencing circles within the study area are snall er than
the entirety of the study area?
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A (Ms. Darr) Yes.

Q And you would agree with me that there are sone
resi dences, for exanple, to the northeast of the yellow
circle that are within the study area but outside of the
geofencing target circle?

A (Ms. Darr) That is what | see on the nap.

Q I want to nove to discuss the Northern Parkway
project. You nentioned the Northern Parkway project in
your exam nation, so, clearly, you' re aware of the

exi stence of the Northern Parkway project.

A (Ms. Darr) | am

Q You're aware that it's a nultijurisdictional
proj ect?

A (Ms. Darr) | am

Q That involves the City of Peoria?

A (Ms. Darr) Yes.

Q d endal e?

A (Ms. Darr) Yes.

Q El Mrage? The project involves EIl Mrage?

A (Ms. Darr) Yes.

Q Mari copa County?

A (Ms. Darr) Yes.

Q And, ultimately, the Federal Governnent through
t he Federal Hi ghway Adm nistration?

A (Ms. Darr) Yes.
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Q And since the Federal H ghway Adm nistration is
i nvol ved, you're aware that there's federal funding
i nvolved in that project?

A (Ms. Darr) Yes. That would nmake sense.

Q And are you aware of any terns and conditions

that that federal funding m ght cone with?

A (Ms. Darr) | guess you would have to be nore
specific.
Q Well, do you know any of the details about how

that federal funding is all ocated?

A (Ms. Darr) Not in a great anount of detail. M
position on that project was to support the Maricopa
County Departnment of Transportation in outreach efforts.
So at their direction, | did logistics related to public
neeti ngs, prepared notifications, and was part of
st akehol der neetings on the project.

Q Ckay. So no specific knowl edge about the
details of the -- you know that there is federal funding.
You don't know the details of the federal funding?

A (Ms. Darr) | renenber that federal highways was
part of the stakehol der group, which would make ne infer
that there was federal funding on the project.

Q Ckay. So beyond that, you wouldn't be aware,
like | said, of any sort of conditions, the details of
that funding, right?
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A (Ms. Darr) Not specific -- not overall. The
project was a few years ago. There woul d be peopl e,
subject matter experts, fromthe Maricopa County
Departnent of Transportation that woul d be nonitoring any
ki nds of specific requirenents related to the federal
f undi ng.

Q Ckay. That's all the questions | have for you,
Ms. Darr. Thank you.

A (Ms. Darr) Thank you.

MR. GOLESTAN: Can | nove down the list?
MR. DERSTI NE: Yeah.

Q BY MR GOLESTAN. M. Duncan, good norni ng.
A (M. Duncan) Good norni ng.
Q Do you recall when M. Derstine yesterday asked

you about under groundi ng segnent 625, the potential for
under groundi ng segnment 6257

A (M. Duncan) Yes, | renenber.

Q And you're aware that APS is evaluating that as
an al ternative?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q And you're aware -- do you recall hearing
M. Derstine's comments that APS is commtted to

under groundi ng that section 625 if it is technically

f easi bl e?
A (M. Duncan) Yes.
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Q And you heard M. Derstine's coments that the
undergrounding is funded through a third party?

A (M. Duncan) Yes, |'m aware.

Q I want to talk to you about some of the
technicalities of undergrounding in terns of footprints,
conparing the footprint of sonething placed underground
to the footprint of an overhead |ine.

We' ve heard various things about 230kV
transm ssion |ines and various heights. Can you rem nd
me of generally the range of the heights of a 230kV
transm ssion |line?

A (M. Duncan) Yes. They can range -- for this

project, we are estimating that they will be 155 to 195

feet tall.
Q And for those structures, can you tell me how
w de essentially the base -- let's say the contact point

with the ground and the portion that m ght needing to
underground to support that structure, can you tell ne
how w de and how deep those supports are?

A (M. Duncan) No, | cannot.

Q You can't because you don't know, or you can't
because it depends on the nature of the structure and
there are vari abl es?

A (M. Duncan) First of all, sonme structures are
custom ordered, and it depends on the specific design for
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this project. But secondly, the specific design of these
structures is not ny experti se.

Q That's fine. | don't want you to opine on
anything that's outside of your area. Thank you.

In your direct, M. Duncan, you were referring
to various jurisdictions that you had interfaced with on
i npacts. Qobviously, you nentioned that this project, as
any project, has an inpact on the surrounding
jurisdiction. R ght? You re aware of that?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q And you're aware of the -- were you present at
the site tour yesterday norning?

A (M. Duncan) Yes, | was.

Q I was did you hear M. Sinpson's conments on

that site tour?

A (M. Duncan) Yes, | did.
Q Did you hear M. Sinpson while we were at the
Nort hern segnent -- | want to say that was Stop No. 7.

Did you hear M. Sinpson say that APS had anal yzed the
burden to that residential neighborhood, particularly, to
be from noderate to hi gh?

A (M. Duncan) M understanding is -- | did hear
t hat phrasi ng, and ny understandi ng was that the
nei ghbor hood was considered a high sensitivity.

Q R ght. Ckay.
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And based on | ooking at the overall routes -- |
mean, there's been a | ot of discussion | think by both of
you, but correct ne if I"'mwong. |If it's M. Sinpson,
"Il discuss it with M. Sinpson -- that the route --
that the majority of the routes do go through industri al
areas. | nean, |looking at Route A on the site visit, the
maj ority portions of the routes, your would agree, are

i ndustrial or conmmercial ?

A (M. Duncan) Yes, | would concur with that
st at ement .
Q And based on the nmappi ng and based on the site

visit, you would agree that the segnents of the route

that affect Peoria anyway are prinmarily residential ?

A (M. Duncan) No, | would disagree with that
st at enent .
Q You woul d disagree. kay. Let's |ook at a map.
Go ahead and pull up for ne, please -- give ne a

nmonent. Let's ook at APS-6, Figure No. 4, PDF page 10.
That's Figure 4, existing | and use, PDF page 110,
physi cal copy page 103.
Let me know when you're | ooking at the sane.

A (M. Duncan) |I'msorry, which nmap?

Q APS Figure No. 4, land use. That's electronic
page 110, physical page 103.

A (M. Duncan) Yes. | have it.
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Q Yes, of course. | don't know why |'m giving you
the electronic page. You're |ooking at a physical copy.
For the benefit of, | suppose, anybody el se who m ght be
|l ooking at it electronically.

So we're both | ooking at page 103, Figure 4.
CHWN. KATZ: Are we able to pull that up on the

screen?
AV TECH MOELLER:  Just about there.
MR GOLESTAN: Is that it?
CHWN. KATZ: That's it.
MR, GOLESTAN. Ch, there we go.
Q BY MR GOLESTAN. So this figure shows the

boundary of the various jurisdictions in the study area,

right?
A (M. Duncan) Yes.
Q Those boundaries are reflected by let's call

t hem t he sal non-col ored |i nes.

A (M. Duncan) | understand.

Q You agree with that description?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q Ckay. The zones -- rather, the |land use is

shown, obviously, in different colors. You see that

yellow is residential?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.
Q You see that the |ight orange or peach color, |
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suppose, is other enploynent? Wuld you agree with that?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q Ckay. And then the darker purple color on this
map, maybe magenta is the word for it, you would agree
that that represents the industrial zones, as | east as
exi sting, existing | and use?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q Ckay. Looking at this nap, you'll agree with ne
that if you' re | ooking at the boundari es west of Peoria
al ong -- between Northern Avenue and A ive Avenue where
the routes -- where the proposed routes are, you would
agree with ne that west of the boundary of Peoria, you
don't see any residential zone there?

A (M. Duncan) Agreed.

Q Ckay. And | ooking along where the -- going up
and around Luke Air Force Base, essentially follow ng the
route, and we can conpare it to the other nmap, but you
woul d agree with nme that throughout that area of Ar
Force Base west essentially over to Fal con Substation at
t he western boundary, you would agree with ne that,
again, not really any residential, that's a m xture of
ot her | and use types there?

A (M. Duncan) Agreed.

Q Ckay. | want to direct your attention to APS-6.
That's PDF 114, electronic 114, and physical 107.
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A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q This is what we were discussing earlier. You
mentioned that M. Sinpson's comments were in relation a
hi gh constraint area. That's | think the word that you
used, right?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q And that's reflected in this map. [|If we | ook
bet ween Northern Avenue and dive Avenue, you woul d agree
wth ne that that -- the red portion of this -- the red
portion of the map that is |ocated between Northern
Avenue and Adive is overlaid with that sanme residenti al
area that we saw on the previous nmap?

A (M. Duncan) Agreed.

Q And you would agree with me that that is
entirely within the boundaries of the Gty of Peoria?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q Looking at -- nmoving forward to APS-6 -- well,
continuing wwth APS-6, rather, physical page 111, PDF
el ectronic page 118. Let ne know when you're | ooking at
one of them

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q Actually, let nme nove you one further. Digita

page 120, physical page 113. Are we | ooking at the sane

page?
A (M. Duncan) Yes.
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Q "Il wait for the electronic to catch up.

There we go. Thank you.

You would agree with nme again, conparing this
map to the other maps, that the portion that we have been
t al ki ng about between Northern Avenue and dive Avenue to
the east of that green dotted |line that you can see that
runs essentially between -- that green dotted |ine that
runs bet ween segnent 630 and 550, that's the segnent that
we' ve been tal king about? You would agree with ne that
that's the area that we're tal ki ng about ?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.
Q And, again, that area is -- in that portion is

the residential comunity that was part of our tour?

A (M. Duncan) | would agree with that.
Q Ckay. And | ooking at these lines, you can see
that on this map -- first of all, there's an existing

corridor, transm ssion corridor. A lot of discussions
have al ready been had about that.

On the eastern side of this conmunity in Peoria,
there's an existing transm ssion corridor, and that's
reflected on this map with the blue and yell ow dotted
lines; is that right?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.
Q And t he proposal from APS woul d pl ace a new
230kV corridor to the north and to the south of the
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conmuni ty?

A (M. Duncan) Correct.

Q So if the proposal is built exactly as it
appears on this map, in the end, this comunity woul d be
surrounded on three sides by 230kV transm ssion |ines?

A (M. Duncan) That is correct.

Q And you are not aware of any other part of this
study area that has a simlar effect, are you?

A (M. Duncan) Not -- no, |'mnot.

Q Ckay. That's because there isn't one, right?
You woul d agree with nme that there is no other part of
this study area that contains a residential comunity
t hat woul d be surrounded on three sides by 230kV
transm ssion |ines?

A (M. Duncan) Yes, | agree.

Q Ckay. | think that's all | have for you,

M. Duncan. Thank you.

A (M. Duncan) You're wel cone.

Q M. Sinpson, how are you?

A (M. Sinpson) Fine. Thank you.

Q | suspect you have sone inkling about the

questions |I'mgoing to ask you?

A (M. Sinpson) | have all the answers.
Q Fi ne. | love it.

Let ne start with -- you started off in your
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testinony talking a | ot about the growth and the econom c
benefits and such.
| just want to make sure -- you're not an

econom st, right?

A (M. Sinpson) That's correct.

Q You don't work in finance?

A (M. Sinpson) That's correct.

Q You haven't presented this Conmttee wth any

econom ¢ data?

A (M. Sinpson) There were no soci oecononic
studi es conpl et ed.

Q You don't have any data fromthe Census Bureau,
for exanple, to show popul ation growh of this area?

A (M. Sinpson) W have general information that
was gathered as part of the studies, but it was not a
focus of our anal ysis.

Q So no specific population data fromthe U S.
Gover nnment ?

A (M. Sinpson) Correct.

Q Not hi ng fromthe Bureau of Labor Statistics
showi ng the workforce in the area?

A (M. Sinpson) Correct.

Q And as far as you know, anyway, no econom c
inpact data as it relates to the Gty of Peoria?

A (M. Sinpson) That is correct.
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Q So | want to nove to the site tour and
di scussions we had on the site tour. Gve ne a nonent.
| amgetting ny notes since | had to take them on ny
phone on our field trinp.
You recall, of course, being on the site tour
wth Menbers of the Commttee, with counsel and ot her

W t nesses and nyself yesterday?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes, | do.
Q Sorry, give nme one nonent.
Wll, at that site tour, you had di scussed

accommmodati ons that were nade for d endale and El Mrage,
correct?

A (M. Sinpson) Yeah. | don't knowif there were
any specific accommobdati ons, but we had a | ot of dial ogue
wi th them about different topics, and we went back and
forth with them sharing data and where routes coul d be
| ocat ed.

Q And did any of those di scussions produce changes
in the routing?

A (M. Sinpson) There were sone areas in
El Mrage where we studied different alternatives that
weren't initially identified. That was at the request of
the City of EIl Mrage. And then the property owners al so
had opi ni ons about that. So there was sone
back-and-forth with them Property owners wanted to
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mnimze inpacts to their land. Cty of EIl Mrage wanted
to mnimze inpacts to their communities and their Gty
conmplex. So we did have sone back-and-forth di scussions
that allowed us to arrive at this route that we have
shown here in green, Route A

Q So with respect to Route A then, you received
f eedback from both private | andowners and the Gty of
El Mrage. |It's fair to say that you incorporated that
f eedback into the design of Route A?

A (M. Sinpson) Utimtely, what happened is we
did study sone other options that woul d have incl uded
going further east as well as south in this half section
route through the APZs. Utimately, we ended back with
the route that we initially had brought to them as the
one we thought we were nost conpatible with. So we did
essentially end up back at the sane place, but we went
t hrough the analysis to hel p them understand why we were
requesting to be there.

Q Ckay. And let's tal k about Luke Air Force Base
because you recall on direct exam nation, you nentioned
how i nportant that was to the analysis. Do you renenber
t hat di scussi on?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes Yes, | do.

Q And you obvi ously discussed the conpl exities of
Luke Air Force Base on the site tour, correct?
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A (M. Sinpson) Yes.

Q Based on feedback you had wth them and based on
certain paraneters that had to be net in order for these
lines to be placed in the vicinity of Luke Air Force
Base, right?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes.

Q Those include the Accident Potential Zones that

you di scussed?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes Yes.

Q That's sonet hi ng you absolutely had to pl an
around?

A (M. Sinpson) Absolutely, yes.

Q That i ncluded things such as the 1,235 maxi nrum

hei ght from sea | evel cap that you discussed, right?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes , that is correct.

Q That is sonething that had to be net?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes.

Q And so this reflects the acconnpdati ons that
were nade for -- the final Route A for exanple, reflects

t hose accommodati ons that were nade for Luke A r Force

Base?
A (M. Sinpson) Yeah. And not necessarily
accommpdations. It reflects all the analysis of all the

routes that we eval uated crossing through the APZs, and
this one was the one deened nobst conpati ble and al so net
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the state law. So | wouldn't say it was necessarily an
accommodation. It was a result of the analysis for three
maj or alternatives that we considered to cross through

t he APZs.

Q Sure. And that analysis included receiving
information from Luke Air Force Base and neeting the
criteria that they have established, correct?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes.

Q On that note, one thing that you were eval uating
and you nmentioned on the site visit nmoving 69kV lines in
response to Luke Air Force Base's request, which would
distinctly benefit a few residences along Route A. Do
you renenber discussing that?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes.

Q And that's true that that's part of the current
anal ysis, is potentially noving the 69kV |line for the

benefit of Luke Air Force Base and those resi dences?

A (M. Sinpson) It is one potential option.
Q And that's bei ng eval uat ed?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes. No final decision yet.
Q I want to nove to tal k about the siting and

environnent al studies that you've done and kind of talk
t hrough sone of the same figures that we tal ked about.
But | suppose we can start here since we're
al ready | ooking at Figure 1, proposed routes. That's PDF

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | || 03/ 02/ 2022 380

page 113, el ectronic page 120. Let nme know when you are

| ooki ng at the sane, please.

A (M. Sinpson) Yes.
Q So, likewise, in |looking at this nmap, you would
agree with ne that, first of all, there is a unique

burden on the residents of the Cty of Peoria, and APS
has acknow edged t hat?

MR. DERSTINE: (Cbject to the form | don't
think that's accurate testinony.

CHWN. KATZ: Rephrase, please.

Q BY MR GCOLESTAN. Ckay. You woul d acknow edge
that in looking at this map, there is a burden on Peoria
resi dents?

A (M. Sinpson) There is an inpact to the
residential community, as we have disclosed on our
Exhibit E, visual inpacts, view ng across the roads.

Q And in | ooking at this map, again, you woul d
agree with ne that there is an existing 230kV
transm ssion line on the east of the particular conmunity
in question in the Cty of Peoria?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes. There's a 230kV line, a
single pole, a 230kV line lattice, and a 345kV
transm ssion line in that | ocation.

Q Ckay. In the eastern -- that transm ssion
corridor is due east of the community in question?
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A (M. Sinpson) Correct.

Q And if you are | ooking at the proposal for
Route E, that's the purple line on this figure, right?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes.

Q The Route E proposal would be due north of this
residential community in the Gty of Peoria?

A (M. Sinpson) That is approximate |ocation that
we' re consi deri ng.

Q And, |ikew se, | ooking at segment -- excuse ne,
Route G segnent 625, that woul d be due south of the
residential comunity in the Cty of Peoria?

A (M. Sinpson) That is correct.

Q And so in |looking at this nmap, you woul d agree
wth ne that if the routes were constructed as depi cted
on this map, that that conmunity would then be surrounded
by 230kV transm ssion |lines on three sides?

A (M. Sinpson) There would be 230kV I|ines
adj acent to the north, east, and south side of the
residential community, but not surrounded.

Q So you woul d agree, then, that there are 230kV
transm ssion lines on three out of four sides of that

community? Let's put it that way.

A (M. Sinpson) That would be a correct

st at ement .
Q And in |l ooking at this map, that condition does
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not exist anywhere else in this study area?

A (M. Sinpson) That precise condition doesn't.
| would offer that, again, you do see i mredi ately
adj acent, also in the City of Peoria, nmultiple
transm ssion line corridors crossing through what, in
essence, is also part of the sane residential
devel opnment, Horizons, here. So there are simlar
situations, slightly different.

Q Sure. And | appreciate the thoughts on the
ot her situations.

I just want to know that this particul ar
situation we're tal king about, a residential community
having three sides of its community -- having 230kV |lines
adj acent to three sides of the community doesn't exi st
anywhere else in this particular study area.

A (M. Sinpson) Not in the exact sane
configuration; but in other configurations, it would.

Q And, again, ny question is limted to that
configuration. That configuration doesn't exist anywhere
else in this study area?

A (M. Sinpson) Correct.

Q And that configuration doesn't exist anywhere

el se along these three proposed routes?

A (M. Sinpson) Correct.
Q And that's because, in |ooking at the other
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routes, noving farther west, the mgjority of the
remai nder of those routes pass through industrial and/or

commercial areas. You would agree with that?

A (M. Sinpson) GCenerally, yes.
Q Ckay. | want to talk a little bit about the
alternative undergrounding that's under -- the

undergroundi ng alternative that's under consi deration.

Woul d you be able to speak to sonme of the technical

details that -- first of all, are you famliar with the
process of undergroundi ng? | guess let's start there.
A (M. Sinpson) GCenerally speaking, yes. The

anal ysis that we've conducted for this project, the
envi ronnmental anal ysis, was for double-circuit overhead
230kV lines, and we did not eval uate specific underground
options with respect to environnental studies.

Q But you're aware that that is sonething that is
bei ng undertaken right now?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes, | am

Q And you are aware that, as you heard
M. Derstine say yesterday, that if it is technically
feasible, that APS is commtted to undergrounding this
segnent ?

A (M. Sinpson) | believe they're commtted to
eval uati ng whether that's feasible. Not commtted to
doing it that way. Those studi es have to progress.
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Q Right. The point being, if it's technically
feasible, it wll be done. Not commtting to doing it
w t hout knowi ng the technical feasibility.

A (M. Sinpson) | can't nmnake that comm tnent on
their behalf. |I'maware of the discussions that they're
havi ng regardi ng that option.

Q And i n your experience undergroundi ng, can you
conpare for ne, please -- and if there's a difference in
ranges, that's fine. You can provide ne the difference
in range. Let's start with the aboveground 230kV
structures. Cenerally speaking, how far into the ground
and how wi de are the base of those structures?

A (M. Sinpson) M visual experience in
observations of the field, an overhead line |like this,

t he base of the structure could be anywhere from you
know, 4 feet all the way up to 6 feet, maybe even | arger.

Q Is that the width -- sorry. That's the wi dth of
t hat base?

A (M. Sinpson) |It's not a precise neasurenent.
| ve never physically neasured one. |It's an observation
standing next to simlar facilities.

Q Ckay. Do you have an understandi ng of how far
down into the ground that the supports for such an
overhead |ine go?

A (M. Sinpson) GCenerally, they can range from a
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few feet to several feet, and it's all based on the
geot echnical conditions of the soil and the size of the
line. But, again, | did not consider any of that in ny

eval uati ons.

Q Ckay. And when you say could be a few, could be
several, are we talking -- again, | understand these are
approximations. | understand it's not in the

presentation. Under 50 feet? Under 25 feet? |If you
have an estimation. |[If you don't, that's okay.

A (M. Sinpson) Yeah. | would not be able to
estimate it. There hasn't been any information conveyed
to nme that would allow ne to answer that, and | don't
have that expertise to design it.

Q Ckay. So your expertise doesn't include --
whi l e your expertise includes the actual height of the
structure, it doesn't include the supports and the
portions necessary to support that structure? | just
want to understand that.

A (M. Sinpson) Yeah. Again, | have seen in the
past final design drawings, so |I'mfamliar with how t hat
concept wor ks, but we have not done any final design

here, so | wouldn't be able to offer any specifics.

Q Ckay. And in your experience with
under groundi ng a 230kV line, can you speak again -- if
you have the experience and know edge, that's great. |If
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440

www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | || 03/ 02/ 2022 386

you don't, | don't want you to speculate -- can you speak
to generally what depths or w dths those structures would
be if it were undergrounded?

A (M. Sinpson) | have not worked on any projects
that invol ved designing of those facilities. And, again,
so ny general analysis and general understanding is that,
you know, you're constructing themsimlar to the way you
woul d conduct any underground utility. You're going to
have a trench and so on, so forth, but that's the limt
of nmy know edge.

Q Ckay. Wth regards to undergroundi ng
specifically and sonme i ssues you nmenti oned on direct
exam nation, you were tal king about benefits and
dr awbacks of undergrounding. Do you recall that
di scussi on yesterday?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes. GCenerally, |I offered a
conpar ati ve di scussion on the two options.

Q Ckay. And one benefit that you, of course,
mentioned is that fromthe perspective of nearby
residential hones, they would not see the transm ssion
lines, right? Do you recall that piece?

A (M. Sinpson) Yeah. | think for the residents
on the north side of Northern Parkway, you know, the
bi ggest advant age woul d be they woul d not see the wires
above ground between the structures that start at the
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existing transmssion line corridor to where they woul d
end further down. You know, you would elimnate the view
of the conductors. | don't think the structures

t hensel ves woul d be directly viewable, at |east in areas
where there aren't currently structures.

Q And as you di scussed yesterday, you believe it's
reasonabl e to consi der undergrounding for this project?
You think that's a reasonabl e evaluation to conduct ?

A (M. Sinpson) |If the parties agree to that, |
think it does have a slight benefit. | think, given the
consi deration of the adjacent |and use and the industri al
area behind it, the views towards the landfill, again, |
would say that it may not have the sane benefit as if we
were | ooking at a nice nountain | andscape or a pristine
| andscape. So | think there's sone benefit, but it is in
an industrial setting, and that was the basis of our
anal ysi s.

Q Ckay. But, ultinately, there's sone benefit,
and it's reasonable to conduct that anal ysis?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes.

Q Ckay. GCkay. M. Sinpson, thank you. | don't
have any further questions for you.

M. WIey, good norning.

A (M. WIley) Good norning.
Q How are you doi ng?
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A (M. Wley) Good.

Q Let's see. You nentioned sonething on direct
exam nation | think in response to one of the Conmittee
Menber s regardi ng NERC standards. And you nentioned that
APS is in full conpliance with all NERC standards for new
substations. | think that was relating to wall and
security. Do you renenber that conversation?

A (M. Wley) Yes, | do.

Q | just want to step back a 50, 000-foot view and
first ask you, what is NERC?

A (M. Wley) NERCis the North Anerican
Reliability Corporation.

Q And how does this entity set the standards that
you or other electric -- rather, that APS or other
utilities have to foll ow?

A (M. WIley) They set and enforce the standards.

Q On which authority? How does this entity have

the authority to do that?

A (M. Wley) From FERC

Q And FERC is?

A Federal Energy Regul atory Conm ssi on.

Q Ckay. And can you talk to ne about, to your

know edge, the NERC standards, now that we know what NERC
is. And thank you for explaining that to the | aypeople
in the room nyself, ne.
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Can we tal k about the NERC standards in regards
to circuiting and, specifically, double-circuiting. Talk

tone alittle bit about that. And if you need nore

preci se questions, | can give you nbre precise questions.
A (M. WIley) A nore precise question, please.
Q You're aware that there are NERC st andards

regar di ng doubl e-circuiting?

A (M. Wley) There are standards that include
| anguage around having circuits on a conmbn structure.

Q Ckay. And that's fair to say that that's
commonly referred to as double-circuiting?

A (M. WIley) Yes.

Q And t hose NERC standards on having the circuits
on a single structure, that essentially, again, to put it
in layperson's terns, that essentially would be rel ating
to standards for double-circuiting on a single pole,
essentially? |Is that a fair |ayperson transl ation of
what you just sai d?

A (M. WIley) Yes.

Q That are the NERC standards regarding
doubl e-circuiting on a single pole?

A (M. WIley) The NERC standard | was referring
to was a transm ssion planni ng standard, which is
TPL-001-4. And that requires each transm ssion pl anner
to performa reliability assessnent. In the assessnent,
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the standard calls out various planning events. One of
t hese planning events is to study the inpacts of | osing
all circuits on a comon structure.

Q So that standard TPL-001-4 doesn't expressly
prohi bit double-circuit on a single pole. It lays out a
procedure that is required to evaluate the feasibility of
such a structure?

A (M. WIley) The standard does not prohibit
doubl e-circuit. It does require the analysis and
specifically calls out the credibility of such events as
| osing a double-circuit pole.

Q What do you nean when you say credibility of
certain events as |losing a double-circuit pole? Can you
expand on that?

A (M. Wley) Meaning that if the pole was
rendered i noperable for any reason that we have to study
t he i npact of both of those circuits being | ost
si mul t aneousl y.

Q Ckay. And is that sonething you conducted as a
part of your analysis for this project?

A (M. Wley) These circuits were planned on
separate structures, so that specific contingency was not
eval uat ed.

Q That contingency was not eval uated because of
t he planning on separate structures. Ckay.

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | || 03/ 02/ 2022 391

Do you recall on direct exam nation, you were
tal ki ng about the Contrail Substation?

A (M. Wley) Yes, | do.

Q Ckay. And you would agree with ne that, of
course, the Contrail Substation is where all three of the
proposed routes, that's Route A, Route E, and Route G
all three of those routes -- | don't want to say end.

That m ght not be technically accurate. But all three of

those routes lead to that substation. They pass through

t hat substation. |Is that a fair way of describing that?
A (M. WIley) Yes.
Q Ckay. And in looking at this particular
diagram |'mlooking at Figure 1, proposed routes, that

is physical page 113, PDF page 120. Let ne know when
you're there.
A (M. Wley) Okay.
Q Are you | ooking at this? Yeah. Very good.
This diagram seens to at | east corroborate
sonet hing you said on direct exam nati on yesterday, that
APS i s considering, quote/unquote, double-circuiting on a
singl e pole, again, |ayman understanding, that's the
| ayman's terms here, for a portion of Route A and Route E
as they approach the Contrail Substation.
Do you renmenber -- does this diagram accurately
reflection that comment that you nade yesterday.
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A (M. Wley) Yes, it does.
Q Ckay. So APS is considering that alternative
but has yet to evaluate whether -- has yet to do that

analysis that is required by TPL-001-4?

A (M. Wley) [1'll speculate a couple of itens
here. W have perforned the analysis as required by
TPL-001-4. It specifically calls out for circuits that
are double-circuited for nore than one mle. Under this
condi tion, we would be tal ki ng about one span of
doubl e-circuit.

Q Ckay. And is this span -- to your know edge, at
| east, do you know if this span is greater than a ml e,
| ess than a mle, or unclear as of yet?

A The final design isn't perforned, but it would
be much less than 1 mle.

Q In any configuration, you're certain that it's

less than 1 m |l e?

A (M. Wley) Correct. W cannot span for 1
mile.
Q Because if you span nore than 1 mle, that would

trigger additional analysis under TPL-0001-4, or that
woul d be prohibited, essentially, under that anal ysis?
A (M. Wley) By "span," |I'mtalking about the
di stance between nei ghboring structures.
Q Ckay.
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CHWN. KATZ: And we've been goi ng about an hour
and a half. So sonetinme within the next m nute or two,
we need to take about a 10- or 15-m nute break whenever
you think it's appropriate.

MR. GOLESTAN: Certainly, M. Chairman. | think
| only have a few nore questi ons.

Q BY MR GOLESTAN. So it's under consideration in
this case in this condition that we've tal ked about as it
relates to entering the Contrail station and it being
doubl e-circuiting on a single pole.

But that was not the -- as you nenti oned
earlier, the TPL-001-4 analysis wasn't conducted for
other parts of this route because APS did not consider
doubl e-circuiting on a single pole in any of those other
areas, right?

A (M. Wley) The requirenent to eval uate under
TPL- 001-4 was conducted. The specific contingency of
evaluating nultiple circuits on a single structure was
not evaluated in that assessnent since the planned |ines
were not going to be collocated on a single structure.

MR. GOLESTAN: Thank you, M. WI ey.

That's all the questions | have.

CHWN. KATZ: It's just past 20 mnutes to 11.
Let's plan on getting started between 10:55 and 11 and
ask everybody to be back here by around 10:55, and we'l|l
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get started as soon as we can. Thank you.
(A recess was taken from10:42 a.m to
11: 01 a. m)
CHWN. KATZ: M. Col estan, do you have any

further cross-exam nati on?

MR. GOLESTAN. | don't want to make prom ses |
can't keep, M. Chair. | mght have a few nore questions
for M. Sinpson. But depending on -- | know that the --

things are done a little | oosely around here, as you had
alluded to earlier, but if you don't want ne to go back
to M. Sinpson, that's fine.

CHWN. KATZ: | would prefer that we go with
direct, cross, and redirect. No recross unless a new
subject matter is introduced during the redirect
exam nation. |If you have any questions right now, you're
free to ask.

MR, GOLESTAN:. No. That's fine. 1'm good.

CHWN. KATZ: And do you have any redirect
exam nation, Ms. Benally or M. Derstine?

MR. DERSTINE: M. Chairman, | have a few

questions on redirect.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR DERSTI NE:
Q Ms. Darr, let's start with you. Counsel for the
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City asked you about the geofencing that was used to
define the radius of the Facebook or social nedia ads.
Do you recall that?

A (Ms. Darr) Correct.

Q Can we pull up Slide 95. O | think it's
physical Slide 95, 102 on the electronic version.

Thank you.

Looking at the slide that's now projected on the
screen marked 95 or 102 in the PDF, as | look at it, the
circles are what are used to define the area in which the
Facebook or social nedia ads went out within the project

study area; is that right?

A (Ms. Darr) Yes.
Q And | think, as counsel noted in his questions
to you, there are -- the corners of the study area where

they are nore at a right angle are cut off on the study

ar ea. Is that what's shown?
A Yes.
Q Wthin the circles, those are the areas that did

recei ve Facebook and social nedia ads, right?

A Correct.

Q And within those circles of the coverage of the
soci al nedia ads, that includes the Suncliff Subdi vision,
correct?

A Yes.
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Q Al so the includes the other residential areas
that are adjacent to the line, that is, the residential
area in the Town of Youngtown, the residential area in
the Dysart Ranches al ong Peoria, correct?

A (Ms. Darr) Correct.

Q And putting aside the geofencing circles, the

entire study area was used to develop the address list?

A (Ms. Darr) The mailng list, yes.

Q The mailing list.

A (Ms. Darr) Yes.

Q O for the mailing of the newsl etters?
A (Ms. Darr) Correct.

Q So newsletters went out to the entire | arger box
beyond just the circles?

A (Ms. Darr).

MR. GOLESTAN: I1'mgoing to object to form
CHWN. KATZ: Overruled. You nay answer.
M5. DARR: That is correct.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: M. Duncan, you were asked
about land use within the Cty of Peoria adjacent to the
line. Do you recall that?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

MR. DERSTINE: Can | have -- and there nay be a

slide for this, but I'"'mlooking at the application, it's
A-2-2. | believe it's in the land use slides. It may be
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easier to pull wup.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: M. Sinpson, can you aid ne
and point nme to your jurisdictional |and use map.

A (M. Sinpson) There's one in the |and use
exhi bits, 121.

Q Ckay. Yeah.

MR. DERSTI NE: So it's Slide 121 or the PDF 128
of the 234, if we can pull that up. |Is that what's there
on the screen?

AV TECH MOELLER: Yes, that's correct.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: So, M. Duncan, can you use
your |laser pointer is identify the Cty of Peoria that's
bounded by the proposed Routes E and G

A (M. Duncan) Yes. The City of Peoriais
i ndicated here in this orange-type color. And the area
within where Route E and Gis which is the City of Peoria
is this area that |'m bounding right here on the north
and here on the west and down here on the south.

Q Soif I"'mlooking at this correctly, that [|ight
brown color is the Cty of Peoria. It becones darker
brown, and that indicates the transition to Maricopa
County jurisdiction; is that right?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q And so the links that are in question or that
are the focus of the Gty of Peoria' s concerns and
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questions are link 650 and Iink 625. Do | have that

right?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q As to the portion of Route E on dive, that's
t he northern boundary of the Suncliff Subdivision. |Is
that |line being constructed in the Cty of Peoria?

A (M. Duncan) No, it is not.

Q And where is it?

A (M. Duncan) It is being constructed in the

Town of Youngt own.

Q So link 650, which is the easternnbst segnent of
the route on Aive, which is Route E, is being
constructed on the north side of Aive in the Town of

Youngt own?

A (M. Duncan) That is correct.
Q And on the route tour, when we stood on dive
and were | ooking across at where the line will be

constructed, this portion, 650, we were staring into the
Town of Youngtown, correct?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q And what we're seeing is a nunber of
transm ssion |ines and a substation, correct?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q And that area is zoned industrial, that portion
up to the edge of the EI Sol Substation?
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A (M. Duncan) W believe so.

Q And so the inpact of the construction of Route E
on Adive along segnent 650, which borders the Cty of
Peoria, will in sone way inpact the views of this
i ndustrial transnission |line area, correct?

MR. GOLESTAN. 1'Il object to form

Q BY MR DERSTI NE: Describe what the viewshed is
t hat we saw when we were standing | ooking across Aive
Avenue towards where the line will be constructed?

CHWN. KATZ: You may answer the rephrased
questi on.

MR. DUNCAN:. The viewis of the El Sol
Substation directly to the north. To the northeast and
to the east is an existing nultitransm ssion --
hi gh-voltage transm ssion line corridor that is
diagonal ly crossing into the view as it proceeds to the
nort h.

There's al so a 69kV subtransm ssion east to west
| ocated on the north side of Aive Avenue that has a 12kV
doubl e-circuit underbuil d.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: And it's those lines that w |
be changed by this project, and we saw a sinul ati on
yesterday from M. Sinpson in ternms of what that's |ikely
to look like; is that correct?

A (M. Duncan) Yes, that's correct.
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Q Let's go down to Northern and | ooking at |ink
625. The City of Peoria, it |looks like the Suncliff

Subdi vision narrows as it noves down to the south al ong

Nort hern Avenue. Am|l |ooking at that correctly?
A (M. Duncan) Yes, that's correct.
Q And so the bal ance of that area within the Cty

of Peoria jurisdiction, what is that? As the subdivision
narrows, what is to the west of it?

A (M. Duncan) That is a comercial sand and
gravel operation. M. Sinpson described that during the
tour yesterday.

Q And the Route G that is proposed to be
constructed on Northern, is that being constructed wthin

the City of Peoria?

A (M. Duncan) No, it is not.

Q And whose jurisdiction is it being constructed
in?

A (M. Duncan) It is being constructed within the

City of dendale, Gendale' s landfill.

Q And as we stood on Northern at the edge of the
Suncl i ff Subdivision | ooking at where the line will be
constructed, what are we seeing?

A (M. Duncan) The straight-ahead viewis of a
wall, a decorative wall, for lack of a better term that
Is superseded in height by the first cell of the d endal e
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landfill, which is several hundred feet in height. That
is the direct view

The view as you turn your head slightly to the
left is of the nultitransm ssion line corridor that is
proceedi ng north and sout h.

And in the i mMmedi ate foreground of the viewis
what is currently Northern Avenue but soon to be Northern
Par kway .

Q M. Sinpson, you were asked sonme questions about
the i npacts of and how you graded the inpacts of Route G
on Nort hern.

Can you -- when you said that the inpacts are
hi gh, what are you referring to?

A (M. Sinpson) So for visual inpacts, we take
into a nunber of different factors. Visibility is one,
and that neans, is it opened? |Is it backdropped? Wat
di stance are you view ng at?

And then we take in other factors, which are
call ed visual contrasts. So that is consideration for
what other facilities you may see in the existing
| andscape.

In this case, M. Duncan just nmentioned the
multiline transm ssion corridor to the east, which is
highly visible fromthose |ocations and the landfill to
the south. And then to the west, the sand and gravel and
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materials yards that exist there.
So when we consider visual contrast, is there
al ready, say, industrial features or transm ssion |line

f eat ur es. Al of that affects how a vi ewer woul d

402

perceive a new line in the | andscape. And each of those

factors was a consideration in how we arrived at the
I mpacts.

And they would be a little bit vari abl e,
dependi ng upon where you're at in the subdivision. W
recogni zed that the first row or two of houses al ong
Nort hern woul d have those high inpacts as a result of
bei ng able to see the conductor overhead or perhaps the
I ines on either side.

As you nove further away fromthe roadway over
to the north, you get nore to the interior of the
subdi vi sion, those views becone harder to see. They're
not as open. They not visible in the sane way, so the
i npact would drop off fromthere.

So that high inpact largely being the first

coupl e of rows of houses that are closest to that |ine

where they woul d see the nost visible portions of the new

i ne.

Q Are there inpacts to the Suncliff Subdivision
ot her than the visual inpacts you just descri bed?

A (M. Sinpson) No. W are not |ocated on the
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property. The prinmary concern there were the visua
I mpact s.

Q And the visual inpacts are adding a 230kV
transm ssion line to the view of the dunp?

A (M. Sinpson) That is correct.

MR. DERSTINE: No further questions.

CHWN. KATZ: Anything further?

Do you essentially rest your case?

MR, DERSTI NE: Yes.

CHWN. KATZ: W don't know whether or not Peoria
w shes to call any w tnesses?

MR. GOLESTAN. Peoria will not call any
W t nesses, M. Chairnman.

CHWN. KATZ: What we can do is hear any cl osing
argunents that you wish to make if you're ready do that.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: | have a question, and |I'm not
sure who to address this to because | was having a hard
time foll owm ng who was bei ng questi oned in cross.

But this project is requesting the authorization
for a second circuit and getting to the question about
followi ng the NERC standards in doing the studies for
doubl e-circuit construction -- any double-circuit
construction that m ght happen in the future.
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There is a condition in alnost all of the CECs
that requires the applicant to follow all NERC standards.
And |I'm just wondering whether that condition would cover
any required NERC studies in the future having to do with
doubl e-circuit lines.

MR. DERSTINE: Thank you, Menber Little. |
think that's a question that should be responded to by
M. WIey.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Thank you.

VR. W LEY: Menber Little, I"'msorry, | didn't
catch your specific question. Wuld you m nd repeating
t hat ?

MEMBER LI TTLE: It was kind of convoluted. |
apol ogi ze.

There is a condition in alnost CECs, and | see
it in this proposed CEC also, that requires the applicant
to follow all NERC standards, WECC standards, and others,
but NERC i s al so specified.

Do you believe that that condition would require
APS do any required studies having to do wth
doubl e-circuiting any of these lines in the future?

MR. WLEY: Thank you for the question, Menber
Little.

I haven't seen this specific condition. Hearing
that it covers all NERC standards, this would be

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | || 03/ 02/ 2022 405

applicable since it is a standard under NERC. And, of
course, when we do go to build that second line in the
future, we would include that as part of our TPL anal ysis
at that tine.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Let ne just ask as a foll ow up,
M. Wley, would the poles that are erected be erected in
contenpl ati on of adding that second line, or are we
| ooki ng at tearing down those poles and repl aci ng them
wi th ones that are capable of carrying double-circuit?

MR. WLEY: Chairman Katz, thank you

The structures that we're proposing to install
woul d be capabl e of adding a second circuit. At which
time that second circuit is needed, replacenent of
structures woul d not be needed.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you.

And | didn't nmean to ignore other Commttee
Menbers.

Does anyone el se have any questions of the other

W t nesses before we go to closing argunents from both

parties?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Hearing nothing further, are you
gentl emen -- | adies and gentl enen ready to present your

cl osing argunents, or do you need a few m nutes?
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MR. DERSTINE: | think so. The only thing I
need is to check with the AV teamto see if -- | threw
t hem sone slides for a closing.

CHWN. KATZ: |If you need a couple m nutes.

MR. DERSTINE: |If we can take --

CHWN. KATZ: Let's just take a five-m nute
br eak.

(A recess was taken from11:20 a.m to
11: 34 a.m)

CHWN. KATZ: W' re ready to begin.

| did indicate to the attorneys that once we are
done with our closing argunents, we're going to take a
| unch break and then cone back and review the proposed
CEC, nmake whatever edits and approval s or di sapprovals
that we collectively as a Conmttee agree to do. But |
told the | awyers that we wanted to boost everybody's
bl ood sugar with | unch.

| don't know whether it wll be Ms. Benally or
M. Derstine, but you' re welcone to nmake the cl osing
argunent on behalf of Arizona Public Service.

MR. DERSTINE: Thank you, M. Chairman, Menbers
of the Commttee and as well as the Menbers | see on the
screen in front of me. Thank you for your tine and
attention.

Thank you, Madam Court Reporter, as always, for

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | || 03/ 02/ 2022 407

doi ng such a nice job keeping track and giving us a good
transcript whether it's here in the hearing room or
driving around the West Valley in a van. W appreciate
it.

In ny opening, | had stated that you can't have
grow h wi thout power. APS has a duty to serve all the
custoners, custoners that exist today as well as
anticipating and being prepared for the custoners of the
future, the growth that's going to happen.

D fferent custoners have different needs. Not
every custoner is going to require a CEC and we don't
have to bring a project before this Conmttee. At the
sane tine, APS has the sane duty to serve that growth
wth the appropriate facilities. And the challenge is to
al ways be in a position to site and construct those
facilities in tinme to neet custoner needs while at the
same tine mnimzing the inpacts of that new
infrastructure on the surrounding comunity. And that's
what this case is about, and that's what we' ve presented
to you.

I noted in ny opening and shared a coupl e of
recent articles about all the growth that's happening in
the West Valley. But you don't have to read the
newspaper to see the growh that's happening in the Wst
Vall ey. For those who were on the tour and drove around,
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you saw all the construction that's occurring, the
transition of the agricultural fields to new |l ogistics
centers, commerce parks, manufacturing facilities, cold
storage facilities. Al that is happening at a very
rapi d pace here in the Wst Vall ey.

And the Loop 303, as | nentioned, has becone a
hub for that growth. But it's not just the Loop 303. It
extends into Aendale. It extends into EIl Mrage. Al
of the communities in the West Vall ey are experiencing
this growh. And the growth is not only the business
growh. It's the residential growh that's foll ow ng
t hat busi ness growt h.

This project serves two needs:

It satisfies the need to serve a high-Ievel
custoner, the Mcrosoft datacenter. It's in El Mrage.
It's in the early stages of devel opnent. At ful
bui | dout, that datacenter is going to require 245
megawatts of power.

In addition, this project will be able to serve
the growh that's occurring using the second circuit, the
230 circuit that wll tie in the lines on the east, the
230kV infrastructure on the west of the project area and
on the east.

What's needed to satisfy the needs, the two
needs that | identified, are to expand the existing
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Contrail Substation with the necessary 230kV
transfornmers, bus work, and then to construct three

i ndependent double-circuit 230kV lines. Those |lines are
proposed to be constructed on Routes A, E, and G set
forth in the application and as the Conmttee has seen on
t he maps.

What are the benefits of the project? Well, it
does a nunber of things. Those three new 230kV
doubl e-circuit lines allow Mcrosoft -- not only all ow
APS to serve Mcrosoft and satisfy the high |oad of a
dat acenter, but they allow Mcrosoft to elimnate the
need for diesel generation, which would be the third | eg
of the stool in terns of their reliability requirenents.
And that third circuit allows us to elimnate diesel and
t he noi se and the environnental inpacts that cone with
di esel generation onsite.

As | nentioned, the project connects the 230kV
systenms on the east and the west sides of the West Vall ey
much |i ke the Northern Parkway is intended to do,
connecting freeways on the east and the west of the West
Valley. This project serves to connect those systens and
i mproves the reliability of the 230kV infrastructure and
wll allow us to serve a ot of the high-1evel custoners
and commercial and industrial growh that's occurring in
this area.
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We covered the planning process. M. Sinpson
testified at | ength about kind of what went into those,
the activities that went into those 18 nont hs of work.
Envi ronnment al studi es, engineering studies, all the
outreach that occurred over that 18-nonth tinespan. And
through all that, APS and its consultants anal yzed the 41
square mles of area to identify potential routes,
identify early on small |inks that were nunbered. These
nunbered links still show on our route naps today. And
t hose smal |l nunbered |inks were then connected and used
to develop lettered prelimnary routes.

Those prelimnary routes, | think A through H,
were then shared with the surroundi ng community in the
newsl etter that went out. And we solicited not only
showi ng them where those prelimnary routes would be but
asked themto comment, give us feedback. Tell us whet her
you | i ke them whether you hate them and what's the
preferred route for the comunity, |andowners,
devel opers.

Utinmately, utilizing that feedback and the
outreach canpai gn that was presented to i nformus and
hel p us develop the final routes, A E, and G were
selected. And those are the routes that are before the
Commttee in our CEC application that we're asking you to
approve in this case.
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Ms. Darr covered the public outreach, and | was
pl eased -- | guess | mght say -- | shouldn't say
surprised, but | was pleased to hear Menber Gentl es say
t hat he thought we had done a good, thorough job because
he doesn't | avish praise or approval w thout good reason.
And his usual take is very critical and at | east uses a
critical eye to anal yze outreach canpaigns. |
appreci ated his comments. | know the conpany did too.

Not to say that we're perfect in this area. W
never are. But we continue to strive to do our best.

And as al ways, the objective is to gain input, let fol ks
know what we're thinking, what we're planning, what we're
doing, gain their feedback, use that information to

i nform us about how we nove forward with the project and
ultimately to hel p us design and present a project to
this Commttee. And | think we did an effective job of
that in this case.

M. Sinpson had nentioned it, and | have to
agree that | have not -- having handl ed a nunber of these
cases, | haven't been involved in a case that involved
this many different jurisdictions in which we had to
communi cate and engage and informand work with. There's
a nunmber of larger and snaller comunities in the Wst
Vall ey that nmake up this project area, and we had to work
wth all of them
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In addition to the jurisdictions, the cities and
the towns, we worked with Luke Air Force Base, Maricopa
County Departnent of Transportation, and then the
i ndi vi dual private | andowners who are building | arge,
mul ti pl e thousand, in sone cases mllions, of square feet
of devel opnent that have a significant interest in what
we're building, where we're building it, and how it
i npacts their developnent. And as | think was nenti oned
during the testinony, wondering whether there would be
sufficient power to serve their devel opnent in the
future. And with this project, there wll be.

As we nentioned, it's also a bit unusual for us
to gain letters, feedback in witing. Many of these
letters indicated their appreciation for their being
involved in the project and the manner in which we
engaged them and sought their input. Sone indicated
their approval for the project, but every one of those
entities that submtted a letter stated their
appreciation for our process and the nmanner in which we
wor ked with them t hroughout the 18-nonth planning history
for the project. W always ask for letters. W don't
usually get them And in this case, we got them and I
think it says sonething about the process.

But the project is not without opposition. The
City of Peoria is here, and, frankly, we're happy to have
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them here. Wiether it happens late in the process or
early, it's inportant for us to know, you know, what the
jurisdictions, what |andowners, what residents are
thinking. And if they show up here at the tine of the
heari ng and want to participate and state their views
concerning the project, we're happy to have them do that.

In this particular case, the Gty has concerns
about Routes E and G which are not within the Gty of
Peoria but border along its boundaries on Aive Avenue
and Nort hern Avenue.

The focus of the City's attention are, as |
mentioned, E and G And in fact the short segnents that
border on the Gty of Peoria -- and if the AV people
could pull up those sinulations for ne, it nmay be hel pful
for the Conmttee to just, one nore tine, see what the
City of Peoria is tal king about and is concerned about.

This Visual Sinulation No. 4 shows the view on
A ive Avenue |looking to the west along Aive. The
exi sting condition shows what it |ooks |ike today. All
the existing -- at least the transm ssion lines, what's
out of the frame on the existing condition is the
substation and the other transm ssion lines that are
further to the east. But this is the view of dive
Avenue as you're looking to the west on the Suncliff
Subdi vi si on, the edge of that subdivision. And the
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proposed condition is on the right.

The testinony that you heard is that the plan to
construct those 230kV |lines across Aive within the Town
of Youngtown or their jurisdiction will increase the span
l ength and elimnate sone of the infrastructure that
you're seeing there. The 12kV will go underground. The
69kV w I | be collocated with the new 230 |lines. The 230
structures will be taller. You can see for yourself
whet her you think that's an i nprovenent or whether that
worsens all the infrastructure that is existing here
t oday and what fol ks see when they're | eaving the
Suncl i ff Subdivision and turning onto Adive Avenue and
driving to the west.

If you can pull up the next slide, please.

This is the other side of an area of concern for
the Gty of Peoria. This is Northern Avenue. On
Nort hern, the Suncliff Subdivision narrows down, but
there's still an entrance and an exit to that subdi vision
there. And what you see running along Northern, as has
been testified to, is the Cty of Gendale's landfill.
And the landfill is surrounded by this |arge retaining
wall. You' re looking at Northern. That will be torn up
and wi dened as part of this Northern Parkway project as
it extends back towards the east and cones the direction
of the City of Peoria.
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In addition to the road wi dening, you'll see
that we have -- or in order to avoid the road w deni ng,
our proposal is to construct the new transmi ssion |ine
wi thin the boundary of the landfill wthin the Gty of
d endale. And so what residents within Suncliff, those
new residents who m ght see these structures fromtheir
backyard or as they're driving out of the Suncliff
Hori zon Subdi vi sion out onto Northern Avenue, wl| see
the new transm ssion |ines, and the pol es span out
approxi mately 750 feet. And that will be their new view.
It won't just be the landfill. It will be the Iandfil
and t hese 230kV structures.

APS is commtted to work with the Cty of Peoria
totry to address their concerns. W've agreed to
eval uat e undergrounding a portion of the line on Northern
here. And if it can be feasibly undergrounded there
W t hout inpacting the landfill operations and will result
in a safe and reliable installation that can be
mai nt ai ned and repaired over tine, APS has agreed to do
t hat .

I don't know that we have -- we've continued to
work with the other jurisdictions. |In this case, we're
working with the City of Peoria. And that isn't unique
to this case. That's what we do in every case. Qur job
is to engage with and work with affected jurisdictions
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and | andowners and do the best we can to mtigate the
i npacts of the project.

But in general, we're not undergroundi ng
transm ssion lines unless there is a safety
consi deration, that the project is needed in that
| ocation, and the only way to install it there or
construct it there is to underground it; or, as in this
case, a third party is wlling to cover the cost to
construct this underground segnent. And in this case, we
have M crosoft who has indicated their willingness to
mtigate the inpact of this project on the Cty of Peoria
and the residents in this area by agreeing to cover the
cost of undergrounding if that can be safely and feasibly
done.

So that's where we are. The results of those
studi es won't be known for sonme tine. It will take sone
time to fully understand what can be constructed there in
terms of an underground construction. But we'll continue
to working with and conmuni cate and cooperate with the
City of Peoria. And | think you'll see | anguage to that
effect in the proposed CEC

You heard our case, four w tnesses using the
vari ous Power Point slides and exhibits. You saw the
flyover simulation. Those of you who were here were able
to take the route tour. And you heard cross-exam nati on,
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and you'll hear here in a mnute closing argunent from
counsel for the Cty of Peoria.

As | indicated, we're requesting a CEC t hat
approves the construction of the double-circuit |ines on
Routes A, E, and G on nonopol e structures rangi ng from
130 to 195 feet. Included, as you'll see, is the
exhibit, the map which shows the routes, identifies the
corridor and the wdth of the corridor for those three
routes.

And the corridor, as you know, as this Commttee
well knows, is the key consideration that allows us to
devel op these projects and design themin a way that
mnimzes the inpacts. It allows us, after this hearing,
when we get along further in engineering, to continue to
wor ki ng with | andowners and jurisdictions to continue to
pl ace poles and adjust the alignnent in a way that it
addr esses the concerns of residents.

W can't always give fol ks what they ask for.
Qur commitnent is sinply to do what we can and to
conmuni cate and to do our very best to try to mnim ze
the inpacts within the call or the authority that this
Comm ttee gives us in identifying a corridor for
constructing the project. And we'll do that here.

In terns of the termof the project, we're
asking for a ten-year term which is the standard CEC
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termto construct the first circuit. That's the circuit
that's going to be dedicated to serving M crosoft.

The second circuit, we're asking for a 20-year
term because at the present tinme, we don't know when
we'll need that circuit. W know we don't need it today.
We know it's going to be sonetine in the future, but
we're asking for the |longer termfor that reason.

In my opening, | indicated that this was an
i mportant project, and | stand by those words. [It's an
i nportant project for Mcrosoft, and it's an inportant
project to serve the growth that's occurring in the Wst
Val | ey.

And with that, we're going to request that you
grant us the CEC and | ook forward to your deliberation
over the CEC. And, as always, we thank you for your tinme
and attention.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you ki ndly.

M. Col estan.

MR. GOLESTAN: M. Chairman, Menbers of the
Commttee, thank you very nuch for the opportunity to be
her e.

Peoria intervened in this matter to present
concerns to this Conmmttee about the inpacts of this
project on the Gty, and Peoria appreciates the
opportunity to do so, appreciates APS s comm tnent and
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counsel's remar ks about working together and conti nui ng
to do so to determne solutions to the issues that have
been rai sed.

Through sone of the exhibits and the w tness
testinony, really, Peoria' s two concerns were, firstly,
the nature of the inpact on Peoria. That's been
acknowl edged by APS, as we heard fromthe w tnesses.

That inpact is shown by frankly this map that we're
| ooki ng at right now and the other maps that showed the
nature of the | and use.

Most of the routes outside of the City of Peoria
go through industrial or comrercial areas. The portions
of the Routes E and G that are cl osest Peoria Avenue
border the Suncliff Subdivision.

As we heard on cross-exam nation through
M. Sinpson and to sone extent M. Duncan, the condition
that this would create, Routes E and G, is unique.
There's no other place in the study area where a
residential community is surrounded or -- essentially
surrounded on three sides by 230kV transm ssion |ines.

And M. Sinpson di scussed on his own direct
exam nation a rough sort of back-of-the-napkin
cal cul ation of the inpact on the residents. And even
that analysis indicates that the burden and the inpact on
Peoria, particularly for residential as conpared to ot her
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jurisdictions, is unique and much greater.

He approximated that the routes affect
approxi mately 300 hones in Youngtown within half a mle,
approxi mately 400 hones on the AQive line within half a
mle. That's in Peoria. And approxinately 145 hones on
the Northern segnent. So that's a total of 545 hones in
Peoria and residents therein that are affected, nearly
doubl e that of other jurisdictions. So the inpact is
certai nly uni que and has been acknow edged.

The other issue that Peoria has raised is just a
question of continued investigation to ensure that the
Nort hern segnent, specifically, segnent G -- Route G
excuse nme, doesn't unduly inpact the Northern Parkway
project, which, as we've heard, is a multijurisdictional
project that's been going on for a nunber of years.
That's continuing. As we heard from w tnesses, there are
federal funds tied up in that project, but they weren't
able to comment about the ram fications and the interplay
bet ween this proposed route and any federal funding.

Qobvi ously, as Peoria nentioned in its interveni ng papers,
that's the primary concern, is ensuring that no federal
funding is lost. And that wouldn't only affect Peori a.
That would affect EIl Mrage, d endale, other
jurisdictions that are involved in that project.

Peori a appreciates that APS has worked with
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ot her st akehol ders, including other jurisdictions, and
that was a gi ve-and-take process as descri bed by nenbers
of the witness panel for APS, and that resulted in sone
changes. And Peoria sinply wants that dial ogue, that
sane di al ogue. And we appreciate that APS has been doi ng
that. U timately, Peoria's request is that if the CECis
approved, it is approved with that jointly proposed
condition that both of the parties have proposed to the
Comm ttee that requires the parties to continue to
negotiate in good faith and cone up with solutions to
addr ess these concerns.

And with that, we appreciate the opportunity and
appreciate the Commttee's tine. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Anything -- you don't have any
addi ti onal exhibits, correct, M. Col estan?

MR GOLESTAN: No.

CHWN. KATZ: Anything further before we take our
| unch break?

MR, GOLESTAN: No.

CHWN. KATZ: I1'mshowing that it's just about
exactly noon. Does the Commttee want to consi der 1:007?
We'll start back at 1: 00 and start our deliberations.

And, M. Colestan, what we'll do is I'Il go
t hrough sections of this and ask the Commttee to either
approve or di sapprove of that section.
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But on page No. 2, lines 17 through 23, we're
not going to take the vote or fill that section in or
seek approval until all of the other conditions can be
agreed to as we mght nodify. And then we'll -- and the
votes to approve various sections will be just verbal.
But the final vote as to whether or not the CEC should be
issued will be a roll call vote wth each Menmber havi ng
to say yea or nay, yes or no.

Ckay. W'Ill see you in about an hour.

(A recess was taken from12:01 p.m to
1: 03 p.m)

CHWN. KATZ: What we're going to do, and this
shoul d have been enmailed to our Commttee Menbers, and it
was handed to us that are present here in the hearing
room But we're going to mark as Chairnan-1 the PDF
version, which will be kept as is.

On the right side will be the Wrd versi on of
t he sane docunent that we will work from Once that's
been finalized and approved, that will beconme Chairman
No. 2. So we will be changing what will be initially put
up on the right screen. W wll be nodifying that as we
go, and the final version wll be Chairnan-2.

And if we're ready to go, we can. And what we
nornmally do is go through certai n paragraphs, sonetinmes
several lines at once. W wll go through the additiona
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conditions as well as the Findings of Fact and
Concl usi ons of Law one by one. And after that, we go
back to the earlier portion of the docunent. And that's
on page 2, lines 17 through 22. And that we will skip
over until it's time to vote on whether to issue the CEC
or not.

MR. GOLESTAN: M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes.

MR. GOLESTAN: | propose a housekeeping matter
if I may.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes.

MR. GOLESTAN. | didn't have the opportunity
bef ore, but Peoria did include a handful of exhibits that
was submtted by the deadline that you had set out, M.
Chairman, by last Friday. | spoke with M. Derstine. W
stipulated to the entry of Peoria's exhibits into the
record.

CHWN. KATZ: Ckay. Peoria' exhibits are --

MR. GOLESTAN: Peoria-1, 2, 3, and 4.

CHWN. KATZ: Peoria Exhibits 1, 2, 3, and 4 w |
be adm tted.

(Exhibits Peoria-1 through Peoria-4 were
admtted i nto evidence.)

CHWN. KATZ: You need to get copies of those
exhibits to our court reporter.
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MR. GOLESTAN: Yes, M. Chairnan.

So Exhibit 1 is the Intergovernnental Agreenent.
That's Peoria 1.

Peoria 2 is Northern Parkway: Agua Fria River
to 99t h Avenue Scopi ng and Design Report.

And Peoria 3 is the rel evant page of the fiscal
year 2022 to 2025 Maricopa Associ ation of Governnents
Transportation | nprovenent Program

And then Peoria 4 is maps show ng the segments
that are bordering Peoria along with Northern Parkway
schedul e i nformati on.

CHWN. KATZ: And we'll get copies of those to
you so that we can confirm everything that was j ust
st at ed.

I f everybody woul d pl ease take a | ook at the

first page of the docunent.

Begi nning at line 14 through page 2, |ine
No. 16. | need everybody to take a | ook at that. And
we'll be show ng at the very begi nning of that, going
back to page 1, we have to fill in the date as March 2nd,
2022.

And on that first page, we also need to strike
Zachary Branum He did not appear at all in these

pr oceedi ngs.
And going on to the next page, page 2, | think
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it's line 3, we have David French that's been substituted
in for John Riggins fromthe Water Departnent -- or the
Depart nent of Water Resources.

Goi ng down to |line 10, Jack Haeni chen is not
present. He's having sone health-rel ated issues.

But | believe all the other nunbers of our
Commttee that are listed in the docunent are present
either in person or virtually.

And we would be adding in at line 14, | think it
is, Peoria as the intervenor or the Cty of Peoria,
represented by Saman CGol estan, Assistant Peoria Cty
At t or ney.

MR. GOLESTAN: Saman Col estan, M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: \What did | say?

MR. GOLESTAN: A little different pronunciation.

CHWN. KATZ: And take a | ook at page No. 1, line
14, through page No. 2, line 16, with the striking of the
two representatives on the Conmttee that aren't here and
adding the Gty of Peoria represented by their counsel.

And t hen once you've done that, | would wel cone
a notion to approve this portion of the CEC docunent.

MEMBER PALMER: M. Chairman, | nove approval of
page 1, line 15, through page 2, line 16, as anended.

MEMBER HAMAMY:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor say "aye."
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MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chairnman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, sir.

MEMBER GRI NNELL:

up on our screen versus the other?
Thank you, sir.
CHWN. KATZ: Is it up on there

MEMBER GRI NNELL:  Yes.

CHWN. KATZ:
version, and |I'm assum ng that --
go?

MR, DERSTI NE: Yes.

VEMBER GENTLES: M . Chai r man.

03/ 02/ 2022 426

May we get the edited version

now?

You shoul d be | ooking at the edited

are we editing it as we

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Gentles.

MEMBER GENTLES: | don't know if this is -- hold
on a second. Let nme just try sonething.

Ckay. | solved ny issue. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Okay. Fine. Thank you.

"Il ask again, all in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anyone opposed.

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: That is approved.

W'll skip lines 17 through 23. That's our
final vote.

But we begin, then, with Section B at |ine 24,

COASH & COASH, | NC
www. coashandcoash. com
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Project Overview. And that runs on through a description
of the project to the top of page 3, line 3. And we w il
be attaching a project map to this.

And once you've had a chance to ook at it, |
wll gladly receive a notion to approve.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: So noved.

MEMBER HAMAMY:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anyone opposed.

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: W next have the paragraph that
begins at line 5 on page 3 and goes through line --
actually, line 13. W've stricken fromthe docunent
lines 13 through lines 18. So we're | ooking at the
paragraph as witten fromline No. 5 on page 3 through
line 12.

And whenever, you can nove.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairnman, | have a question.
Do we want to nove it first and then discuss it?

CHWN. KATZ: Yeah. |If we have the notion and a
second, we then can discuss the |anguage. And if there's
any concerns by either of the parties, they can al so
express that concern before we take the vote.

But do we have a notion to approve that
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Condi tion No. 17

MEMBER HAMMY: So noved.

MEMBER PALMER: Second.

CHWN. KATZ: |If there's any di scussion.

Menber Little, if you had a di scussion or sone
suggest ed changes.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Maybe |I'm bei ng dense, but I'm
not quite sure what the first part of that sentence
nmeans. |s that saying that the CEC expires ten years

fromwhen it's approved or until the project is

conpl et ed?

CHWN. KATZ: | think the first phase is for ten
years.

MEMBER LI TTLE: No. | understand that. The
part that says: Unl ess construction is conpleted to the

point that the first circuit is capable of operating by
that tine.

CHWN. KATZ: But if they wanted nore tine, they
woul d have to nake a formal request to amend if |I' m not
m st aken.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ckay.

CHWN. KATZ: Any commrent from either of the
| awyers?

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chairnman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, sir, M. Ginnell.
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MEMBER GRI NNELL: W have -- I"'mwith Ms. Little
here. W have 10 years or 20 years or to the tine of
construction or to the tine of conpletion.

| think lines 6 through | guess it would be |ine
12, because it looks like it takes up to ten years. So
there's a little bit of a contradiction in here. Shal
expire ten years. And then it is deleted, yet it is to
construct the project shall expire ten years, but that's
been deleted. So are we approving 20 years?

CHWN. KATZ: We're approving ten years for
Phase 1 and 20 years for Phase 2.

MEMBER PALMER: |If they need to add the second
circuit later, they get 20 years to add those second
i nes on.

MEMBER LI TTLE: And what that says to your
| awyers is that? They have ten years to do the first
circuit unless they apply for an exception, and then they
have 20 years to do the second circuit, unless they apply
for an extension. That's what those words say?

CHWN. KATZ: | believe that's what they state.
Do either of the | awers di sagree with how we have
phrased this?

MR. DERSTINE: M. Chairman, | don't disagree.
| do pause, and maybe that was the reason for the
question from Menber Little and Menber Ginnell.
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The "unl ess” parenthetical phrase nmay be
unnecessary in this wording. So that if you strike it
fromthe word "unl ess" to the semcolon, it would read:
This authorization to construct the Project shall expire
ten (10) years fromthe date the Certificate is approved
by the Arizona Corporation Comm ssion; provided, however,
that the authorization to construct the second circuit of
the Project shall expire twenty (20) years fromthe date
of this Certificate.

And then you could put a period there, and it
could just indicate that -- it can still be the
sem col on, but there's two of these "provided." Yeah,
it probably should be a period after "Certificate."

CHWN. KATZ: And then "However"?

MEMBER LI TTLE: Not even "However." Just
"Provi ded. "

MR. DERSTINE: Provided that prior to either
such expiration the Applicant or its assignees may

request that the Conmm ssion extend this tine limtation.

MEMBER LI TTLE: | personally think that's nore
cl ear.
CHWN. KATZ: Do you want to nove that we woul d
amend?
MEMBER LI TTLE: Yes.
MEMBER GRI NNELL: Well, before we get to that
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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anendnent, |I'd like to go back to the docunent instead of
my picture.

Bring the docunment back up to the screen,
please. |1'mseeing Ms. Little, which is fine, except I
can't read the docunent.

There we go.

| guess --

CHWN. KATZ: Go ahead.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: | guess we're asking for two
ten-year approvals now, in essence. So the authorized to
construct a second circuit --

CHWN. KATZ: It's 20 years fromright now.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Wiy don't we do 20 years
al t oget her or say approve the second project for an
addi ti onal ten years?

MEMBER HAMMY: | personally feel this is fine.
It's inmportant that they get the first one in. And they
just didn't want to come back in for the second one. So
| think if we can make that clear, we're good.

MEMBER GRINNELL: |I'ma little apprehensive to
gi ve 20 years out because of the constant change. Wat
if they decide to do solar instead of these power |ines.
I'ma little concerned because we don't know what's goi ng
to happen ten years fromnow, |et al one 20.

CHWN. KATZ: |If they decide that they're not
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going to build the second circuit and they're going to
replace it with battery storage or solar, they can file a
notion to anend the CEC. But |'d rather not have them
conme back to us if the second phase begins at year 8 and
doesn't finished until year 15 or doesn't get started
until year 11 and finishes at year 20. | just think that
t hat contingency is hel pful.

MEMBER PALMER: | agree.

CHWN. KATZ: M. GCentles.

MEMBER GENTLES: | agree, M. Chairnan.

CHWN. KATZ: Ms. Little, do you nove that we
anend in accord wth what was suggested by M. Derstine?

MEMBER LI TTLE: | do. And could we perhaps see
that witten in that fornf

MR, DERSTI NE: Yes.

CHWN. KATZ: Before we vote on it, we certainly

will
But is there a second for the anendnent to this
section?
MEMBER PALMER:  Second.
CHWN. KATZ: Do we have -- okay. It's seconded.
And go ahead and take fromline 6 through
line -- what is now |line 12 and naeke the anendnents that

were just proposed. Add themto the docunent.
MR. DERSTINE: | think they are shown there
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right nowin No. 1 where it reads: Thi s aut hori zati on
to construct the first circuit shall expire ten (10)
years fromthe date of the Certificate -- fromthe
date -- the date the Certificate is approved by the
Ari zona Corporati on Comm ssion and the authorization to
construct the second circuit -- | don't know if "the
project” is needed, but it can be there -- of the Project
shall expire twenty (20) years fromthe date of this
Certificate. Provided, however, that prior to either
such expiration the Applicant or it's assignee nmay
request that the Comm ssion extend this tine |imtation.
MEMBER HAMMY: M. Chairnman, isn't that
Condi tion 2?
MR. DERSTINE: 2 does cover the extension,

correct.

CHWN. KATZ: Do we need that |ast "provided" in
there at all, then?

MR. DERSTI NE: Probably does not need to be
t here.

CHWN. KATZ: Wiy don't we take it out because
it's covered in the next section.

Any di sagreenment with taking that "provided"
out ?

All in favor of the anendnment that we've just
di scussed pl ease say "aye."
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3.
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(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?
MEMBER GRI NNELL: Opposed.
CHWN. KATZ: Okay. It passes.
Condition No. 2 --

434

VEMBER PALNER: M. Chai rman, we voted on the

MEMBER HAMAMY:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any further discussion?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Opposed?

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Opposed.

CHWN. KATZ: The neasure passes as anended.
No. 2 begins -- that deals wi th extensions.

line 19 on page 3 and runs through page 4,

Do we have a notion to approve?
MEMBER HAMMY: | nove Condition 2.
MEMBER PALMER: Second.

MEMBER GENTLES: Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?
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(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Condition 3 is beginning on line --
| believe it's 5 on page 4 and runs through |ine 20 of
that page. And take a look at it.

And if we are in agreenment with -- and it does
have sonme changes from ot her counties because this was
taken from another CEC. The additions and
stri ke-throughs are part of it.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chairman, may we see line
18, 19, and 20 just to confirnf? Ch, | guess |line 17.
Excuse ne.

CHWN. KATZ: It's hard to tell. A lot of this
I's between |ines.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Motion to approve.

CHWN. KATZ: Any second?

MEMBER FRENCH: Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any further discussion?

(No response.)

CHW. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: The next section or condition is
Condition No. 4 that begins at |line 22 and ends on --
well, it ends at the bottomof this page at line 26 or
26 1/2. And it deals with the applicant shall obtain al
approval s and permts necessary to construct before they
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begi n construction of the project.

MEMBER HAMMY: M. Chairman, should we add Luke
Air Force Base? Do they give a permt?

MR SIMPSON: It's operational review and
approval of the design. | don't think there's an
official permt the FAA would issue.

MEMBER HAMMY: So woul d we need to put the FAA
in there?

CHWN. KATZ: Well, we have the jurisdiction,
including, but not limted to, the United States of
Aneri can.

MEMBER HAMMY: Ckay. That's fine.

CHWN. KATZ: In ny experience in dealing with

Luke, because | do mlitary airport-related matters in

review ng general plans, | think we're fine as is. They
don't generally issue a permt, but they'll issue a
letter.

MEMBER HAMMY: Ckay. | nove Condition 4.

MEMBER DRAGO  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any di scussion?
(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.
(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: All opposed.
(No response.)
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CHWN. KATZ: The nmatter passes.

Moving on to page 5 --

MEMBER GENTLES: M. Chairman, just a point of
reference. 1|s that how Condition 4 is usually worded,
wth the exception, of course, of the specific
muni ci palities?

MEMBER HAMMY: Yes. | believe it is.

CHWN. KATZ: | believe it is.

MEMBER GENTLES: Ckay.

CHWN. KATZ: No. 5 is on page 5, lines 1 through

4.
MEMBER HAMMY: | nove condition 5.
CHWN. KATZ: Second?
MEMBER PALMER:  Second.
CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.
MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman, | have a question.
CHWN. KATZ: Certainly, Menber Little.
MEMBER LI TTLE: Does this -- and naybe it's a
| egal question. |I'mnot sure. Does this condition

obligate the applicant to foll ow the recommendati ons t hat
were made with regard to -- there were several species,
the ow, the burrowi ng ow, and several species that the
recommendati on was that a survey be done before
constructi on begi ns.

MR. DERSTINE: M. Chairman, Menber Little, | do
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read it as you have stated, that it does require that we
consult with Arizona Gane and Fi sh concerning the
recommendati ons set forth in their letter to Burns &
McDonnel | concerning this project as well as consult with
them on a going-forward basis and to conply with all of
t hei r gui dance.

CHWN. KATZ: And that's also with respect to
U S Fish and WIildlife Service.

Is there a notion to approve?

MEMBER HAMMY: So noved.

MEMBER PALMER: Second.

CHW. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: The condition is approved.

Condition 6 requires the applicant design the
project to incorporate reasonable neasures to mnimze
el ectrocution of avian species. And we're now dealing
w th gui delines that have been pronul gated but not
formal |y adopted yet as rules.

But is there a notion to approve No. 6.

MEMBER PALMER: Move Condition 6.

MEMBER HAMAMY:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?
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(No response.)
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CHWN. KATZ: And that was |lines 6 through 11 on

Moving to line 12, Condition 7. And it requires

consultation with the State H storic Preservation Ofice

regar di ng archeol ogi cal and ot her cultural resources.

And that's through |ine 18.

MEMBER HAMMY: So noved, Condition No. 7.
MEMBER PALMER: Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Condition 8. The applicant shall

conply with the notice and sal vage requirenents of the

Ari zona Native Pl ant Law. And | won't read the rest of

it.

But do we have a notion?

MEMBER HAMMY: | nove Condition 8.
MEMBER PALMER:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Moving on to line either 24 1/2 or
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25, but it's No. 9.
MEMBER HAMMY: | nove Condition 9.
CHWN. KATZ: Any second?
MEMBER GRI NNELL: Second.
CHWN. KATZ: Any discussion?
(No response.)
CHW. KATZ: Al in favor.
(A chorus of "ayes.")
CHWN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?
(No response.)
CHWN. KATZ: | didn't nention that that

condition goes on to page 6 through line 10.

Moving on to Condition No. 10. And it deals

wth the discovery of human or funerary renains or

440

objects and the requirenent to conply with AR S. 41-865

and 41-844.
MEMBER PALMER: Mbve Condition 10.
MEMBER HAMAMY:  Second.
CHWN. KATZ: Any di scussion?
(No response.)
CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.
(A chorus of "ayes.")
CHWN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?
(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: The next provision begins at

i ne
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16, No. 11, that requires wthin 130 days of the decision

the applicant is required to post signs to the extent

aut hori zed by | aw advi sing the public of the decision.
And we did add not too | ong ago that the

applicant at page 7, line No. 1 and 2, which is where the

condition ends, that applicant shall neake every

reasonable effort to conmuni cate the decision either

approving or disapproving the certificate in digital

medi a.
Is there any notion to approve?
MEMBER PALMER: So noved 11.
MEMBER HAMAMY:  Second.
CHWN. KATZ: Any further discussion?
(No response.)
CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.
(A chorus of "ayes.")
CHWN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?
(No response.)
CHWN. KATZ: That's approved.
And we'll nove on to page 7, Condition No. 12.
MEMBER HAMMY: | nove Condition 12.
MEMBER GENTLES: Second.
CHWN. KATZ: Any discussion?
(No response.)
CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.
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(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: It goes on page 7, again, lines 4

t hrough 13.

Condi tion No. 13.

MEMBER HAMMY: | nove Condition 13.
MEMBER GENTLES: Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any di scussion?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Condition 13 is approved.
Condi tion 14.

MEMBER HAMMY: | nove Condition 14.
CHWN. KATZ: Second?

MEMBER PALMER: Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any di scussion?

(No response.)

CHW. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: And that's through |lines 16 through

i ne 20.
Line 21 is recommend Condition 15.
MEMBER PALMER: Move Condition 15.
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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MEMBER HAMMAY:  Second.
CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.
(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: And | forgot to ask if there was

any di scussi on, but anybody opposed?

26 1/ 2.

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Condition 16 begins on line 26 or

MEMBER HAMMY: Mve Condition 16.

MEMBER DRAGO  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: And that goes on to page 8, |line 1.
I's there a second?

MEMBER HAMMY: Yes, there was, Len.
CHWN. KATZ: Any further discussion?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: The condition is approved.
MEMBER HAMMY: We've got to take a vote.
CHWN. KATZ: I1'mgetting old and senil e.
Al in favor of Condition 16.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: The condition passes.

Take your tine to read Condition 17, which

begins on page 8, line 3, through |line 23 on that page.
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MEMBER HAMMY: | nove Condition 17.

MEMBER PALMER:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any di scussion

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anyone opposed.

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Condition 18 requires the
applicant, APS, to submt the conpliance |letter annually
identifying the progress of the project. And it goes on.
And that's on page 8, line 25 1/2, going through page
No. 9, line No. 9.

MEMBER HAMMY: | nove Condition 18.

MEMBER PALMER: Second.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Qui ck question, M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Sure.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Sonebody said earlier about
Luke Air Force Base. Wuldn't that be the Departnent of
Def ense or even the State Departnent would be included in
all these? Because they are an interested party, to say
the least. |Is that necessary for these, or is this just
a state docunent again?

CHWN. KATZ: Any comment from counsel? | don't
know that it hurts us to include Luke Air Force Base.
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The state statutes that | regularly deal wth just
require us to notify the affected mlitary facility and
not the Department of Defense. But | don't know whet her
counsel thinks it should be added or not.

MR. DERSTINE: Well, | would say that the
requirenment to conply with Luke's height limtations and
concerns, as | understand it, is enforced by the Federal
Avi ation Adm nistration, and that requirenents are
covered by Condition No. 4.

This provision deals with the conpliance
certificate and | guess notification. O | guess we're
on -- are we on 197

MEMBER HAMAMAY: 18.

MR. DERSTINE: And so | think if it's the
Comm ttee's desire that we sonehow notify Luke Air Force
Base in addition to these |local jurisdictions, | think
we' re okay with that.

CHW. KATZ: Do | have a notion to anmend to
i ncl ude Luke Air Force Base?

MEMBER GRI NNELL: I'll make that notion.

CHWN. KATZ: M. Ginnell has noved.

Any second?

MEMBER HAMAMY:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any di scussion?

(No response.)
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CHW. KATZ: Al in favor of the anendnent.
(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: W will add Luke Air Force Base to

that condition on page 9.

Condi tion 19?
VEMBER HAMAMAY: | nove Condition --
CHWN. KATZ: Ch wait. W didn't vote on the --

| think we voted on the anendnent.

anended.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: | nove Condition 18 as

MEMBER HAMAMY:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any di scussion?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Now we'll nove to Condition 19.
MEMBER HAMMY: | nove Condition 19.

MEMBER DRAGO  Second.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Can | propose an anmendnent that

we al so add Luke Air Force Base to that one?

CHWN. KATZ: WAs there a second to the notion to
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anend?

MEMBER HAMAMY:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any discussion?
(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.
(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: W will add Luke Air Force Base as

a party to get notified.

t hat was

And now do we have a notion --

MEMBER PALMER: Move 19 as anended.

MEMBER HAMMY:  Second.

CHW. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Moving on. The next section -- and
Condition 19, lines 11 through 13 on page 9.

We're now picking up at line 14 with Condition

20 that deals with transfer or assignnent of the

certificate.

MEMBER HAMMY: | nove Condition 20.
MEMBER GRI NNELL: Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any discussion?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.
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(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: It passes.

No. 21 is on line 18 through line 22 of page 9.

MEMBER HAMMY: | nove Condition 21.

CHWN. KATZ: |Is there a second?

MEMBER PALMER:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any discussion?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anybody posed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Condition 22 begins at line |I guess
23 1/2 or 24. That runs to line 28 on page 9 or the
bottom of page 9. And | know that our |ines and page
nunbers may have been changed on the anended docunent
Chai rman No. 2.

But do we have a notion to approve Condition 227

MEMBER HAMMY: So noved.

MEMBER PALMER: Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Discussion?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.
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(A chorus of "ayes.")

449

CHWN. KATZ: And that runs through page 10, line

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes.

MEMBER LI TTLE: | don't see anything in there
about the area that is being investigated for
undergrounding. | don't see any --

CHWN. KATZ: That's the next condition.

MEMBER LI TTLE: It's not on the one on ny
screen. | apol ogi ze.

CHWN. KATZ: Wiile we could have done it
differently, this is what was stipulated or agreed to
bet ween Ari zona Public Service and the City of Peori a.

Is that substantially correct, Counsel?

MR. GOLESTAN: That's correct, M. Chairnan,

wth one small grammatical correction, but, yes, it has

been stipulated to in substance.
CHWN. KATZ: And do you agree, M. (ol estan?
MR. GOLESTAN:  Yes.

CHWN. KATZ: And where is the grammatical error

in Condition No. -- this would be No. 23.

MR. GOLESTAN: Line 10 says "constructed."”
Shoul d be "construed" after "current."

CHW. KATZ: | don't think we need a fornal
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notion to anend. That's just a grammatical error. So
please read it. And line 10, "construed" rather than
"constructed. "

MEMBER HAMMY: | nove Condition 23.

CHWN. KATZ: Any second?

MEMBER DRAGO  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any di scussion?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: W now have sone Findi ngs of Fact
and Concl usi ons of Law that begin on page 10, |ine 14.

And Fi ndi ng of Fact or Concl usion of Law No. 1:
The Project aids the state and the sout hwest regi on of
the United States in neeting the need for an adequat e,
econom cal, and reliable supply of renewable el ectric
power .

MEMBER PALMER: Move Findi ng of Fact and
Concl usi on of Law 1.

MEMBER HAMAMY:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any discussion?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.
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(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: The second Finding is the project

aids the state preserving a safe and reliable electric

transm ssi on system

Mot i on?

VEMBER HAMAMAY: | nove Fact and Concl usi on of

Law No. 2.

MEMBER PALMER:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: |It's been seconded.

Any di scussi on?

(No response.)

CHW. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: The condition is approved.

Fi ndi ng of Fact and Concl usi on of Law No. 3 on

page 10, line 21 through 22.
Do we have a notion?
MEMBER HAMMAY: | nove Finding of Fact No. 3.
MEMBER PALMER: Second.
CHWN. KATZ: Any discussion?
(No response.)
CHW. KATZ: Al in favor.
(A chorus of "ayes.")
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CHWN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: It passes.

No. 4 is at line 23 through |ine 25.

MEMBER PALMER: Mbve Findi ng of Fact and
Concl usi on 4.

MEMBER HAMAMY:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any di scussion?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Finding of Fact and Concl usi on of
Law No. 5: The conditions placed on the Project in the
Certificate resolve natters concerni ng bal anci ng the need
for the Project with its inpact on the environnental and
ecol ogy and so forth.

Pl ease read it and if we could have a notion.

MEMBER HAMMAY: | nove Finding of Fact No. 5.

MEMBER PALMER: Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any discussion?

(No response.)

CHW. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")
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CHWN. KATZ: And the condition does go on to
page 11 through line 2.

And picking up at line 3, No. 6, Finding of Fact
and Conclusion of Law. The Project is in the public
i nterest.

And when you're confortabl e.

MEMBER HAMMAY: | nove Finding of Fact No. 6.

MEMBER PALMER:  Second.

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor.

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Now what we're going to do is take
a |l ook at page No. 2, lines 17 through 22. And I'll read
that for the record.

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Commttee,
after considering the (i) Application, (ii) evidence,
testi nony and exhi bits presented by Applicant and
intervenors, and (iii) comments of the public, and being
advi sed of the legal requirenments of Arizona Revi sed
Statutes Section 40-360 through Section 40-360. 13, upon
noti on duly made and seconded.

And we're now going to take a vote on this. And
it will be aroll call vote. And we're going to need a
nmotion to -- | think we have a notion right now. | think
we need a vote. And then we approve. Any disagreenent?

Ckay. Wat I'd like to do is if you are going
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to be voting in favor of this CEC as it's currently
witten with what ever anendnents we've agreed to and |
woul d just ask -- I'"'mgoing to start with M. Drago.

How do you vote on this matter?

MEMBER DRAGO. | vote aye.

CHWN. KATZ: Ms. Hammay.

MEMBER HAMAMAY: | vote aye.

CHWN. KATZ: M. Pal ner.

MEMBER PALMER: | vote aye and would just I|ike
to commend the applicant on a good application. These
are never easy, and there are always mtigating
circunstances. And this is inportant. And | appreciate
the fact that they | ook far enough out ahead to keep
things noving. W can't wait until the 11th hour to do
these. And | appreciate their foresight and preparation
in getting these ready.

CHWN. KATZ: M. French.

MEMBER FRENCH: | vote aye.

CHW. KATZ: And M. Ginnell.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: "' m sorry. | was on mute.

For nme, | guess it's getting a little easier to
read i nformati on beforehand and followit a | ot easier
w t hout having 20 letters arrive with changes and
addi ti ons and everything el se.

I*"'mnot confortable with the 10-year extension
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or 20-year part. But overall, it's a good plan. And I
wll leave it to M. Gentles to opine on the public
relations since that's his bailiw ck

But thank you to all the people present.

| vote aye.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you.

Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: | vote aye.

I would like to second what M. Drago sai d about
the application. And | would also |like to encourage the
applicant and the City of Peoria to do everything
possible to get that section of the |ine underground. |
know that it's very expensive to underground transm ssion
lines of this voltage. However, particularly when we
have a custoner who is willing to bear the cost, | think
that it's inportant that we recogni ze the needs of the
public in these areas.

Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: And you vote how agai n? Aye.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Aye.

CHWN. KATZ: And |l ast, but not | east,

M. Gentles.

MEMBER CGENTLES: | vote aye.

And | would just like to say that | do
appreciate the applicant's forward thinking and their
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wor k ahead of tinme with the public to get their input.
And while we realize there are sone people that say they
weren't notified or didn't receive the notification, |I'm
confortable with the process that they foll owed to nake
sure that notification was appropri ate.

And so while | do conplinment the applicant, |
don't want people to think I'm going soft or anything.

' mgoing to keep a sharp eye on how this public outreach
works. But in this case, | think they did a fairly
decent j ob.

Wth that, | vote aye.

CHWN. KATZ: And | vote aye.

And | do want to thank the |lawers for their
organi zed preparation. And | trust that both the Gty of
Peoria and APS will continue to negotiate in good faith
to determ ne the best route in the subject area in
di spute as to whether it should be undergrounded or its
| ocation or otherw se nodified.

And that being said, as | said, | vote aye.

And | think there are eight of us. And the vote
was eight in favor and zero opposed.

Is there anything further that we need to take
care of before we recess this proceedi ng?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Hearing nothing, | want to thank
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everybody for their participation.

Qur next hearing for the Commttee Menbers is |
bel i eve on March the 14th in Florence, Arizona. And |I'm
encour agi ng everybody, if they can, to be physically
present if you are able. | understand sone of you, it's
a hardship or a long-distance trip, and | understand
t hat .

Anyway, | appreciate all of you.

And the last thing | would ask is we need APS to

make sure that this CEC, as approved and edited, gets

sent to Tod. Tod and | will probably neet tonorrow or on
Friday, and I'lIl make sure it's in proper order and sign
off onit, and we'll get it back to you.

Thank you all.
(The hearing concluded at 1:49 p.m)
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STATE OF ARl ZONA

)

)
COUNTY OF MARI COPA )

BE IT KNOMN t hat the foregoi ng proceedi ngs were
t aken before ne; that the foregoing pages are a full,
true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to
the best of ny skill and ability; that the proceedi ngs
were taken down by ne in shorthand and thereafter reduced
to print under ny direction.

| CERTIFY that | amin no way related to any of the
parties hereto nor aml in any way interested in the
out conme her eof .

| CERTIFY that | have conplied with the ethica
obligations set forth in ACIA 7-206(F)(3) and
ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(9)(1) and (2). Dated at Phoeni X,
Ari zona, this 6th day of March, 2022.

@W%d Jutoon_

CARCLYN T. SULLI VAN
Arizona Certified Reporter
No. 50528

I CERTIFY that COASH & COASH, INC., has conplied
wth the ethical obligations set forth in
ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g) (1) through (6).

Ao A cf’/i«//

COASH & COASH,
Ari zona Reglstered Flrm
No. R1036
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           1            BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and



           2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the



           3   Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
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           6   2nd day of March, 2022.



           7
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           9        LEONARD DRAGO, Department of Environmental Quality

                    DAVID FRENCH, Arizona Department of Water Resources

          10        JAMES PALMER, Agriculture Interests
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          12        KARL GENTLES, General Public
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          13        MARGARET "TOBY" LITTLE, PE, General Public
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Good morning, everybody.  I think



           2   everybody has their morning cups of coffee filled, so I



           3   think we're ready to get started.  This is the third day



           4   of our hearing in the West Valley Central 230kV



           5   Connection Project.



           6            And we now have approximate -- it's almost ten



           7   minutes after 9, and we'll get started.



           8            Counsel, we are now, I think, getting to the



           9   noise-related environmental issues.



          10            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Good



          11   morning.  Members of the Committee, good morning.



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  Hold on just a second.  I notice



          13   that Member Little and Member Grinnell always have their



          14   cameras on.  But I would ask you if you have your camera



          15   on that your video is on so that we make sure we have a



          16   quorum.  But I would appreciate it if you are



          17   participating virtually.



          18            That being said, Mr. Derstine, please feel free



          19   to begin.



          20            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



          21            MR. DERSTINE:  We left off yesterday.



          22   Mr. Simpson took us through 90 percent or 95 percent of



          23   the environmental studies that were performed --



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  Let me just interrupt you for just



          25   a second.  I'm getting a double sound.  It's delayed, so
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           1   I'm hearing an echo.



           2            (Off the record for technical issue.)



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



           4



           5          DAVID WILEY, KEVIN DUNCAN, RANDALL SIMPSON,



           6                       AND KRISTIN DARR,



           7   called as witnesses as a panel on behalf of Applicant,



           8   having been previously sworn by the Chairman to speak the



           9   truth and nothing but the truth, were examined and



          10   testified as follows:



          11



          12                   DIRECT EXAMINATION (Cont.)



          13   BY MR. DERSTINE:



          14      Q.    We covered the bulk of your environmental



          15   analysis, but one of the topics that any applicant



          16   seeking a CEC from this Committee is required to study



          17   and present to the Committee is noise impacts,



          18   anticipated noise of the project.



          19            Mr. Wiley, you're going to cover the noise



          20   studies that was performed for the West Valley Central



          21   Project.



          22      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Certainly.  APS performed noise



          23   impact analysis under various weather conditions,



          24   including light rain conditions and fair weather



          25   conditions.
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           1            If you take a look at the right-hand screen,



           2   you'll see two different plots.  The top plot here



           3   represents fair weather conditions.  In the worst case,



           4   it would be about 13 decibels of audible noise in fair



           5   weather conditions.  The bottom plot shows noise impacts



           6   under light rain conditions.  Under light rain



           7   conditions, we can expect up to 25 decibels of audible



           8   noise.



           9            If you take a look at the temperature gauge, if



          10   you will, on the right-hand side, it gives you some



          11   insight into what level that would be.  And 40 decibels



          12   would be a soft whisper from 5 feet away.  And, again,



          13   the worst-case scenario of light rain, you would be about



          14   25 decibels.



          15      Q.    The noise as you've modeled it here, the noise



          16   that would be generated by the segments of the project,



          17   is it comparable, the same as, what we would anticipate



          18   from other 230kV lines on APS's system?



          19      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, it is.  It is comparable with



          20   other 230kV lines.  These lines are located in



          21   industrial, residential, and agricultural areas and, as



          22   you heard on the site tour yesterday, the operations of



          23   Luke Air Force.  So we do feel that there will be minimal



          24   noise impacts due to this project.



          25      Q.    Anything else you want to add on noise impacts
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           1   or anticipated noise impacts?



           2      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  No.



           3      Q.    So, Mr. Simpson, that takes us back to you to



           4   kind of wrap this all up for the Committee in terms of



           5   the environmental analysis, your analysis and your



           6   opinions regarding the impact of the project.



           7            And I guess, ultimately, is it compatible?  Is



           8   it environmentally compatible, to use the term that's



           9   applied to these projects and that the Committee takes



          10   into consideration?



          11      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Thank you.



          12            Yes.  Everything we've discussed during the



          13   hearings and even in the field yesterday is included in



          14   our application and exhibits.  There's a fair amount of



          15   detail in those studies.  All of our methodologies, all



          16   of the results of our impact assessment is included in



          17   there as well as conclusions for each of the different



          18   environmental disciplines.



          19            So we feel pretty confident in our findings



          20   here.  This was a long process, and we had a lot of good



          21   engagement with the public and the agencies.  So the



          22   conclusions that we're making are based on the technical



          23   studies we've completed, the field work we've done, and



          24   the participation we've had from the public and agencies.



          25   And it also included a lot of analysis from APS on the
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           1   operations and engineering side.  And all that blended



           2   together to come up with these proposed routes that we



           3   have deemed environmentally compatible.



           4            A couple things I'd like to point out is that



           5   because the lines are primarily located in industrial



           6   areas or areas that we anticipate will be industrial in



           7   the future, they do conform to the applicable general and



           8   comprehensive plans that each of the jurisdictions have



           9   that we cross.  And, you know, that was an important



          10   early consideration when we first started gathering data.



          11   And as the route processing was done, it became evident



          12   that that was the best location for this project.



          13            We are located adjacent to 5 1/2 miles of



          14   existing transmission lines, so about half the project



          15   area.  We have 8 miles of roadway that we're paralleling,



          16   which has a high degree of compatibility, oftentimes



          17   sharing common rights-of-way.  We have 1 mile of



          18   railroad, and we have four substations which exist and



          19   one that will be build in relation to this project, that



          20   being the TS-2 Substation.



          21            Overall, our conclusion is that we don't have



          22   any adverse impacts to existing and planned land uses,



          23   recreation resources, visual resources, cultural



          24   resources, and biological resources.



          25            There are impacts out there.  We've disclosed
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           1   those in our findings.  It's very difficult to construct



           2   one of these projects without having some sort of impact;



           3   but considering the whole environment of this area, these



           4   routes minimize the impacts and don't have any



           5   substantial impacts that would be considered as, you



           6   know, a restriction for developing this type of project.



           7            Again, the design standards that APS employs on



           8   these projects as well as selective mitigation measures



           9   are intended to further reduce any impacts.  They do



          10   include a number of things, for example, using dull



          11   metal-finish towers, spanning of certain sensitive



          12   features that may be in a given area.  Nonspecular



          13   conductors.  A lot of that is kind of part of their



          14   standard design nowadays with these mines.  And that



          15   helps to reduce some of the impacts.



          16            Other areas, you know, they may take specific



          17   actions to reduce impacts.  We've heard some about the



          18   potential for undergrounding.  That would be a specific



          19   mitigation measure that they could include if that is the



          20   decision the Committee makes to reduce impacts.



          21            And, again, I mentioned this yesterday, we have



          22   seven letters of support from various entities, Luke Air



          23   Force Base being an important part of that.  It included



          24   letters from the agencies that are responsible for



          25   administering plans and approvals in this area.
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           1            And then a couple of key land developers that we



           2   worked very closely with who own a large portion of the



           3   open space or the developable land in the area.  So we



           4   had a lot of discussions with landowners.  And at the end



           5   of those discussions, we got a lot of support from them.



           6   And we have an understanding of how their designs are



           7   going to go forward, and they have expressed pretty



           8   explicitly where they would like the location of the



           9   lines to be.  And I think that's going to help APS when



          10   they move into their right-of-way acquisition phase and



          11   also their design phase.  It should really do a lot to



          12   help move that process along.



          13            So, overall, in conclusion, I want to emphasize



          14   the total process taking many months, and I think we had



          15   a lot of support from the community.  And we have the



          16   best routes given the over 50 miles of route alternatives



          17   that we studied.



          18            MR. DERSTINE:  Member Grinnell, I think I saw



          19   you on the screen, but was there a question you had?



          20            MEMBER GRINNELL:  No.  I was just going to -- I



          21   was back to the previous slide that discussed -- one of



          22   our conditions is about radio waves and radio towers,



          23   television.  I just wanted to make sure that that's all



          24   been addressed.



          25      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Simpson, can you speak to
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           1   that.  Are you aware of any potential for interference



           2   with radio towers or radio communication or cell towers



           3   within proximity to the new proposed transmission lines?



           4      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes.  Thank you for the question.



           5            APS did evaluate those types of interference,



           6   and that is included in Exhibit I, and there were no



           7   expected interferences.



           8            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Thank you.



           9            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you for raising that,



          10   Member Grinnell.



          11            MR. SIMPSON:  This question was asked yesterday,



          12   and maybe this is a good place to introduce that.  There



          13   was a question about the proximity of the residences



          14   within a half mile of the routes.  And I did do some



          15   tabulations to identify the number of residences that are



          16   in proximity to the route just for perspective.  These



          17   aren't precise counts.  I wasn't able to go out in the



          18   field to verify them, but I used some pretty reliable



          19   aerial imagery and feel like these numbers are fairly



          20   accurate or at least representative of the number of



          21   homes near the lines.



          22            The Agua Fria Ranch community, which is north of



          23   Peoria, this long stretch -- or, excuse me -- north of



          24   Olive Avenue in Youngtown is one of the communities



          25   that's adjacent to the line.  And if you look at a half
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           1   mile from the line, it takes you approximately halfway up



           2   the subdivision.  And I estimated there to be about 290



           3   homes in that area.  So give or take 300 would be a



           4   reasonable reference for that.



           5            For the north side of the Suncliff Subdivision,



           6   which is located between Olive and Northern, I estimated



           7   there to be approximately 400.



           8            At the south end of the Agua Fria -- or, excuse



           9   me -- Suncliff Subdivision along the Agua Fria River, it



          10   narrows here.  This was one of our stops yesterday.  I



          11   estimated there to be about 145 homes in that area within



          12   a half mile of route.



          13            And then in the Dysart Ranchettes area along



          14   Peoria, I estimated to be approximately 125, which would



          15   be up in this vicinity right here.  So a half mile north



          16   of Peoria Avenue.



          17            And then we have some of those more isolated



          18   rural residences we pointed out in the field tour, a few



          19   of which exist along Olive Avenue.  There's approximately



          20   ten in this area.  There are a few along Litchfield Road,



          21   which are set inside the farming operations there.  And



          22   there are about three on the east side of the road and



          23   then two that I'm aware of on the west side.



          24            So, in total, approximately 975.  So give or



          25   take 1,000 would be a reasonable estimate within a half
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           1   mile.



           2            Maybe to further break that down to give some



           3   perspective, if you were to half that distance, so a



           4   quarter mile, you would probably expect 500 residences.



           5   At an eighth mile, which is about 660 feet, so two



           6   football field lengths, which is a pretty good distance,



           7   you could assume a quarter of that.  So maybe 2- to 300



           8   would be a reasonable estimate for that.



           9            And so I think the question is why don't we get



          10   more participation.  And I actually feel like when I



          11   compare this to a lot of projects I've worked on, we had



          12   fairly good participation.  It's not uncommon to have



          13   fairly large study areas and a lot of population.  If you



          14   get two or three hundred comments, it's probably a pretty



          15   good process, pretty good results.  Sometimes we work on



          16   projects where we get very little input, and sometimes



          17   you get a lot.



          18            But compared to some projects in the West



          19   Valley, I think we got a very similar level of



          20   participation.  And I think, as Ms. Darr said, the people



          21   that are in close proximity to the routes are probably



          22   the most likely to participate, and I think that's what



          23   we're seeing to some degree here.



          24      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  And I guess to close the point



          25   on the number of residences, whether they were a half
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           1   mile away or 660 feet away, they were within our study



           2   area, notification area, and received newsletters and had



           3   an opportunity to provide comment?



           4      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yeah.  Our notification would



           5   have been at least a mile outside of any proposed



           6   alternative, so quite a broad area.



           7      Q.    All right.  Mr. Wiley, I need to circle back



           8   with you on one item, and that is APS Exhibit 20, which



           9   is the letter from Mr. Abinah, the Utilities Division



          10   director.  As always, the Chairman solicits input from



          11   Commission Staff.  In this case, it's a letter dated



          12   February 23, 2021.  Do you have that letter in front of



          13   you?



          14      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, I do.



          15      Q.    Under the -- on the second page under



          16   Conclusions and Recommendations, it states:   Based on



          17   Staff's review of the Application, as well as the



          18   Applicant's response to Staff's issued data request,



          19   Staff believes the reliability and safety of the grid



          20   would be maintained within the proposed 230kV



          21   transmission lines.



          22            Did I read that correctly.



          23      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, you did.



          24      Q.    The conclusions go on to state that Staff



          25   recommends inclusion, as a condition of the CEC, the
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           1   standard cathodic study condition to evaluate the risk of



           2   any existing natural gas or hazardous liquid pipelines.



           3            Is that condition contained in APS's proposed



           4   form of CEC?



           5      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, it is.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  And I would comment we would



           7   include it whether or not you had already done so, but I



           8   appreciate that you've done that.



           9      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  And then the last point raised



          10   in APS-20, Staff's recommendations, Staff further



          11   recommends inclusion, as a condition to this CEC, the



          12   requirement for the Applicant to lower the affected



          13   transmission structures on Route A to at or below 1,235



          14   Mean Sea Level as requested by Luke Air Force Base.



          15            And I think what they're referring to there is



          16   to Luke's letter, which is APS-15, Luke Air Force Base



          17   letter dated January 21, 2022.



          18            How do we translate 1,235 mean sea level as a



          19   height restriction into structures?  As I understand it,



          20   APS is requesting authorization to build structures that



          21   will support the segments, the line segments of this



          22   project, that will range up to 195 feet.



          23            Is that at or below the 1,235 mean sea level



          24   height?



          25      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  I believe that could vary depending
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           1   on the specific location of that structure.  However, APS



           2   will adhere to Luke's requirement of being at 1,235 feet



           3   within their APZ.



           4      Q.    Okay.  So the request in terms of heights that I



           5   think Mr. Duncan covered for the structures, we're happy



           6   to include and abide by Luke's request and include a



           7   condition in the CEC that ensures that we don't exceed



           8   that height limitation on Route A, which is the specific



           9   focus of Luke's comment, right?



          10      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes.



          11      Q.    All right.  Mr. Simpson gave us the conclusions,



          12   the environmental conclusions, and kind of wrapped up all



          13   the issues that come into play when we're developing a



          14   project like this from an environmental perspective.



          15            I wanted to circle back with the members of the



          16   panel and see if you had any final comments.  Maybe we'll



          17   start with you, Mr. Wiley, since you started us off back



          18   on Monday with a discussion of the purpose and need for



          19   the project.



          20      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes.  I believe that the three



          21   separate lines that we're requesting do meet the needs of



          22   our customer, and they will serve the ultimate load of



          23   245 megawatts.



          24            Additionally, this allows them to meet their



          25   reliability requirements without needing backup diesel
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           1   generation and along with that, the emissions and the



           2   noise impact that that would bring.



           3            Lastly, it allows us to continue to allow for



           4   economic development within the project area.



           5      Q.    There's a bullet there that says Regulatory



           6   Requirements.  I think that refers to the topics that you



           7   and I just covered in terms of Staff's requests in terms



           8   of proposed conditions for the CEC; is that right?



           9      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that's correct.



          10      Q.    Before I get to you, Ms. Darr, let me turn back



          11   to Mr. Duncan.  If you have anything you'd like to --



          12   final words you would like to say to the Committee



          13   concerning the project and aspects of the project for



          14   which you were responsible.  And I've got some funny



          15   feedback on my mic at the moment.



          16      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Thank you, Mr. Derstine.



          17            So I just want to thank my fellow panelists here



          18   for the thorough and accurate story that they've told



          19   about this project and just want to conclude by



          20   emphasizing that this project meets APS's requirements to



          21   fulfill our customer request.  And this project is



          22   designed not only to fulfill that purpose and need but to



          23   meet it in a way that minimizes the impacts while still



          24   meeting that purpose and need.



          25            As Mr. Simpson stated, it does not eliminate
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           1   impacts.  Projects of this nature have impacts.  But we



           2   have diligently worked to identify a project route and



           3   segments that are compatible.  Compatible with the nature



           4   of the study area.  Compatible.  They're not zero impact.



           5   They do have impacts, but they are compatible, and they



           6   minimize those impacts.



           7            We have done a diligent and thorough public



           8   outreach process to inform the public and gain support



           9   when available but also identify those issues and work to



          10   address those issues and have done so as best we can



          11   while still meeting the objectives that we have to



          12   fulfill our purpose and need for our customers.



          13            As Mr. Simpson testified, we went through a very



          14   thorough siting study.  And through regular and routine



          15   processes that this Committee has seen before and



          16   approved projects through, we followed this process to



          17   identify a reasonable set of alternatives that were



          18   feasible and constructable, provided opportunity for our



          19   stakeholders to hear about those and provide input.  And



          20   we have designed, again, a project that best fits all



          21   those.



          22            And as Mr. Simpson has stated, the fact that we



          23   have widespread support from multiple jurisdictions in a



          24   very complex area is a testament to the thoroughness of



          25   our public outreach, the thoroughness of our stakeholder
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           1   outreach, as well as the fact that we have identified a



           2   project that does not conflict with the interests of



           3   these multiple jurisdictions and the objectives that each



           4   of those agencies have.



           5            Seven letters from multiple jurisdictions



           6   supporting our process or even supporting the proposed



           7   route is a tremendous achievement on a project of this



           8   nature and should not be discounted in terms of what that



           9   means for your consideration.



          10            Again, this project is located in compatible



          11   spaces, meets the project purpose and need, is



          12   environmentally compatible, and meets the objectives of



          13   the factors that we are asked to consider for any project



          14   that we bring forward in front of this Committee.



          15            So thank you for your consideration on our



          16   project.



          17      Q.    Ms. Darr, I know that you know, now having been



          18   before this Committee, that the Committee takes very



          19   seriously the need for public outreach and how important



          20   that is to engage the public and getting their feedback



          21   and input as best we can.  I mean, we can't force people



          22   to open their mailbox and read what's in there, but we do



          23   our best, through a variety of channels, to communicate



          24   with them about our project and ask them to give us input



          25   and feedback that we can then use that informs our
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           1   decisions about the project.



           2            Why don't you give us your wrap-up and any final



           3   words you'd like to present to the Committee on the



           4   outreach and public engagement campaign.



           5      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Thank you, Mr. Derstine.



           6            Chairman Katz and Members of the Committee, I



           7   appreciate this very much, being my life's work, public



           8   and stakeholder involvement and engagement.  I appreciate



           9   the importance that you place on stakeholder and public



          10   involvement.



          11            It is never appropriate to apply a cookie-cutter



          12   approach to stakeholder and public involvement.  And we



          13   had some unique challenges, as on all projects, but we



          14   had some is unique challenges on this project, one being



          15   the COVID-19 pandemic and another being the complexity



          16   and rapid development of the study area.  And it is



          17   always a challenge to engage the public in infrastructure



          18   projects.  It is never easy to get a lot of response.



          19   But we did develop a deliberate strategy and had a robust



          20   attempt to reaching out to the public in this area.



          21            Just to recap, we began by interacting with the



          22   various affected jurisdictions in the study area, and we



          23   interacted with them throughout the process as the



          24   process unfolded.



          25            We mailed newsletters three times during the
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           1   project to approximately 38,000 residents and businesses



           2   in this area.



           3            We had a website that provided information and



           4   opportunity to comment that was live throughout this



           5   process and is still live today.



           6            We held live virtual meetings so that we could



           7   have direct I want to say face-to-face interaction.  It



           8   wasn't in person, but we still could see faces.



           9            Also some other direct interaction was achieved



          10   through the telephone hotline.  I had the opportunity to



          11   speak with several residents and property owners in the



          12   area and explain the project and answer their questions.



          13            We also reached out -- APS reached out via



          14   social media and did that by paid advertisements, which



          15   is different than organic posts because they are targeted



          16   to specific areas.



          17            And APS also sent emails to customers in the



          18   study area.  So if someone didn't read their mail, maybe



          19   they read their email.



          20            Finally, we had an email address where people



          21   were able to email us.  It was me that answered those



          22   emails.  And so we were able to have interaction that



          23   way.



          24            I'm very pleased to have the opportunity to work



          25   on the project and very pleased to have had this
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           1   opportunity to participate in these hearings.  So I thank



           2   you, and that's all.



           3      Q.    Thank you.



           4            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, that concludes our



           5   case.  I'm ready to make our witnesses available for



           6   cross.  I can move our exhibits at this time, or I can



           7   wait till the completion of the cross.  Whatever your



           8   pleasure is.



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  If you wanted to offer the exhibits



          10   that are marked as APS exhibits, you may do so.



          11            MR. DERSTINE:  All right.  I would move the



          12   admission of the following:   APS-1, which is the



          13   application for Certificate of Environmental



          14   Compatibility.  Mr. Duncan spoke to that.



          15            APS Exhibits 2, 3, 4, and 5 are the witness



          16   background slides that were used and/or part of APS-6.



          17            And APS-6 is marked as the entire slide deck,



          18   the PowerPoint slides that were presented here in the



          19   hearing room on the left and the right screen and were



          20   presented by Zoom to the Members of the Committee who are



          21   appearing virtually and to member of the public.  The



          22   witnesses have testified to those slides and testified to



          23   the accuracy of the information contained in those slides



          24   and maps.



          25            APS-8 -- I'll skip APS-7 for the moment.
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           1            APS-8 is the Affidavit of Publication.



           2   Mr. Duncan testified concerning the Notice of Hearing



           3   that was published and the evidence of the publication



           4   contained in APS-8.



           5            APS-9, the proof of the delivery of the



           6   application to the library locations as required by the



           7   Chairman's Procedural Order.



           8            APS-10 is the proof of the website posting.



           9   That was testified to by Mr. Duncan.



          10            APS-11 is the proof of notice to the affected



          11   jurisdictions.  Again, Mr. Duncan covered that in his



          12   testimony.



          13            APS-12 is the proof of the posting of the signs



          14   that we saw on the route tour but are also included with



          15   the map that's included on APS-12.



          16            The APS-13 is the summary of public outreach



          17   that was testified to extensively by Ms. Darr.  APS-13 is



          18   simply a narrative description or a summary of what's



          19   contained in Exhibit J to the application.



          20            APS Exhibits 14, 15, 16, 17, and 18 are the



          21   letters of support that Mr. Duncan and Mr. Simpson just



          22   referred to that came as a result of the engagement and



          23   outreach with those agencies or entities.



          24            APS-19 is the route itinerary and the map that



          25   we followed on our tour on Tuesday morning.
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           1            APS-20 is the letter dated February 23, 2022,



           2   from Commission Staff that Mr. Wiley spoke to just a



           3   moment ago.



           4            APS-21 is a photo of the riser structure that



           5   will be utilized if -- as agreed to with the City of



           6   Peoria, APS's investigation of the possibility of



           7   undergrounding along the segment of Route G that borders



           8   on the City of Peoria.  If that segment can be



           9   undergrounded, we would need to utilize a riser



          10   structure.  So APS-21 supplements the structures that are



          11   presented in Exhibit G to the application.  And our



          12   intent would be that that photograph would serve as an



          13   example of the type of structure that we request the



          14   Committee to approve as an alternative to the overhead



          15   construction along Route G if we're able to do that



          16   safely and reliably.



          17            22 is the letter from the Game and Fish



          18   Department that Mr. Simpson spoke to.



          19            APS-23 is the letter from the State Historic



          20   Preservation Office that Mr. Simpson testified to.



          21            So I would move those exhibits.  It would be



          22   APS-1 through 6, 8 through 23 for admission.



          23            APS-24 is the form of the CEC.  I know,



          24   Mr. Chairman, you'll be having your own form of CEC that



          25   we'll screen.  But I guess I would move the admission of
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           1   24 and include that simply because the corridor map and



           2   the corridor description are contained in APS-24.  And



           3   whatever form of CEC we ultimately utilize, I think



           4   APS-24 includes the map and the corridor description that



           5   we would ask that the Committee consider and approve as



           6   part of any CEC that's granted for the project.  So 24



           7   would be included.



           8            I skipped APS-7 for the reason that that was an



           9   early draft of a proposed form of CEC, and it's been



          10   replaced by 24.



          11            So everything other than 7, APS-1 through 24.



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  Are there any objections?



          13            MR. GOLESTAN:  Just some clarification.  It's my



          14   understanding that APS-7 contains the changes that we



          15   discussed about undergrounding.  Is it reflected anywhere



          16   else?



          17            MR. DERSTINE:  It's also reflected in APS-24,



          18   the same language.



          19            MR. GOLESTAN:  The same portion is in 24?



          20            MR. DERSTINE:  Exactly the same language in



          21   terms of the form of CEC.



          22            In includes -- what are the changes,



          23   Ms. Benally, if you can comment, between 7 to 24?



          24            MS. BENALLY:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman and



          25   Committee.
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           1            The changes that are in APS-24 as compared to 7



           2   is essentially the corridor map has moved to final form



           3   for the Committee's consideration.  So it excludes all



           4   the references to "proposed," "preferred," all of those



           5   types of descriptives.  So it's in final form, if you



           6   will, that could essentially be attached to the proposed



           7   form of order that is voted on by the Committee today.



           8            MR. DERSTINE:  So I guess, speaking to



           9   Mr. Golestan's question about the parties, APS and the



          10   City of Peoria, as an intervenor, have had ongoing



          11   discussions about resolving the City's concerns about



          12   Route G.  And so we had included, I believe, some draft



          13   language that we've been discussing.



          14            But I don't know that that language has made its



          15   way into 24.  Is that correct, Ms. Benally?



          16            MS. BENALLY:  The potential to underground a



          17   segment of Route G, based on investigation that APS is



          18   performing or will perform, is illustrated in the



          19   call-out No. 12 in the corridor map.  The narrative



          20   description also, under Route G, does indicate or explain



          21   that the potential underground corridor would extend up



          22   to 2,000 feet west of the existing El Sol-White Tanks



          23   230kV corridor.  So it does include that language in the



          24   event that that undergrounding option is available for us



          25   to construct.
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           1            MR. DERSTINE:  And we can table APS-24.  Again,



           2   it's the form of --



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  Well, at this juncture, Exhibits 1



           4   through 6 have been offered into evidence.  7 has not



           5   been.  Exhibits 8 through 24 have been admitted.



           6            I will admit all of those except No. 24 at this



           7   time, and that can be offered at a later point in time.



           8            (Exhibits APS-1 through APS-6 and APS-8 through



           9   APS-23 were admitted into evidence.)



          10             CHMN. KATZ:  The other thing I did before



          11   cross-examination is I spoke with all three of the



          12   attorneys earlier today.  And Tod, with my help, has



          13   redrafted the CEC with very minor changes but hasn't yet



          14   sent it out to the parties because we were waiting to see



          15   whether or not we were going to add an additional



          16   condition with agreed-upon language regarding the



          17   potential or the investigation for potentially



          18   undergrounding the segment.



          19            And if the parties have approved of that



          20   language, I'd like you to send that to Tod Brewer.  Tod



          21   will incorporate that into Chairman Exhibit No. 1 and 2.



          22   No. 1 will be in PDF format so it is permanent.  And the



          23   other version will be in Word.  And we will wordsmith



          24   things as we go and offer any amendments and so forth as



          25   we proceed.  But I don't know if we have that language or
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           1   not agreed to.



           2            MR. DERSTINE:  We do.  It's my understanding



           3   that APS has agreed to language that's suggested by the



           4   City through counsel.  We've reviewed it, and this



           5   proposed condition language is acceptable.  We can email



           6   it to Tod now, and then it can be screened and considered



           7   by the Committee when we get there.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.  And go ahead and



           9   email it to Tod indicating that -- well, you don't need



          10   to.  I already texted him earlier that there may be an



          11   additional condition.  Once that's added, I'll instruct



          12   whoever you want us to send the Word version and the PDF



          13   version, to.  You'll let Tod know where to send that.



          14   I'll have Tod send that by email to the Committee Members



          15   so those who are appearing virtually will have it.  Those



          16   who are here will see it up on the screen.  But if you



          17   could get me a hard copy of the CEC once it's revised and



          18   Tod sends it to you, I would appreciate it.



          19            MR. DERSTINE:  We'll do it.



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  We can go ahead with



          21   cross-examination.



          22



          23                       CROSS-EXAMINATION



          24   BY MR. GOLESTAN:



          25      Q.    Okay.  Good morning.  Let's see.  Who shall I
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           1   start with.



           2            I think Ms. Darr.



           3      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



           4      Q.    Since you finished, I guess we'll start with



           5   you.



           6            Okay.  On your direct examination, you mentioned



           7   that you had some comments -- you had comments in many



           8   different forms that mentioned various routes or



           9   mentioned Olive and Northern route.  For the comments



          10   that you receive online, do you confirm that those



          11   comments come from within the study area?



          12      A.    (Ms. Darr)  People -- some people provided their



          13   address, and others did not.



          14      Q.    Okay.  So when you have an address, are you able



          15   to confirm if that comment came from within the study



          16   area?



          17      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I would be able to do that, yes.



          18      Q.    Did you do that in this case?



          19      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I have not gone through each of the



          20   comments and confirmed that they are from within the



          21   study area.



          22      Q.    And then in the instances where you don't have



          23   an address, you're unable to confirm whether that person



          24   is within the study area?



          25      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Correct.
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           1      Q.    You discussed a lot of outreach in your direct



           2   examination.  You specifically mentioned the importance



           3   of outreach to Glendale and El Mirage, working with them.



           4   And that in working with them, they were accommodated and



           5   change were made.  Could you describe what sorts of



           6   changes were made to this proposal as a result of the



           7   collaboration with Glendale and El Mirage.



           8      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I'd like to go back to the first



           9   question really quickly based another thought, and I will



          10   answer your question.



          11      Q.    Thanks.



          12      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Some people didn't necessarily give



          13   an address, but they said, My house is in this



          14   neighborhood, or things like that.  So there were ways to



          15   infer that a comment came from the study area other than



          16   people providing an address.  Not very many people



          17   provided their actual, physical address, but there was



          18   some descriptive language.



          19      Q.    But the point is, even with an address, you



          20   didn't go through and confirm them?



          21      A.    (Ms. Darr)  No, I have not done that.



          22      Q.    And even with the descriptive address, you



          23   didn't go through and confirm that somebody that says



          24   they live in the Ranchettes -- Dysart Ranchettes, you



          25   didn't go through and confirm that they lived in the
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           1   Ranchettes community, right?



           2      A.    (Ms. Darr)  No, sir.



           3      Q.    Going back to the outreach that you discussed on



           4   direct examination.  You specifically mentioned Glendale



           5   and El Mirage as being important to your outreach.  So



           6   I'd like to know what sorts of changes that were made to



           7   this application essentially in response to the feedback



           8   you received from Glendale and El Mirage.



           9      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Mr. Simpson would have to answer



          10   what sorts of changes would have been made.  But what I



          11   was referring to was those entities providing information



          12   about land development.



          13      Q.    Okay.  I'd like to move on to talk about COVID



          14   because I know you mentioned, obviously, doing this



          15   outreach during COVID was a unique challenge, obviously



          16   unprecedented.  I don't think anybody has lived through a



          17   pandemic.  Nobody is over 100 years old, so nobody has



          18   lived through a pandemic here.



          19            I just want to talk about staffing.  Did you



          20   have any difficulties with staffing during this time.



          21      A.    (Ms. Darr)  No, I did not.



          22      Q.    Any difficulties with mail or things of that



          23   nature?



          24      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I wouldn't be able to answer that



          25   because APS did the mailing in-house.
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           1      Q.    So you're not aware of any mailing difficulties?



           2      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I wasn't made aware of any.



           3      Q.    And in analyzing the number of your responses



           4   overall that you've received, how would you compare the



           5   responses that you received to this application that



           6   happened during COVID to other projects that you've



           7   worked on before COVID?  Did you ever see a substantial



           8   difference in the number of responses?



           9      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I did not.



          10      Q.    In any format?



          11      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I would say that we are receiving



          12   more responses nowadays on this and other projects than



          13   we generally would because of the availability of the



          14   information online.



          15      Q.    Okay.  But you don't have any specific numbers



          16   to say it's more or less or otherwise?



          17      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I don't have any specific numbers,



          18   but I have hundreds of projects of experience to base my



          19   statement on.



          20      Q.    Okay.  I want to move to talk about the



          21   mailings, because you mentioned on direct examination



          22   that you didn't send them certified mail.  Does that mean



          23   they weren't tracked in any way with the U.S. mail?



          24      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I'm not aware of any way to track



          25   U.S. mail.
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           1      Q.    And you didn't send it with a mechanism whereby



           2   it could be tracked?  Let me ask it that way.



           3      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I didn't send it.  APS's mail house



           4   sent it.



           5      Q.    Okay.  That's a good answer to my question.  But



           6   you're not aware that APS's mail house sent it with any



           7   tracking mechanism?  That's what you said in your direct



           8   examination.  They were not sent certified.



           9      A.    (Ms. Darr)  They were not sent certified to my



          10   knowledge.



          11      Q.    Okay.  And is that a best practice? I mean, in



          12   this sort of thing, does that meet best practices in your



          13   industry, sending these U.S. mail, not tracked or



          14   certified?



          15      A.    (Ms. Darr)  That is standard practice.  I have



          16   had instances on other projects where there's a very



          17   small area and we need access to a person's property.



          18   And if we can't get them to answer the door, if we knock



          19   on the door or something, that something would be sent



          20   certified mail.  Very small numbers.  In an area of



          21   38,000 addresses, I have never experienced that size of



          22   mailing being sent certified.



          23      Q.    You also talked about paid advertisements such



          24   as ones posted on social media, including Facebook.  Do



          25   you remember that discussion?
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           1      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



           2      Q.    And you mentioned Facebook uses geofencing to



           3   determine the boundaries of the targets of those ads.



           4   Right?



           5      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



           6      Q.    If we look at -- if we look at APS-6, the



           7   project study area -- let me pull a page number for



           8   you -- that included the geofencing.  Do you remember



           9   looking at that slide?



          10      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



          11      Q.    Okay.  That's APS-6.  The physical page number



          12   on that is 93.  The digital PDF page number is 100.  Let



          13   me know when you're looking at that sheet.



          14      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Okay.  I've got it.



          15      Q.    Okay.  So this project study area, again, APS-6,



          16   page 93, PDF page 100, that shows the overall study area,



          17   right?



          18      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



          19      Q.    And then within that study area, it shows three



          20   circles indicating the geofencing locations of the target



          21   ads?



          22      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



          23      Q.    You would agree with me that the three



          24   geofencing circles within the study area are smaller than



          25   the entirety of the study area?
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           1      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



           2      Q.    And you would agree with me that there are some



           3   residences, for example, to the northeast of the yellow



           4   circle that are within the study area but outside of the



           5   geofencing target circle?



           6      A.    (Ms. Darr)  That is what I see on the map.



           7      Q.    I want to move to discuss the Northern Parkway



           8   project.  You mentioned the Northern Parkway project in



           9   your examination, so, clearly, you're aware of the



          10   existence of the Northern Parkway project.



          11      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I am.



          12      Q.    You're aware that it's a multijurisdictional



          13   project?



          14      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I am.



          15      Q.    That involves the City of Peoria?



          16      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



          17      Q.    Glendale?



          18      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



          19      Q.    El Mirage?  The project involves El Mirage?



          20      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



          21      Q.    Maricopa County?



          22      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



          23      Q.    And, ultimately, the Federal Government through



          24   the Federal Highway Administration?



          25      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.
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           1      Q.    And since the Federal Highway Administration is



           2   involved, you're aware that there's federal funding



           3   involved in that project?



           4      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.  That would make sense.



           5      Q.    And are you aware of any terms and conditions



           6   that that federal funding might come with?



           7      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I guess you would have to be more



           8   specific.



           9      Q.    Well, do you know any of the details about how



          10   that federal funding is allocated?



          11      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Not in a great amount of detail.  My



          12   position on that project was to support the Maricopa



          13   County Department of Transportation in outreach efforts.



          14   So at their direction, I did logistics related to public



          15   meetings, prepared notifications, and was part of



          16   stakeholder meetings on the project.



          17      Q.    Okay.   So no specific knowledge about the



          18   details of the -- you know that there is federal funding.



          19   You don't know the details of the federal funding?



          20      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I remember that federal highways was



          21   part of the stakeholder group, which would make me infer



          22   that there was federal funding on the project.



          23      Q.    Okay.  So beyond that, you wouldn't be aware,



          24   like I said, of any sort of conditions, the details of



          25   that funding, right?
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           1      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Not specific -- not overall.  The



           2   project was a few years ago.  There would be people,



           3   subject matter experts, from the Maricopa County



           4   Department of Transportation that would be monitoring any



           5   kinds of specific requirements related to the federal



           6   funding.



           7      Q.    Okay.  That's all the questions I have for you,



           8   Ms. Darr.  Thank you.



           9      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Thank you.



          10            MR. GOLESTAN:  Can I move down the list?



          11            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.



          12      Q.    BY MR. GOLESTAN:  Mr. Duncan, good morning.



          13      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Good morning.



          14      Q.    Do you recall when Mr. Derstine yesterday asked



          15   you about undergrounding segment 625, the potential for



          16   undergrounding segment 625?



          17      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, I remember.



          18      Q.    And you're aware that APS is evaluating that as



          19   an alternative?



          20      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          21      Q.    And you're aware -- do you recall hearing



          22   Mr. Derstine's comments that APS is committed to



          23   undergrounding that section 625 if it is technically



          24   feasible?



          25      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.
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           1      Q.    And you heard Mr. Derstine's comments that the



           2   undergrounding is funded through a third party?



           3      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, I'm aware.



           4      Q.    I want to talk to you about some of the



           5   technicalities of undergrounding in terms of footprints,



           6   comparing the footprint of something placed underground



           7   to the footprint of an overhead line.



           8            We've heard various things about 230kV



           9   transmission lines and various heights.  Can you remind



          10   me of generally the range of the heights of a 230kV



          11   transmission line?



          12      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.  They can range -- for this



          13   project, we are estimating that they will be 155 to 195



          14   feet tall.



          15      Q.    And for those structures, can you tell me how



          16   wide essentially the base -- let's say the contact point



          17   with the ground and the portion that might needing to



          18   underground to support that structure, can you tell me



          19   how wide and how deep those supports are?



          20      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  No, I cannot.



          21      Q.    You can't because you don't know, or you can't



          22   because it depends on the nature of the structure and



          23   there are variables?



          24      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  First of all, some structures are



          25   custom ordered, and it depends on the specific design for
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           1   this project.  But secondly, the specific design of these



           2   structures is not my expertise.



           3      Q.    That's fine.  I don't want you to opine on



           4   anything that's outside of your area.  Thank you.



           5            In your direct, Mr. Duncan, you were referring



           6   to various jurisdictions that you had interfaced with on



           7   impacts.  Obviously, you mentioned that this project, as



           8   any project, has an impact on the surrounding



           9   jurisdiction.  Right?  You're aware of that?



          10      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          11      Q.    And you're aware of the -- were you present at



          12   the site tour yesterday morning?



          13      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, I was.



          14      Q.    I was did you hear Mr. Simpson's comments on



          15   that site tour?



          16      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, I did.



          17      Q.    Did you hear Mr. Simpson while we were at the



          18   Northern segment -- I want to say that was Stop No. 7.



          19   Did you hear Mr. Simpson say that APS had analyzed the



          20   burden to that residential neighborhood, particularly, to



          21   be from moderate to high?



          22      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  My understanding is -- I did hear



          23   that phrasing, and my understanding was that the



          24   neighborhood was considered a high sensitivity.



          25      Q.    Right.  Okay.
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           1            And based on looking at the overall routes -- I



           2   mean, there's been a lot of discussion I think by both of



           3   you, but correct me if I'm wrong.  If it's Mr. Simpson,



           4   I'll discuss it with Mr. Simpson -- that the route --



           5   that the majority of the routes do go through industrial



           6   areas.  I mean, looking at Route A on the site visit, the



           7   majority portions of the routes, your would agree, are



           8   industrial or commercial?



           9      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, I would concur with that



          10   statement.



          11      Q.    And based on the mapping and based on the site



          12   visit, you would agree that the segments of the route



          13   that affect Peoria anyway are primarily residential?



          14      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  No, I would disagree with that



          15   statement.



          16      Q.    You would disagree.  Okay.  Let's look at a map.



          17            Go ahead and pull up for me, please -- give me a



          18   moment.  Let's look at APS-6, Figure No. 4, PDF page 10.



          19   That's Figure 4, existing land use, PDF page 110,



          20   physical copy page 103.



          21            Let me know when you're looking at the same.



          22      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  I'm sorry, which map?



          23      Q.    APS Figure No. 4, land use.  That's electronic



          24   page 110, physical page 103.



          25      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.  I have it.





                  COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440



                  www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ

�



                       LS CASE NO. 198      VOLUME III      03/02/2022

                                                                      370





           1      Q.    Yes, of course.  I don't know why I'm giving you



           2   the electronic page.  You're looking at a physical copy.



           3   For the benefit of, I suppose, anybody else who might be



           4   looking at it electronically.



           5            So we're both looking at page 103, Figure 4.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Are we able to pull that up on the



           7   screen?



           8            AV TECH MOELLER:  Just about there.



           9            MR. GOLESTAN:  Is that it?



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  That's it.



          11            MR. GOLESTAN:  Oh, there we go.



          12      Q.    BY MR. GOLESTAN:  So this figure shows the



          13   boundary of the various jurisdictions in the study area,



          14   right?



          15      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          16      Q.    Those boundaries are reflected by let's call



          17   them the salmon-colored lines.



          18      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  I understand.



          19      Q.    You agree with that description?



          20      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          21      Q.    Okay.  The zones -- rather, the land use is



          22   shown, obviously, in different colors.  You see that



          23   yellow is residential?



          24      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          25      Q.    You see that the light orange or peach color, I
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           1   suppose, is other employment?  Would you agree with that?



           2      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



           3      Q.    Okay.  And then the darker purple color on this



           4   map, maybe magenta is the word for it, you would agree



           5   that that represents the industrial zones, as least as



           6   existing, existing land use?



           7      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



           8      Q.    Okay.  Looking at this map, you'll agree with me



           9   that if you're looking at the boundaries west of Peoria



          10   along -- between Northern Avenue and Olive Avenue where



          11   the routes -- where the proposed routes are, you would



          12   agree with me that west of the boundary of Peoria, you



          13   don't see any residential zone there?



          14      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Agreed.



          15      Q.    Okay.  And looking along where the -- going up



          16   and around Luke Air Force Base, essentially following the



          17   route, and we can compare it to the other map, but you



          18   would agree with me that throughout that area of Air



          19   Force Base west essentially over to Falcon Substation at



          20   the western boundary, you would agree with me that,



          21   again, not really any residential, that's a mixture of



          22   other land use types there?



          23      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Agreed.



          24      Q.    Okay.  I want to direct your attention to APS-6.



          25   That's PDF 114, electronic 114, and physical 107.
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           1      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



           2      Q.    This is what we were discussing earlier.  You



           3   mentioned that Mr. Simpson's comments were in relation a



           4   high constraint area.  That's I think the word that you



           5   used, right?



           6      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



           7      Q.    And that's reflected in this map.  If we look



           8   between Northern Avenue and Olive Avenue, you would agree



           9   with me that that -- the red portion of this -- the red



          10   portion of the map that is located between Northern



          11   Avenue and Olive is overlaid with that same residential



          12   area that we saw on the previous map?



          13      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Agreed.



          14      Q.    And you would agree with me that that is



          15   entirely within the boundaries of the City of Peoria?



          16      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          17      Q.    Looking at -- moving forward to APS-6 -- well,



          18   continuing with APS-6, rather, physical page 111, PDF



          19   electronic page 118.  Let me know when you're looking at



          20   one of them.



          21      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          22      Q.    Actually, let me move you one further.  Digital



          23   page 120, physical page 113.  Are we looking at the same



          24   page?



          25      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.
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           1      Q.    I'll wait for the electronic to catch up.



           2            There we go.  Thank you.



           3            You would agree with me again, comparing this



           4   map to the other maps, that the portion that we have been



           5   talking about between Northern Avenue and Olive Avenue to



           6   the east of that green dotted line that you can see that



           7   runs essentially between -- that green dotted line that



           8   runs between segment 630 and 550, that's the segment that



           9   we've been talking about?  You would agree with me that



          10   that's the area that we're talking about?



          11      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          12      Q.    And, again, that area is -- in that portion is



          13   the residential community that was part of our tour?



          14      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  I would agree with that.



          15      Q.    Okay.  And looking at these lines, you can see



          16   that on this map -- first of all, there's an existing



          17   corridor, transmission corridor.  A lot of discussions



          18   have already been had about that.



          19            On the eastern side of this community in Peoria,



          20   there's an existing transmission corridor, and that's



          21   reflected on this map with the blue and yellow dotted



          22   lines; is that right?



          23      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          24      Q.    And the proposal from APS would place a new



          25   230kV corridor to the north and to the south of the
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           1   community?



           2      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Correct.



           3      Q.    So if the proposal is built exactly as it



           4   appears on this map, in the end, this community would be



           5   surrounded on three sides by 230kV transmission lines?



           6      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  That is correct.



           7      Q.    And you are not aware of any other part of this



           8   study area that has a similar effect, are you?



           9      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Not -- no, I'm not.



          10      Q.    Okay.  That's because there isn't one, right?



          11   You would agree with me that there is no other part of



          12   this study area that contains a residential community



          13   that would be surrounded on three sides by 230kV



          14   transmission lines?



          15      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, I agree.



          16      Q.    Okay.  I think that's all I have for you,



          17   Mr. Duncan.  Thank you.



          18      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  You're welcome.



          19      Q.    Mr. Simpson, how are you?



          20      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Fine.  Thank you.



          21      Q.    I suspect you have some inkling about the



          22   questions I'm going to ask you?



          23      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  I have all the answers.



          24      Q.    Fine.  I love it.



          25            Let me start with -- you started off in your
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           1   testimony talking a lot about the growth and the economic



           2   benefits and such.



           3            I just want to make sure -- you're not an



           4   economist, right?



           5      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That's correct.



           6      Q.    You don't work in finance?



           7      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That's correct.



           8      Q.    You haven't presented this Committee with any



           9   economic data?



          10      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  There were no socioeconomic



          11   studies completed.



          12      Q.    You don't have any data from the Census Bureau,



          13   for example, to show population growth of this area?



          14      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  We have general information that



          15   was gathered as part of the studies, but it was not a



          16   focus of our analysis.



          17      Q.    So no specific population data from the U.S.



          18   Government?



          19      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Correct.



          20      Q.    Nothing from the Bureau of Labor Statistics



          21   showing the workforce in the area?



          22      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Correct.



          23      Q.    And as far as you know, anyway, no economic



          24   impact data as it relates to the City of Peoria?



          25      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That is correct.
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           1      Q.    So I want to move to the site tour and



           2   discussions we had on the site tour.  Give me a moment.



           3   I am getting my notes since I had to take them on my



           4   phone on our field trip.



           5            You recall, of course, being on the site tour



           6   with Members of the Committee, with counsel and other



           7   witnesses and myself yesterday?



           8      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes, I do.



           9      Q.    Sorry, give me one moment.



          10            Well, at that site tour, you had discussed



          11   accommodations that were made for Glendale and El Mirage,



          12   correct?



          13      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yeah.  I don't know if there were



          14   any specific accommodations, but we had a lot of dialogue



          15   with them about different topics, and we went back and



          16   forth with them sharing data and where routes could be



          17   located.



          18      Q.    And did any of those discussions produce changes



          19   in the routing?



          20      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  There were some areas in



          21   El Mirage where we studied different alternatives that



          22   weren't initially identified.  That was at the request of



          23   the City of El Mirage.  And then the property owners also



          24   had opinions about that.  So there was some



          25   back-and-forth with them.  Property owners wanted to
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           1   minimize impacts to their land.  City of El Mirage wanted



           2   to minimize impacts to their communities and their City



           3   complex.  So we did have some back-and-forth discussions



           4   that allowed us to arrive at this route that we have



           5   shown here in green, Route A.



           6      Q.    So with respect to Route A, then, you received



           7   feedback from both private landowners and the City of



           8   El Mirage.  It's fair to say that you incorporated that



           9   feedback into the design of Route A?



          10      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Ultimately, what happened is we



          11   did study some other options that would have included



          12   going further east as well as south in this half section



          13   route through the APZs.  Ultimately, we ended back with



          14   the route that we initially had brought to them as the



          15   one we thought we were most compatible with.  So we did



          16   essentially end up back at the same place, but we went



          17   through the analysis to help them understand why we were



          18   requesting to be there.



          19      Q.    Okay.  And let's talk about Luke Air Force Base



          20   because you recall on direct examination, you mentioned



          21   how important that was to the analysis.  Do you remember



          22   that discussion?



          23      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes  Yes, I do.



          24      Q.    And you obviously discussed the complexities of



          25   Luke Air Force Base on the site tour, correct?
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           1      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.



           2      Q.    Based on feedback you had with them and based on



           3   certain parameters that had to be met in order for these



           4   lines to be placed in the vicinity of Luke Air Force



           5   Base, right?



           6      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.



           7      Q.    Those include the Accident Potential Zones that



           8   you discussed?



           9      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes  Yes.



          10      Q.    That's something you absolutely had to plan



          11   around?



          12      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Absolutely, yes.



          13      Q.    That included things such as the 1,235 maximum



          14   height from sea level cap that you discussed, right?



          15      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes , that is correct.



          16      Q.    That is something that had to be met?



          17      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.



          18      Q.    And so this reflects the accommodations that



          19   were made for -- the final Route A, for example, reflects



          20   those accommodations that were made for Luke Air Force



          21   Base?



          22      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yeah.  And not necessarily



          23   accommodations.  It reflects all the analysis of all the



          24   routes that we evaluated crossing through the APZs, and



          25   this one was the one deemed most compatible and also met
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           1   the state law.  So I wouldn't say it was necessarily an



           2   accommodation.  It was a result of the analysis for three



           3   major alternatives that we considered to cross through



           4   the APZs.



           5      Q.    Sure.  And that analysis included receiving



           6   information from Luke Air Force Base and meeting the



           7   criteria that they have established, correct?



           8      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.



           9      Q.    On that note, one thing that you were evaluating



          10   and you mentioned on the site visit moving 69kV lines in



          11   response to Luke Air Force Base's request, which would



          12   distinctly benefit a few residences along Route A.  Do



          13   you remember discussing that?



          14      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.



          15      Q.    And that's true that that's part of the current



          16   analysis, is potentially moving the 69kV line for the



          17   benefit of Luke Air Force Base and those residences?



          18      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  It is one potential option.



          19      Q.    And that's being evaluated?



          20      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.  No final decision yet.



          21      Q.    I want to move to talk about the siting and



          22   environmental studies that you've done and kind of talk



          23   through some of the same figures that we talked about.



          24            But I suppose we can start here since we're



          25   already looking at Figure 1, proposed routes.  That's PDF
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           1   page 113, electronic page 120.  Let me know when you are



           2   looking at the same, please.



           3      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.



           4      Q.    So, likewise, in looking at this map, you would



           5   agree with me that, first of all, there is a unique



           6   burden on the residents of the City of Peoria, and APS



           7   has acknowledged that?



           8            MR. DERSTINE:  Object to the form.  I don't



           9   think that's accurate testimony.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  Rephrase, please.



          11      Q.    BY MR. GOLESTAN:  Okay.  You would acknowledge



          12   that in looking at this map, there is a burden on Peoria



          13   residents?



          14      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  There is an impact to the



          15   residential community, as we have disclosed on our



          16   Exhibit E, visual impacts, viewing across the roads.



          17      Q.    And in looking at this map, again, you would



          18   agree with me that there is an existing 230kV



          19   transmission line on the east of the particular community



          20   in question in the City of Peoria?



          21      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.  There's a 230kV line, a



          22   single pole, a 230kV line lattice, and a 345kV



          23   transmission line in that location.



          24      Q.    Okay.  In the eastern -- that transmission



          25   corridor is due east of the community in question?
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           1      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Correct.



           2      Q.    And if you are looking at the proposal for



           3   Route E, that's the purple line on this figure, right?



           4      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.



           5      Q.    The Route E proposal would be due north of this



           6   residential community in the City of Peoria?



           7      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That is approximate location that



           8   we're considering.



           9      Q.    And, likewise, looking at segment -- excuse me,



          10   Route G, segment 625, that would be due south of the



          11   residential community in the City of Peoria?



          12      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That is correct.



          13      Q.    And so in looking at this map, you would agree



          14   with me that if the routes were constructed as depicted



          15   on this map, that that community would then be surrounded



          16   by 230kV transmission lines on three sides?



          17      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  There would be 230kV lines



          18   adjacent to the north, east, and south side of the



          19   residential community, but not surrounded.



          20      Q.    So you would agree, then, that there are 230kV



          21   transmission lines on three out of four sides of that



          22   community?  Let's put it that way.



          23      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That would be a correct



          24   statement.



          25      Q.    And in looking at this map, that condition does
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           1   not exist anywhere else in this study area?



           2      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That precise condition doesn't.



           3   I would offer that, again, you do see immediately



           4   adjacent, also in the City of Peoria, multiple



           5   transmission line corridors crossing through what, in



           6   essence, is also part of the same residential



           7   development, Horizons, here.  So there are similar



           8   situations, slightly different.



           9      Q.    Sure.  And I appreciate the thoughts on the



          10   other situations.



          11            I just want to know that this particular



          12   situation we're talking about, a residential community



          13   having three sides of its community -- having 230kV lines



          14   adjacent to three sides of the community doesn't exist



          15   anywhere else in this particular study area.



          16      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Not in the exact same



          17   configuration; but in other configurations, it would.



          18      Q.    And, again, my question is limited to that



          19   configuration.  That configuration doesn't exist anywhere



          20   else in this study area?



          21      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Correct.



          22      Q.    And that configuration doesn't exist anywhere



          23   else along these three proposed routes?



          24      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Correct.



          25      Q.    And that's because, in looking at the other





                  COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440



                  www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ

�



                       LS CASE NO. 198      VOLUME III      03/02/2022

                                                                      383





           1   routes, moving farther west, the majority of the



           2   remainder of those routes pass through industrial and/or



           3   commercial areas.  You would agree with that?



           4      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Generally, yes.



           5      Q.    Okay.  I want to talk a little bit about the



           6   alternative undergrounding that's under -- the



           7   undergrounding alternative that's under consideration.



           8   Would you be able to speak to some of the technical



           9   details that -- first of all, are you familiar with the



          10   process of undergrounding?  I guess let's start there.



          11      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Generally speaking, yes.  The



          12   analysis that we've conducted for this project, the



          13   environmental analysis, was for double-circuit overhead



          14   230kV lines, and we did not evaluate specific underground



          15   options with respect to environmental studies.



          16      Q.    But you're aware that that is something that is



          17   being undertaken right now?



          18      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes, I am.



          19      Q.    And you are aware that, as you heard



          20   Mr. Derstine say yesterday, that if it is technically



          21   feasible, that APS is committed to undergrounding this



          22   segment?



          23      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  I believe they're committed to



          24   evaluating whether that's feasible.  Not committed to



          25   doing it that way.  Those studies have to progress.
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           1      Q.    Right.  The point being, if it's technically



           2   feasible, it will be done.  Not committing to doing it



           3   without knowing the technical feasibility.



           4      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  I can't make that commitment on



           5   their behalf.  I'm aware of the discussions that they're



           6   having regarding that option.



           7      Q.    And in your experience undergrounding, can you



           8   compare for me, please -- and if there's a difference in



           9   ranges, that's fine.  You can provide me the difference



          10   in range.  Let's start with the aboveground 230kV



          11   structures.  Generally speaking, how far into the ground



          12   and how wide are the base of those structures?



          13      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  My visual experience in



          14   observations of the field, an overhead line like this,



          15   the base of the structure could be anywhere from, you



          16   know, 4 feet all the way up to 6 feet, maybe even larger.



          17      Q.    Is that the width -- sorry.  That's the width of



          18   that base?



          19      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  It's not a precise measurement.



          20   I've never physically measured one.  It's an observation



          21   standing next to similar facilities.



          22      Q.    Okay.  Do you have an understanding of how far



          23   down into the ground that the supports for such an



          24   overhead line go?



          25      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Generally, they can range from a





                  COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440



                  www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ

�



                       LS CASE NO. 198      VOLUME III      03/02/2022

                                                                      385





           1   few feet to several feet, and it's all based on the



           2   geotechnical conditions of the soil and the size of the



           3   line.  But, again, I did not consider any of that in my



           4   evaluations.



           5      Q.    Okay.  And when you say could be a few, could be



           6   several, are we talking -- again, I understand these are



           7   approximations.  I understand it's not in the



           8   presentation.  Under 50 feet?  Under 25 feet?  If you



           9   have an estimation.  If you don't, that's okay.



          10      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yeah.  I would not be able to



          11   estimate it.  There hasn't been any information conveyed



          12   to me that would allow me to answer that, and I don't



          13   have that expertise to design it.



          14      Q.    Okay.  So your expertise doesn't include --



          15   while your expertise includes the actual height of the



          16   structure, it doesn't include the supports and the



          17   portions necessary to support that structure?  I just



          18   want to understand that.



          19      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yeah.  Again, I have seen in the



          20   past final design drawings, so I'm familiar with how that



          21   concept works, but we have not done any final design



          22   here, so I wouldn't be able to offer any specifics.



          23      Q.    Okay.  And in your experience with



          24   undergrounding a 230kV line, can you speak again -- if



          25   you have the experience and knowledge, that's great.  If
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           1   you don't, I don't want you to speculate -- can you speak



           2   to generally what depths or widths those structures would



           3   be if it were undergrounded?



           4      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  I have not worked on any projects



           5   that involved designing of those facilities.  And, again,



           6   so my general analysis and general understanding is that,



           7   you know, you're constructing them similar to the way you



           8   would conduct any underground utility.  You're going to



           9   have a trench and so on, so forth, but that's the limit



          10   of my knowledge.



          11      Q.    Okay.  With regards to undergrounding



          12   specifically and some issues you mentioned on direct



          13   examination, you were talking about benefits and



          14   drawbacks of undergrounding.  Do you recall that



          15   discussion yesterday?



          16      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.  Generally, I offered a



          17   comparative discussion on the two options.



          18      Q.    Okay.  And one benefit that you, of course,



          19   mentioned is that from the perspective of nearby



          20   residential homes, they would not see the transmission



          21   lines, right?  Do you recall that piece?



          22      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yeah.  I think for the residents



          23   on the north side of Northern Parkway, you know, the



          24   biggest advantage would be they would not see the wires



          25   above ground between the structures that start at the
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           1   existing transmission line corridor to where they would



           2   end further down.  You know, you would eliminate the view



           3   of the conductors.  I don't think the structures



           4   themselves would be directly viewable, at least in areas



           5   where there aren't currently structures.



           6      Q.    And as you discussed yesterday, you believe it's



           7   reasonable to consider undergrounding for this project?



           8   You think that's a reasonable evaluation to conduct?



           9      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  If the parties agree to that, I



          10   think it does have a slight benefit.  I think, given the



          11   consideration of the adjacent land use and the industrial



          12   area behind it, the views towards the landfill, again, I



          13   would say that it may not have the same benefit as if we



          14   were looking at a nice mountain landscape or a pristine



          15   landscape.  So I think there's some benefit, but it is in



          16   an industrial setting, and that was the basis of our



          17   analysis.



          18      Q.    Okay.  But, ultimately, there's some benefit,



          19   and it's reasonable to conduct that analysis?



          20      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.



          21      Q.    Okay.  Okay.  Mr. Simpson, thank you.  I don't



          22   have any further questions for you.



          23            Mr. Wiley, good morning.



          24      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Good morning.



          25      Q.    How are you doing?
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           1      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Good.



           2      Q.    Let's see.  You mentioned something on direct



           3   examination I think in response to one of the Committee



           4   Members regarding NERC standards.  And you mentioned that



           5   APS is in full compliance with all NERC standards for new



           6   substations.  I think that was relating to wall and



           7   security.  Do you remember that conversation?



           8      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, I do.



           9      Q.    I just want to step back a 50,000-foot view and



          10   first ask you, what is NERC?



          11      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  NERC is the North American



          12   Reliability Corporation.



          13      Q.    And how does this entity set the standards that



          14   you or other electric -- rather, that APS or other



          15   utilities have to follow?



          16      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  They set and enforce the standards.



          17      Q.    On which authority?  How does this entity have



          18   the authority to do that?



          19      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  From FERC.



          20      Q.    And FERC is?



          21      A.    Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.



          22      Q.    Okay.  And can you talk to me about, to your



          23   knowledge, the NERC standards, now that we know what NERC



          24   is.  And thank you for explaining that to the laypeople



          25   in the room, myself, me.
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           1            Can we talk about the NERC standards in regards



           2   to circuiting and, specifically, double-circuiting.  Talk



           3   to me a little bit about that.  And if you need more



           4   precise questions, I can give you more precise questions.



           5      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  A more precise question, please.



           6      Q.    You're aware that there are NERC standards



           7   regarding double-circuiting?



           8      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  There are standards that include



           9   language around having circuits on a common structure.



          10      Q.    Okay.  And that's fair to say that that's



          11   commonly referred to as double-circuiting?



          12      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes.



          13      Q.    And those NERC standards on having the circuits



          14   on a single structure, that essentially, again, to put it



          15   in layperson's terms, that essentially would be relating



          16   to standards for double-circuiting on a single pole,



          17   essentially?  Is that a fair layperson translation of



          18   what you just said?



          19      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes.



          20      Q.    That are the NERC standards regarding



          21   double-circuiting on a single pole?



          22      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  The NERC standard I was referring



          23   to was a transmission planning standard, which is



          24   TPL-001-4.  And that requires each transmission planner



          25   to perform a reliability assessment.  In the assessment,
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           1   the standard calls out various planning events.  One of



           2   these planning events is to study the impacts of losing



           3   all circuits on a common structure.



           4      Q.    So that standard TPL-001-4 doesn't expressly



           5   prohibit double-circuit on a single pole.  It lays out a



           6   procedure that is required to evaluate the feasibility of



           7   such a structure?



           8      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  The standard does not prohibit



           9   double-circuit.  It does require the analysis and



          10   specifically calls out the credibility of such events as



          11   losing a double-circuit pole.



          12      Q.    What do you mean when you say credibility of



          13   certain events as losing a double-circuit pole?  Can you



          14   expand on that?



          15      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Meaning that if the pole was



          16   rendered inoperable for any reason that we have to study



          17   the impact of both of those circuits being lost



          18   simultaneously.



          19      Q.    Okay.  And is that something you conducted as a



          20   part of your analysis for this project?



          21      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  These circuits were planned on



          22   separate structures, so that specific contingency was not



          23   evaluated.



          24      Q.    That contingency was not evaluated because of



          25   the planning on separate structures.  Okay.
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           1            Do you recall on direct examination, you were



           2   talking about the Contrail Substation?



           3      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, I do.



           4      Q.    Okay.  And you would agree with me that, of



           5   course, the Contrail Substation is where all three of the



           6   proposed routes, that's Route A, Route E, and Route G,



           7   all three of those routes -- I don't want to say end.



           8   That might not be technically accurate.  But all three of



           9   those routes lead to that substation.  They pass through



          10   that substation.  Is that a fair way of describing that?



          11      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes.



          12      Q.    Okay.  And in looking at this particular



          13   diagram, I'm looking at Figure 1, proposed routes, that



          14   is physical page 113, PDF page 120.  Let me know when



          15   you're there.



          16      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Okay.



          17      Q.    Are you looking at this?  Yeah.  Very good.



          18            This diagram seems to at least corroborate



          19   something you said on direct examination yesterday, that



          20   APS is considering, quote/unquote, double-circuiting on a



          21   single pole, again, layman understanding, that's the



          22   layman's terms here, for a portion of Route A and Route E



          23   as they approach the Contrail Substation.



          24            Do you remember -- does this diagram accurately



          25   reflection that comment that you made yesterday.
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           1      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, it does.



           2      Q.    Okay.  So APS is considering that alternative



           3   but has yet to evaluate whether -- has yet to do that



           4   analysis that is required by TPL-001-4?



           5      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  I'll speculate a couple of items



           6   here.  We have performed the analysis as required by



           7   TPL-001-4.  It specifically calls out for circuits that



           8   are double-circuited for more than one mile.  Under this



           9   condition, we would be talking about one span of



          10   double-circuit.



          11      Q.    Okay.  And is this span -- to your knowledge, at



          12   least, do you know if this span is greater than a mile,



          13   less than a mile, or unclear as of yet?



          14      A.    The final design isn't performed, but it would



          15   be much less than 1 mile.



          16      Q.    In any configuration, you're certain that it's



          17   less than 1 mile?



          18      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Correct.  We cannot span for 1



          19   mile.



          20      Q.    Because if you span more than 1 mile, that would



          21   trigger additional analysis under TPL-0001-4, or that



          22   would be prohibited, essentially, under that analysis?



          23      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  By "span," I'm talking about the



          24   distance between neighboring structures.



          25      Q.    Okay.
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  And we've been going about an hour



           2   and a half.  So sometime within the next minute or two,



           3   we need to take about a 10- or 15-minute break whenever



           4   you think it's appropriate.



           5            MR. GOLESTAN:  Certainly, Mr. Chairman.  I think



           6   I only have a few more questions.



           7      Q.    BY MR. GOLESTAN:  So it's under consideration in



           8   this case in this condition that we've talked about as it



           9   relates to entering the Contrail station and it being



          10   double-circuiting on a single pole.



          11            But that was not the -- as you mentioned



          12   earlier, the TPL-001-4 analysis wasn't conducted for



          13   other parts of this route because APS did not consider



          14   double-circuiting on a single pole in any of those other



          15   areas, right?



          16      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  The requirement to evaluate under



          17   TPL-001-4 was conducted.  The specific contingency of



          18   evaluating multiple circuits on a single structure was



          19   not evaluated in that assessment since the planned lines



          20   were not going to be collocated on a single structure.



          21            MR. GOLESTAN:  Thank you, Mr. Wiley.



          22            That's all the questions I have.



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  It's just past 20 minutes to 11.



          24   Let's plan on getting started between 10:55 and 11 and



          25   ask everybody to be back here by around 10:55, and we'll
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           1   get started as soon as we can.  Thank you.



           2            (A recess was taken from 10:42 a.m. to



           3   11:01 a.m.)



           4            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Golestan, do you have any



           5   further cross-examination?



           6            MR. GOLESTAN:  I don't want to make promises I



           7   can't keep, Mr. Chair.  I might have a few more questions



           8   for Mr. Simpson.  But depending on -- I know that the --



           9   things are done a little loosely around here, as you had



          10   alluded to earlier, but if you don't want me to go back



          11   to Mr. Simpson, that's fine.



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  I would prefer that we go with



          13   direct, cross, and redirect.  No recross unless a new



          14   subject matter is introduced during the redirect



          15   examination.  If you have any questions right now, you're



          16   free to ask.



          17            MR. GOLESTAN:  No.  That's fine.  I'm good.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  And do you have any redirect



          19   examination, Ms. Benally or Mr. Derstine?



          20            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, I have a few



          21   questions on redirect.



          22



          23                      REDIRECT EXAMINATION



          24   BY MR. DERSTINE:



          25      Q.    Ms. Darr, let's start with you.  Counsel for the
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           1   City asked you about the geofencing that was used to



           2   define the radius of the Facebook or social media ads.



           3   Do you recall that?



           4      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Correct.



           5      Q.    Can we pull up Slide 95.  Or I think it's



           6   physical Slide 95, 102 on the electronic version.



           7            Thank you.



           8            Looking at the slide that's now projected on the



           9   screen marked 95 or 102 in the PDF, as I look at it, the



          10   circles are what are used to define the area in which the



          11   Facebook or social media ads went out within the project



          12   study area; is that right?



          13      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



          14      Q.    And I think, as counsel noted in his questions



          15   to you, there are -- the corners of the study area where



          16   they are more at a right angle are cut off on the study



          17   area.  Is that what's shown?



          18      A.    Yes.



          19      Q.    Within the circles, those are the areas that did



          20   receive Facebook and social media ads, right?



          21      A.    Correct.



          22      Q.    And within those circles of the coverage of the



          23   social media ads, that includes the Suncliff Subdivision,



          24   correct?



          25      A.    Yes.
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           1      Q.    Also the includes the other residential areas



           2   that are adjacent to the line, that is, the residential



           3   area in the Town of Youngtown, the residential area in



           4   the Dysart Ranches along Peoria, correct?



           5      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Correct.



           6      Q.    And putting aside the geofencing circles, the



           7   entire study area was used to develop the address list?



           8      A.    (Ms. Darr)  The mailng list, yes.



           9      Q.    The mailing list.



          10      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



          11      Q.    Or for the mailing of the newsletters?



          12      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Correct.



          13      Q.    So newsletters went out to the entire larger box



          14   beyond just the circles?



          15      A.    (Ms. Darr).



          16            MR. GOLESTAN:  I'm going to object to form.



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  Overruled.  You may answer.



          18            MS. DARR:  That is correct.



          19      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Duncan, you were asked



          20   about land use within the City of Peoria adjacent to the



          21   line.  Do you recall that?



          22      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          23            MR. DERSTINE:  Can I have -- and there may be a



          24   slide for this, but I'm looking at the application, it's



          25   A-2-2.  I believe it's in the land use slides.  It may be
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           1   easier to pull up.



           2      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Simpson, can you aid me



           3   and point me to your jurisdictional land use map.



           4      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  There's one in the land use



           5   exhibits, 121.



           6      Q.    Okay.  Yeah.



           7            MR. DERSTINE:  So it's Slide 121 or the PDF 128



           8   of the 234, if we can pull that up.  Is that what's there



           9   on the screen?



          10            AV TECH MOELLER:  Yes, that's correct.



          11      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  So, Mr. Duncan, can you use



          12   your laser pointer is identify the City of Peoria that's



          13   bounded by the proposed Routes E and G.



          14      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.  The City of Peoria is



          15   indicated here in this orange-type color.  And the area



          16   within where Route E and G is which is the City of Peoria



          17   is this area that I'm bounding right here on the north



          18   and here on the west and down here on the south.



          19      Q.    So if I'm looking at this correctly, that light



          20   brown color is the City of Peoria.  It becomes darker



          21   brown, and that indicates the transition to Maricopa



          22   County jurisdiction; is that right?



          23      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          24      Q.    And so the links that are in question or that



          25   are the focus of the City of Peoria's concerns and
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           1   questions are link 650 and link 625.  Do I have that



           2   right?



           3      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



           4      Q.    As to the portion of Route E on Olive, that's



           5   the northern boundary of the Suncliff Subdivision.  Is



           6   that line being constructed in the City of Peoria?



           7      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  No, it is not.



           8      Q.    And where is it?



           9      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  It is being constructed in the



          10   Town of Youngtown.



          11      Q.    So link 650, which is the easternmost segment of



          12   the route on Olive, which is Route E, is being



          13   constructed on the north side of Olive in the Town of



          14   Youngtown?



          15      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  That is correct.



          16      Q.    And on the route tour, when we stood on Olive



          17   and were looking across at where the line will be



          18   constructed, this portion, 650, we were staring into the



          19   Town of Youngtown, correct?



          20      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          21      Q.    And what we're seeing is a number of



          22   transmission lines and a substation, correct?



          23      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          24      Q.    And that area is zoned industrial, that portion



          25   up to the edge of the El Sol Substation?
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           1      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  We believe so.



           2      Q.    And so the impact of the construction of Route E



           3   on Olive along segment 650, which borders the City of



           4   Peoria, will in some way impact the views of this



           5   industrial transmission line area, correct?



           6            MR. GOLESTAN:  I'll object to form.



           7      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  Describe what the viewshed is



           8   that we saw when we were standing looking across Olive



           9   Avenue towards where the line will be constructed?



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  You may answer the rephrased



          11   question.



          12            MR. DUNCAN:  The view is of the El Sol



          13   Substation directly to the north.  To the northeast and



          14   to the east is an existing multitransmission --



          15   high-voltage transmission line corridor that is



          16   diagonally crossing into the view as it proceeds to the



          17   north.



          18            There's also a 69kV subtransmission east to west



          19   located on the north side of Olive Avenue that has a 12kV



          20   double-circuit underbuild.



          21      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  And it's those lines that will



          22   be changed by this project, and we saw a simulation



          23   yesterday from Mr. Simpson in terms of what that's likely



          24   to look like; is that correct?



          25      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, that's correct.
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           1      Q.    Let's go down to Northern and looking at link



           2   625.  The City of Peoria, it looks like the Suncliff



           3   Subdivision narrows as it moves down to the south along



           4   Northern Avenue.  Am I looking at that correctly?



           5      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, that's correct.



           6      Q.    And so the balance of that area within the City



           7   of Peoria jurisdiction, what is that?  As the subdivision



           8   narrows, what is to the west of it?



           9      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  That is a commercial sand and



          10   gravel operation.  Mr. Simpson described that during the



          11   tour yesterday.



          12      Q.    And the Route G that is proposed to be



          13   constructed on Northern, is that being constructed within



          14   the City of Peoria?



          15      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  No, it is not.



          16      Q.    And whose jurisdiction is it being constructed



          17   in?



          18      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  It is being constructed within the



          19   City of Glendale, Glendale's landfill.



          20      Q.    And as we stood on Northern at the edge of the



          21   Suncliff Subdivision looking at where the line will be



          22   constructed, what are we seeing?



          23      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  The straight-ahead view is of a



          24   wall, a decorative wall, for lack of a better term, that



          25   is superseded in height by the first cell of the Glendale
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           1   landfill, which is several hundred feet in height.  That



           2   is the direct view.



           3            The view as you turn your head slightly to the



           4   left is of the multitransmission line corridor that is



           5   proceeding north and south.



           6            And in the immediate foreground of the view is



           7   what is currently Northern Avenue but soon to be Northern



           8   Parkway.



           9      Q.    Mr. Simpson, you were asked some questions about



          10   the impacts of and how you graded the impacts of Route G



          11   on Northern.



          12            Can you -- when you said that the impacts are



          13   high, what are you referring to?



          14      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  So for visual impacts, we take



          15   into a number of different factors.  Visibility is one,



          16   and that means, is it opened?  Is it backdropped?  What



          17   distance are you viewing at?



          18            And then we take in other factors, which are



          19   called visual contrasts.  So that is consideration for



          20   what other facilities you may see in the existing



          21   landscape.



          22            In this case, Mr. Duncan just mentioned the



          23   multiline transmission corridor to the east, which is



          24   highly visible from those locations and the landfill to



          25   the south.  And then to the west, the sand and gravel and
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           1   materials yards that exist there.



           2            So when we consider visual contrast, is there



           3   already, say, industrial features or transmission line



           4   features.  All of that affects how a viewer would



           5   perceive a new line in the landscape.  And each of those



           6   factors was a consideration in how we arrived at the



           7   impacts.



           8            And they would be a little bit variable,



           9   depending upon where you're at in the subdivision.  We



          10   recognized that the first row or two of houses along



          11   Northern would have those high impacts as a result of



          12   being able to see the conductor overhead or perhaps the



          13   lines on either side.



          14            As you move further away from the roadway over



          15   to the north, you get more to the interior of the



          16   subdivision, those views become harder to see.  They're



          17   not as open.  They not visible in the same way, so the



          18   impact would drop off from there.



          19            So that high impact largely being the first



          20   couple of rows of houses that are closest to that line



          21   where they would see the most visible portions of the new



          22   line.



          23      Q.    Are there impacts to the Suncliff Subdivision



          24   other than the visual impacts you just described?



          25      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  No.  We are not located on the
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           1   property.  The primary concern there were the visual



           2   impacts.



           3      Q.    And the visual impacts are adding a 230kV



           4   transmission line to the view of the dump?



           5      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That is correct.



           6            MR. DERSTINE:  No further questions.



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  Anything further?



           8            Do you essentially rest your case?



           9            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  We don't know whether or not Peoria



          11   wishes to call any witnesses?



          12            MR. GOLESTAN:  Peoria will not call any



          13   witnesses, Mr. Chairman.



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  What we can do is hear any closing



          15   arguments that you wish to make if you're ready do that.



          16            MEMBER LITTLE:  Mr. Chairman.



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Member Little.



          18            MEMBER LITTLE:  I have a question, and I'm not



          19   sure who to address this to because I was having a hard



          20   time following who was being questioned in cross.



          21            But this project is requesting the authorization



          22   for a second circuit and getting to the question about



          23   following the NERC standards in doing the studies for



          24   double-circuit construction -- any double-circuit



          25   construction that might happen in the future.
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           1            There is a condition in almost all of the CECs



           2   that requires the applicant to follow all NERC standards.



           3   And I'm just wondering whether that condition would cover



           4   any required NERC studies in the future having to do with



           5   double-circuit lines.



           6            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you, Member Little.  I



           7   think that's a question that should be responded to by



           8   Mr. Wiley.



           9            MEMBER LITTLE:  Thank you.



          10            MR. WILEY:  Member Little, I'm sorry, I didn't



          11   catch your specific question.  Would you mind repeating



          12   that?



          13            MEMBER LITTLE:  It was kind of convoluted.  I



          14   apologize.



          15            There is a condition in almost CECs, and I see



          16   it in this proposed CEC also, that requires the applicant



          17   to follow all NERC standards, WECC standards, and others,



          18   but NERC is also specified.



          19            Do you believe that that condition would require



          20   APS do any required studies having to do with



          21   double-circuiting any of these lines in the future?



          22            MR. WILEY:  Thank you for the question, Member



          23   Little.



          24            I haven't seen this specific condition.  Hearing



          25   that it covers all NERC standards, this would be
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           1   applicable since it is a standard under NERC.  And, of



           2   course, when we do go to build that second line in the



           3   future, we would include that as part of our TPL analysis



           4   at that time.



           5            MEMBER LITTLE:  Thank you.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Let me just ask as a follow-up,



           7   Mr. Wiley, would the poles that are erected be erected in



           8   contemplation of adding that second line, or are we



           9   looking at tearing down those poles and replacing them



          10   with ones that are capable of carrying double-circuit?



          11            MR. WILEY:  Chairman Katz, thank you.



          12            The structures that we're proposing to install



          13   would be capable of adding a second circuit.  At which



          14   time that second circuit is needed, replacement of



          15   structures would not be needed.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.



          17            And I didn't mean to ignore other Committee



          18   Members.



          19            Does anyone else have any questions of the other



          20   witnesses before we go to closing arguments from both



          21   parties?



          22            (No response.)



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Hearing nothing further, are you



          24   gentlemen -- ladies and gentlemen ready to present your



          25   closing arguments, or do you need a few minutes?
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           1            MR. DERSTINE:  I think so.  The only thing I



           2   need is to check with the AV team to see if -- I threw



           3   them some slides for a closing.



           4            CHMN. KATZ:  If you need a couple minutes.



           5            MR. DERSTINE:  If we can take --



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Let's just take a five-minute



           7   break.



           8            (A recess was taken from 11:20 a.m. to



           9   11:34 a.m.)



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  We're ready to begin.



          11            I did indicate to the attorneys that once we are



          12   done with our closing arguments, we're going to take a



          13   lunch break and then come back and review the proposed



          14   CEC, make whatever edits and approvals or disapprovals



          15   that we collectively as a Committee agree to do.  But I



          16   told the lawyers that we wanted to boost everybody's



          17   blood sugar with lunch.



          18            I don't know whether it will be Ms. Benally or



          19   Mr. Derstine, but you're welcome to make the closing



          20   argument on behalf of Arizona Public Service.



          21            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members



          22   of the Committee and as well as the Members I see on the



          23   screen in front of me.  Thank you for your time and



          24   attention.



          25            Thank you, Madam Court Reporter, as always, for
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           1   doing such a nice job keeping track and giving us a good



           2   transcript whether it's here in the hearing room or



           3   driving around the West Valley in a van.  We appreciate



           4   it.



           5            In my opening, I had stated that you can't have



           6   growth without power.  APS has a duty to serve all the



           7   customers, customers that exist today as well as



           8   anticipating and being prepared for the customers of the



           9   future, the growth that's going to happen.



          10            Different customers have different needs.  Not



          11   every customer is going to require a CEC and we don't



          12   have to bring a project before this Committee.  At the



          13   same time, APS has the same duty to serve that growth



          14   with the appropriate facilities.  And the challenge is to



          15   always be in a position to site and construct those



          16   facilities in time to meet customer needs while at the



          17   same time minimizing the impacts of that new



          18   infrastructure on the surrounding community.  And that's



          19   what this case is about, and that's what we've presented



          20   to you.



          21            I noted in my opening and shared a couple of



          22   recent articles about all the growth that's happening in



          23   the West Valley.  But you don't have to read the



          24   newspaper to see the growth that's happening in the West



          25   Valley.  For those who were on the tour and drove around,
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           1   you saw all the construction that's occurring, the



           2   transition of the agricultural fields to new logistics



           3   centers, commerce parks, manufacturing facilities, cold



           4   storage facilities.  All that is happening at a very



           5   rapid pace here in the West Valley.



           6            And the Loop 303, as I mentioned, has become a



           7   hub for that growth.  But it's not just the Loop 303.  It



           8   extends into Glendale.  It extends into El Mirage.  All



           9   of the communities in the West Valley are experiencing



          10   this growth.  And the growth is not only the business



          11   growth.  It's the residential growth that's following



          12   that business growth.



          13            This project serves two needs:



          14            It satisfies the need to serve a high-level



          15   customer, the Microsoft datacenter.  It's in El Mirage.



          16   It's in the early stages of development.  At full



          17   buildout, that datacenter is going to require 245



          18   megawatts of power.



          19            In addition, this project will be able to serve



          20   the growth that's occurring using the second circuit, the



          21   230 circuit that will tie in the lines on the east, the



          22   230kV infrastructure on the west of the project area and



          23   on the east.



          24            What's needed to satisfy the needs, the two



          25   needs that I identified, are to expand the existing
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           1   Contrail Substation with the necessary 230kV



           2   transformers, bus work, and then to construct three



           3   independent double-circuit 230kV lines.  Those lines are



           4   proposed to be constructed on Routes A, E, and G set



           5   forth in the application and as the Committee has seen on



           6   the maps.



           7            What are the benefits of the project?  Well, it



           8   does a number of things.  Those three new 230kV



           9   double-circuit lines allow Microsoft -- not only allow



          10   APS to serve Microsoft and satisfy the high load of a



          11   datacenter, but they allow Microsoft to eliminate the



          12   need for diesel generation, which would be the third leg



          13   of the stool in terms of their reliability requirements.



          14   And that third circuit allows us to eliminate diesel and



          15   the noise and the environmental impacts that come with



          16   diesel generation onsite.



          17            As I mentioned, the project connects the 230kV



          18   systems on the east and the west sides of the West Valley



          19   much like the Northern Parkway is intended to do,



          20   connecting freeways on the east and the west of the West



          21   Valley.  This project serves to connect those systems and



          22   improves the reliability of the 230kV infrastructure and



          23   will allow us to serve a lot of the high-level customers



          24   and commercial and industrial growth that's occurring in



          25   this area.
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           1            We covered the planning process.  Mr. Simpson



           2   testified at length about kind of what went into those,



           3   the activities that went into those 18 months of work.



           4   Environmental studies, engineering studies, all the



           5   outreach that occurred over that 18-month timespan.  And



           6   through all that, APS and its consultants analyzed the 41



           7   square miles of area to identify potential routes,



           8   identify early on small links that were numbered.  These



           9   numbered links still show on our route maps today.  And



          10   those small numbered links were then connected and used



          11   to develop lettered preliminary routes.



          12            Those preliminary routes, I think A through H,



          13   were then shared with the surrounding community in the



          14   newsletter that went out.  And we solicited not only



          15   showing them where those preliminary routes would be but



          16   asked them to comment, give us feedback.  Tell us whether



          17   you like them, whether you hate them, and what's the



          18   preferred route for the community, landowners,



          19   developers.



          20            Ultimately, utilizing that feedback and the



          21   outreach campaign that was presented to inform us and



          22   help us develop the final routes, A, E, and G were



          23   selected.  And those are the routes that are before the



          24   Committee in our CEC application that we're asking you to



          25   approve in this case.
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           1            Ms. Darr covered the public outreach, and I was



           2   pleased -- I guess I might say -- I shouldn't say



           3   surprised, but I was pleased to hear Member Gentles say



           4   that he thought we had done a good, thorough job because



           5   he doesn't lavish praise or approval without good reason.



           6   And his usual take is very critical and at least uses a



           7   critical eye to analyze outreach campaigns.  I



           8   appreciated his comments.  I know the company did too.



           9            Not to say that we're perfect in this area.  We



          10   never are.  But we continue to strive to do our best.



          11   And as always, the objective is to gain input, let folks



          12   know what we're thinking, what we're planning, what we're



          13   doing, gain their feedback, use that information to



          14   inform us about how we move forward with the project and



          15   ultimately to help us design and present a project to



          16   this Committee.  And I think we did an effective job of



          17   that in this case.



          18            Mr. Simpson had mentioned it, and I have to



          19   agree that I have not -- having handled a number of these



          20   cases, I haven't been involved in a case that involved



          21   this many different jurisdictions in which we had to



          22   communicate and engage and inform and work with.  There's



          23   a number of larger and smaller communities in the West



          24   Valley that make up this project area, and we had to work



          25   with all of them.





                  COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440



                  www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ

�



                       LS CASE NO. 198      VOLUME III      03/02/2022

                                                                      412





           1            In addition to the jurisdictions, the cities and



           2   the towns, we worked with Luke Air Force Base, Maricopa



           3   County Department of Transportation, and then the



           4   individual private landowners who are building large,



           5   multiple thousand, in some cases millions, of square feet



           6   of development that have a significant interest in what



           7   we're building, where we're building it, and how it



           8   impacts their development.  And as I think was mentioned



           9   during the testimony, wondering whether there would be



          10   sufficient power to serve their development in the



          11   future.  And with this project, there will be.



          12            As we mentioned, it's also a bit unusual for us



          13   to gain letters, feedback in writing.  Many of these



          14   letters indicated their appreciation for their being



          15   involved in the project and the manner in which we



          16   engaged them and sought their input.  Some indicated



          17   their approval for the project, but every one of those



          18   entities that submitted a letter stated their



          19   appreciation for our process and the manner in which we



          20   worked with them throughout the 18-month planning history



          21   for the project.  We always ask for letters.  We don't



          22   usually get them.  And in this case, we got them, and I



          23   think it says something about the process.



          24            But the project is not without opposition.  The



          25   City of Peoria is here, and, frankly, we're happy to have
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           1   them here.  Whether it happens late in the process or



           2   early, it's important for us to know, you know, what the



           3   jurisdictions, what landowners, what residents are



           4   thinking.  And if they show up here at the time of the



           5   hearing and want to participate and state their views



           6   concerning the project, we're happy to have them do that.



           7            In this particular case, the City has concerns



           8   about Routes E and G, which are not within the City of



           9   Peoria but border along its boundaries on Olive Avenue



          10   and Northern Avenue.



          11            The focus of the City's attention are, as I



          12   mentioned, E and G.  And in fact the short segments that



          13   border on the City of Peoria -- and if the AV people



          14   could pull up those simulations for me, it may be helpful



          15   for the Committee to just, one more time, see what the



          16   City of Peoria is talking about and is concerned about.



          17            This Visual Simulation No. 4 shows the view on



          18   Olive Avenue looking to the west along Olive.  The



          19   existing condition shows what it looks like today.  All



          20   the existing -- at least the transmission lines, what's



          21   out of the frame on the existing condition is the



          22   substation and the other transmission lines that are



          23   further to the east.  But this is the view of Olive



          24   Avenue as you're looking to the west on the Suncliff



          25   Subdivision, the edge of that subdivision.  And the
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           1   proposed condition is on the right.



           2            The testimony that you heard is that the plan to



           3   construct those 230kV lines across Olive within the Town



           4   of Youngtown or their jurisdiction will increase the span



           5   length and eliminate some of the infrastructure that



           6   you're seeing there.  The 12kV will go underground.  The



           7   69kV will be collocated with the new 230 lines.  The 230



           8   structures will be taller.  You can see for yourself



           9   whether you think that's an improvement or whether that



          10   worsens all the infrastructure that is existing here



          11   today and what folks see when they're leaving the



          12   Suncliff Subdivision and turning onto Olive Avenue and



          13   driving to the west.



          14            If you can pull up the next slide, please.



          15            This is the other side of an area of concern for



          16   the City of Peoria.  This is Northern Avenue.  On



          17   Northern, the Suncliff Subdivision narrows down, but



          18   there's still an entrance and an exit to that subdivision



          19   there.  And what you see running along Northern, as has



          20   been testified to, is the City of Glendale's landfill.



          21   And the landfill is surrounded by this large retaining



          22   wall.  You're looking at Northern.  That will be torn up



          23   and widened as part of this Northern Parkway project as



          24   it extends back towards the east and comes the direction



          25   of the City of Peoria.
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           1            In addition to the road widening, you'll see



           2   that we have -- or in order to avoid the road widening,



           3   our proposal is to construct the new transmission line



           4   within the boundary of the landfill within the City of



           5   Glendale.  And so what residents within Suncliff, those



           6   new residents who might see these structures from their



           7   backyard or as they're driving out of the Suncliff



           8   Horizon Subdivision out onto Northern Avenue, will see



           9   the new transmission lines, and the poles span out



          10   approximately 750 feet.  And that will be their new view.



          11   It won't just be the landfill.  It will be the landfill



          12   and these 230kV structures.



          13            APS is committed to work with the City of Peoria



          14   to try to address their concerns.  We've agreed to



          15   evaluate undergrounding a portion of the line on Northern



          16   here.  And if it can be feasibly undergrounded there



          17   without impacting the landfill operations and will result



          18   in a safe and reliable installation that can be



          19   maintained and repaired over time, APS has agreed to do



          20   that.



          21            I don't know that we have -- we've continued to



          22   work with the other jurisdictions.  In this case, we're



          23   working with the City of Peoria.  And that isn't unique



          24   to this case.  That's what we do in every case.  Our job



          25   is to engage with and work with affected jurisdictions
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           1   and landowners and do the best we can to mitigate the



           2   impacts of the project.



           3            But in general, we're not undergrounding



           4   transmission lines unless there is a safety



           5   consideration, that the project is needed in that



           6   location, and the only way to install it there or



           7   construct it there is to underground it; or, as in this



           8   case, a third party is willing to cover the cost to



           9   construct this underground segment.  And in this case, we



          10   have Microsoft who has indicated their willingness to



          11   mitigate the impact of this project on the City of Peoria



          12   and the residents in this area by agreeing to cover the



          13   cost of undergrounding if that can be safely and feasibly



          14   done.



          15            So that's where we are.  The results of those



          16   studies won't be known for some time.  It will take some



          17   time to fully understand what can be constructed there in



          18   terms of an underground construction.  But we'll continue



          19   to working with and communicate and cooperate with the



          20   City of Peoria.  And I think you'll see language to that



          21   effect in the proposed CEC.



          22            You heard our case, four witnesses using the



          23   various PowerPoint slides and exhibits.  You saw the



          24   flyover simulation.  Those of you who were here were able



          25   to take the route tour.  And you heard cross-examination,
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           1   and you'll hear here in a minute closing argument from



           2   counsel for the City of Peoria.



           3            As I indicated, we're requesting a CEC that



           4   approves the construction of the double-circuit lines on



           5   Routes A, E, and G on monopole structures ranging from



           6   130 to 195 feet.  Included, as you'll see, is the



           7   exhibit, the map which shows the routes, identifies the



           8   corridor and the width of the corridor for those three



           9   routes.



          10            And the corridor, as you know, as this Committee



          11   well knows, is the key consideration that allows us to



          12   develop these projects and design them in a way that



          13   minimizes the impacts.  It allows us, after this hearing,



          14   when we get along further in engineering, to continue to



          15   working with landowners and jurisdictions to continue to



          16   place poles and adjust the alignment in a way that it



          17   addresses the concerns of residents.



          18            We can't always give folks what they ask for.



          19   Our commitment is simply to do what we can and to



          20   communicate and to do our very best to try to minimize



          21   the impacts within the call or the authority that this



          22   Committee gives us in identifying a corridor for



          23   constructing the project.  And we'll do that here.



          24            In terms of the term of the project, we're



          25   asking for a ten-year term, which is the standard CEC
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           1   term to construct the first circuit.  That's the circuit



           2   that's going to be dedicated to serving Microsoft.



           3            The second circuit, we're asking for a 20-year



           4   term because at the present time, we don't know when



           5   we'll need that circuit.  We know we don't need it today.



           6   We know it's going to be sometime in the future, but



           7   we're asking for the longer term for that reason.



           8            In my opening, I indicated that this was an



           9   important project, and I stand by those words.  It's an



          10   important project for Microsoft, and it's an important



          11   project to serve the growth that's occurring in the West



          12   Valley.



          13            And with that, we're going to request that you



          14   grant us the CEC and look forward to your deliberation



          15   over the CEC.  And, as always, we thank you for your time



          16   and attention.



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you kindly.



          18            Mr. Golestan.



          19            MR. GOLESTAN:  Mr. Chairman, Members of the



          20   Committee, thank you very much for the opportunity to be



          21   here.



          22            Peoria intervened in this matter to present



          23   concerns to this Committee about the impacts of this



          24   project on the City, and Peoria appreciates the



          25   opportunity to do so, appreciates APS's commitment and
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           1   counsel's remarks about working together and continuing



           2   to do so to determine solutions to the issues that have



           3   been raised.



           4            Through some of the exhibits and the witness



           5   testimony, really, Peoria's two concerns were, firstly,



           6   the nature of the impact on Peoria.  That's been



           7   acknowledged by APS, as we heard from the witnesses.



           8   That impact is shown by frankly this map that we're



           9   looking at right now and the other maps that showed the



          10   nature of the land use.



          11            Most of the routes outside of the City of Peoria



          12   go through industrial or commercial areas.  The portions



          13   of the Routes E and G that are closest Peoria Avenue



          14   border the Suncliff Subdivision.



          15            As we heard on cross-examination through



          16   Mr. Simpson and to some extent Mr. Duncan, the condition



          17   that this would create, Routes E and G, is unique.



          18   There's no other place in the study area where a



          19   residential community is surrounded or -- essentially



          20   surrounded on three sides by 230kV transmission lines.



          21            And Mr. Simpson discussed on his own direct



          22   examination a rough sort of back-of-the-napkin



          23   calculation of the impact on the residents.  And even



          24   that analysis indicates that the burden and the impact on



          25   Peoria, particularly for residential as compared to other
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           1   jurisdictions, is unique and much greater.



           2            He approximated that the routes affect



           3   approximately 300 homes in Youngtown within half a mile,



           4   approximately 400 homes on the Olive line within half a



           5   mile.  That's in Peoria.  And approximately 145 homes on



           6   the Northern segment.  So that's a total of 545 homes in



           7   Peoria and residents therein that are affected, nearly



           8   double that of other jurisdictions.  So the impact is



           9   certainly unique and has been acknowledged.



          10            The other issue that Peoria has raised is just a



          11   question of continued investigation to ensure that the



          12   Northern segment, specifically, segment G -- Route G,



          13   excuse me, doesn't unduly impact the Northern Parkway



          14   project, which, as we've heard, is a multijurisdictional



          15   project that's been going on for a number of years.



          16   That's continuing.  As we heard from witnesses, there are



          17   federal funds tied up in that project, but they weren't



          18   able to comment about the ramifications and the interplay



          19   between this proposed route and any federal funding.



          20   Obviously, as Peoria mentioned in its intervening papers,



          21   that's the primary concern, is ensuring that no federal



          22   funding is lost.  And that wouldn't only affect Peoria.



          23   That would affect El Mirage, Glendale, other



          24   jurisdictions that are involved in that project.



          25            Peoria appreciates that APS has worked with
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           1   other stakeholders, including other jurisdictions, and



           2   that was a give-and-take process as described by members



           3   of the witness panel for APS, and that resulted in some



           4   changes.  And Peoria simply wants that dialogue, that



           5   same dialogue.  And we appreciate that APS has been doing



           6   that.  Ultimately, Peoria's request is that if the CEC is



           7   approved, it is approved with that jointly proposed



           8   condition that both of the parties have proposed to the



           9   Committee that requires the parties to continue to



          10   negotiate in good faith and come up with solutions to



          11   address these concerns.



          12            And with that, we appreciate the opportunity and



          13   appreciate the Committee's time.  Thank you.



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  Anything -- you don't have any



          15   additional exhibits, correct, Mr. Golestan?



          16            MR. GOLESTAN:  No.



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  Anything further before we take our



          18   lunch break?



          19            MR. GOLESTAN:  No.



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  I'm showing that it's just about



          21   exactly noon.  Does the Committee want to consider 1:00?



          22   We'll start back at 1:00 and start our deliberations.



          23            And, Mr. Golestan, what we'll do is I'll go



          24   through sections of this and ask the Committee to either



          25   approve or disapprove of that section.
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           1            But on page No. 2, lines 17 through 23, we're



           2   not going to take the vote or fill that section in or



           3   seek approval until all of the other conditions can be



           4   agreed to as we might modify.  And then we'll -- and the



           5   votes to approve various sections will be just verbal.



           6   But the final vote as to whether or not the CEC should be



           7   issued will be a roll call vote with each Member having



           8   to say yea or nay, yes or no.



           9            Okay.  We'll see you in about an hour.



          10            (A recess was taken from 12:01 p.m. to



          11   1:03 p.m.)



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  What we're going to do, and this



          13   should have been emailed to our Committee Members, and it



          14   was handed to us that are present here in the hearing



          15   room.  But we're going to mark as Chairman-1 the PDF



          16   version, which will be kept as is.



          17             On the right side will be the Word version of



          18   the same document that we will work from.  Once that's



          19   been finalized and approved, that will become Chairman



          20   No. 2.  So we will be changing what will be initially put



          21   up on the right screen.  We will be modifying that as we



          22   go, and the final version will be Chairman-2.



          23            And if we're ready to go, we can.  And what we



          24   normally do is go through certain paragraphs, sometimes



          25   several lines at once.  We will go through the additional
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           1   conditions as well as the Findings of Fact and



           2   Conclusions of Law one by one.  And after that, we go



           3   back to the earlier portion of the document.  And that's



           4   on page 2, lines 17 through 22.  And that we will skip



           5   over until it's time to vote on whether to issue the CEC



           6   or not.



           7            MR. GOLESTAN:  Mr. Chairman.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes.



           9            MR. GOLESTAN:  I propose a housekeeping matter



          10   if I may.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes.



          12            MR. GOLESTAN:  I didn't have the opportunity



          13   before, but Peoria did include a handful of exhibits that



          14   was submitted by the deadline that you had set out, Mr.



          15   Chairman, by last Friday.  I spoke with Mr. Derstine.  We



          16   stipulated to the entry of Peoria's exhibits into the



          17   record.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  Peoria' exhibits are --



          19            MR. GOLESTAN:  Peoria-1, 2, 3, and 4.



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  Peoria Exhibits 1, 2, 3, and 4 will



          21   be admitted.



          22            (Exhibits Peoria-1 through Peoria-4 were



          23   admitted into evidence.)



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  You need to get copies of those



          25   exhibits to our court reporter.
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           1            MR. GOLESTAN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.



           2            So Exhibit 1 is the Intergovernmental Agreement.



           3   That's Peoria 1.



           4            Peoria 2 is Northern Parkway:  Agua Fria River



           5   to 99th Avenue Scoping and Design Report.



           6            And Peoria 3 is the relevant page of the fiscal



           7   year 2022 to 2025 Maricopa Association of Governments



           8   Transportation Improvement Program.



           9            And then Peoria 4 is maps showing the segments



          10   that are bordering Peoria along with Northern Parkway



          11   schedule information.



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  And we'll get copies of those to



          13   you so that we can confirm everything that was just



          14   stated.



          15            If everybody would please take a look at the



          16   first page of the document.



          17            Beginning at line 14 through page 2, line



          18   No. 16.  I need everybody to take a look at that.  And



          19   we'll be showing at the very beginning of that, going



          20   back to page 1, we have to fill in the date as March 2nd,



          21   2022.



          22            And on that first page, we also need to strike



          23   Zachary Branum.  He did not appear at all in these



          24   proceedings.



          25            And going on to the next page, page 2, I think
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           1   it's line 3, we have David French that's been substituted



           2   in for John Riggins from the Water Department -- or the



           3   Department of Water Resources.



           4            Going down to line 10, Jack Haenichen is not



           5   present.  He's having some health-related issues.



           6            But I believe all the other numbers of our



           7   Committee that are listed in the document are present



           8   either in person or virtually.



           9            And we would be adding in at line 14, I think it



          10   is, Peoria as the intervenor or the City of Peoria,



          11   represented by Saman Golestan, Assistant Peoria City



          12   Attorney.



          13            MR. GOLESTAN:  Saman Golestan, Mr. Chairman.



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  What did I say?



          15            MR. GOLESTAN:  A little different pronunciation.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  And take a look at page No. 1, line



          17   14, through page No. 2, line 16, with the striking of the



          18   two representatives on the Committee that aren't here and



          19   adding the City of Peoria represented by their counsel.



          20            And then once you've done that, I would welcome



          21   a motion to approve this portion of the CEC document.



          22            MEMBER PALMER:  Mr. Chairman, I move approval of



          23   page 1, line 15, through page 2, line 16, as amended.



          24            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Second.



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor say "aye."
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           1            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Chairman.



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, sir.



           3            MEMBER GRINNELL:  May we get the edited version



           4   up on our screen versus the other?



           5            Thank you, sir.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Is it up on there now?



           7            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Yes.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  You should be looking at the edited



           9   version, and I'm assuming that -- are we editing it as we



          10   go?



          11            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



          12            MEMBER GENTLES:  Mr. Chairman.



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Mr. Gentles.



          14            MEMBER GENTLES:  I don't know if this is -- hold



          15   on a second.  Let me just try something.



          16            Okay.  I solved my issue.  Thank you.



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  Fine.  Thank you.



          18            I'll ask again, all in favor.



          19            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  Anyone opposed.



          21            (No response.)



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  That is approved.



          23            We'll skip lines 17 through 23.  That's our



          24   final vote.



          25            But we begin, then, with Section B at line 24,
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           1   Project Overview.  And that runs on through a description



           2   of the project to the top of page 3, line 3.  And we will



           3   be attaching a project map to this.



           4            And once you've had a chance to look at it, I



           5   will gladly receive a motion to approve.



           6            MEMBER GRINNELL:  So moved.



           7            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Second.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



           9            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  Anyone opposed.



          11            (No response.)



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  We next have the paragraph that



          13   begins at line 5 on page 3 and goes through line --



          14   actually, line 13.  We've stricken from the document



          15   lines 13 through lines 18.  So we're looking at the



          16   paragraph as written from line No. 5 on page 3 through



          17   line 12.



          18            And whenever, you can move.



          19            MEMBER LITTLE:  Mr. Chairman, I have a question.



          20   Do we want to move it first and then discuss it?



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  Yeah.  If we have the motion and a



          22   second, we then can discuss the language.  And if there's



          23   any concerns by either of the parties, they can also



          24   express that concern before we take the vote.



          25            But do we have a motion to approve that
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           1   Condition No. 1?



           2            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So moved.



           3            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



           4            CHMN. KATZ:  If there's any discussion.



           5            Member Little, if you had a discussion or some



           6   suggested changes.



           7            MEMBER LITTLE:  Maybe I'm being dense, but I'm



           8   not quite sure what the first part of that sentence



           9   means.  Is that saying that the CEC expires ten years



          10   from when it's approved or until the project is



          11   completed?



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  I think the first phase is for ten



          13   years.



          14            MEMBER LITTLE:  No.  I understand that.  The



          15   part that says:   Unless construction is completed to the



          16   point that the first circuit is capable of operating by



          17   that time.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  But if they wanted more time, they



          19   would have to make a formal request to amend if I'm not



          20   mistaken.



          21            MEMBER LITTLE:  Okay.



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  Any comment from either of the



          23   lawyers?



          24            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Chairman.



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, sir, Mr. Grinnell.
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           1            MEMBER GRINNELL:  We have -- I'm with Ms. Little



           2   here.  We have 10 years or 20 years or to the time of



           3   construction or to the time of completion.



           4            I think lines 6 through I guess it would be line



           5   12, because it looks like it takes up to ten years.  So



           6   there's a little bit of a contradiction in here.  Shall



           7   expire ten years.  And then it is deleted, yet it is to



           8   construct the project shall expire ten years, but that's



           9   been deleted.  So are we approving 20 years?



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  We're approving ten years for



          11   Phase 1 and 20 years for Phase 2.



          12            MEMBER PALMER:  If they need to add the second



          13   circuit later, they get 20 years to add those second



          14   lines on.



          15            MEMBER LITTLE:  And what that says to your



          16   lawyers is that?  They have ten years to do the first



          17   circuit unless they apply for an exception, and then they



          18   have 20 years to do the second circuit, unless they apply



          19   for an extension.  That's what those words say?



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  I believe that's what they state.



          21   Do either of the lawyers disagree with how we have



          22   phrased this?



          23            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, I don't disagree.



          24   I do pause, and maybe that was the reason for the



          25   question from Member Little and Member Grinnell.
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           1            The "unless" parenthetical phrase may be



           2   unnecessary in this wording.  So that if you strike it



           3   from the word "unless" to the semicolon, it would read:



           4   This authorization to construct the Project shall expire



           5   ten (10) years from the date the Certificate is approved



           6   by the Arizona Corporation Commission; provided, however,



           7   that the authorization to construct the second circuit of



           8   the Project shall expire twenty (20) years from the date



           9   of this Certificate.



          10            And then you could put a period there, and it



          11   could just indicate that -- it can still be the



          12   semicolon, but there's two of these "provided."  Yeah,



          13   it probably should be a period after "Certificate."



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  And then "However"?



          15            MEMBER LITTLE:  Not even "However."  Just



          16   "Provided."



          17            MR. DERSTINE:  Provided that prior to either



          18   such expiration the Applicant or its assignees may



          19   request that the Commission extend this time limitation.



          20            MEMBER LITTLE:  I personally think that's more



          21   clear.



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  Do you want to move that we would



          23   amend?



          24            MEMBER LITTLE:  Yes.



          25            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Well, before we get to that
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           1   amendment, I'd like to go back to the document instead of



           2   my picture.



           3            Bring the document back up to the screen,



           4   please.  I'm seeing Ms. Little, which is fine, except I



           5   can't read the document.



           6            There we go.



           7            I guess --



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  Go ahead.



           9            MEMBER GRINNELL:  I guess we're asking for two



          10   ten-year approvals now, in essence.  So the authorized to



          11   construct a second circuit --



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  It's 20 years from right now.



          13            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Why don't we do 20 years



          14   altogether or say approve the second project for an



          15   additional ten years?



          16            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I personally feel this is fine.



          17   It's important that they get the first one in.  And they



          18   just didn't want to come back in for the second one.  So



          19   I think if we can make that clear, we're good.



          20            MEMBER GRINNELL:  I'm a little apprehensive to



          21   give 20 years out because of the constant change.  What



          22   if they decide to do solar instead of these power lines.



          23   I'm a little concerned because we don't know what's going



          24   to happen ten years from now, let alone 20.



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  If they decide that they're not
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           1   going to build the second circuit and they're going to



           2   replace it with battery storage or solar, they can file a



           3   motion to amend the CEC.  But I'd rather not have them



           4   come back to us if the second phase begins at year 8 and



           5   doesn't finished until year 15 or doesn't get started



           6   until year 11 and finishes at year 20.  I just think that



           7   that contingency is helpful.



           8            MEMBER PALMER:  I agree.



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Gentles.



          10            MEMBER GENTLES:  I agree, Mr. Chairman.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Ms. Little, do you move that we



          12   amend in accord with what was suggested by Mr. Derstine?



          13            MEMBER LITTLE:  I do.  And could we perhaps see



          14   that written in that form?



          15            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  Before we vote on it, we certainly



          17   will.



          18            But is there a second for the amendment to this



          19   section?



          20            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  Do we have -- okay.  It's seconded.



          22            And go ahead and take from line 6 through



          23   line -- what is now line 12 and make the amendments that



          24   were just proposed.  Add them to the document.



          25            MR. DERSTINE:  I think they are shown there
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           1   right now in No. 1 where it reads:   This authorization



           2   to construct the first circuit shall expire ten (10)



           3   years from the date of the Certificate -- from the



           4   date -- the date the Certificate is approved by the



           5   Arizona Corporation Commission and the authorization to



           6   construct the second circuit -- I don't know if "the



           7   project" is needed, but it can be there -- of the Project



           8   shall expire twenty (20) years from the date of this



           9   Certificate.  Provided, however, that prior to either



          10   such expiration the Applicant or it's assignee may



          11   request that the Commission extend this time limitation.



          12            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Mr. Chairman, isn't that



          13   Condition 2?



          14            MR. DERSTINE:  2 does cover the extension,



          15   correct.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  Do we need that last "provided" in



          17   there at all, then?



          18            MR. DERSTINE:  Probably does not need to be



          19   there.



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  Why don't we take it out because



          21   it's covered in the next section.



          22            Any disagreement with taking that "provided"



          23   out?



          24            All in favor of the amendment that we've just



          25   discussed please say "aye."
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           1            (A chorus of "ayes.")



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  Anyone opposed?



           3            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Opposed.



           4            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  It passes.



           5            Condition No. 2 --



           6            MEMBER PALMER:  Mr. Chairman, we voted on the



           7   amendment.  I move we approve Condition 1 as amended.



           8            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Second.



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  Any further discussion?



          10            (No response.)



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          12            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  Opposed?



          14            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Opposed.



          15            CHMN. KATZ:  The measure passes as amended.



          16            No. 2 begins -- that deals with extensions.



          17   Begins at line 19 on page 3 and runs through page 4, line



          18   3.



          19            Do we have a motion to approve?



          20            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Condition 2.



          21            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



          22            MEMBER GENTLES:  Second.



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          24            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  Anybody opposed?
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           1            (No response.)



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  Condition 3 is beginning on line --



           3   I believe it's 5 on page 4 and runs through line 20 of



           4   that page.  And take a look at it.



           5            And if we are in agreement with -- and it does



           6   have some changes from other counties because this was



           7   taken from another CEC.  The additions and



           8   strike-throughs are part of it.



           9            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Chairman, may we see line



          10   18, 19, and 20 just to confirm?  Oh, I guess line 17.



          11   Excuse me.



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  It's hard to tell.  A lot of this



          13   is between lines.



          14            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Motion to approve.



          15            CHMN. KATZ:  Any second?



          16            MEMBER FRENCH:  Second.



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  Any further discussion?



          18            (No response.)



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          20            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  The next section or condition is



          22   Condition No. 4 that begins at line 22 and ends on --



          23   well, it ends at the bottom of this page at line 26 or



          24   26 1/2.  And it deals with the applicant shall obtain all



          25   approvals and permits necessary to construct before they
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           1   begin construction of the project.



           2            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Mr. Chairman, should we add Luke



           3   Air Force Base?  Do they give a permit?



           4            MR. SIMPSON:  It's operational review and



           5   approval of the design.  I don't think there's an



           6   official permit the FAA would issue.



           7            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So would we need to put the FAA



           8   in there?



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  Well, we have the jurisdiction,



          10   including, but not limited to, the United States of



          11   American.



          12            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Okay.  That's fine.



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  In my experience in dealing with



          14   Luke, because I do military airport-related matters in



          15   reviewing general plans, I think we're fine as is.  They



          16   don't generally issue a permit, but they'll issue a



          17   letter.



          18            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Okay.  I move Condition 4.



          19            MEMBER DRAGO:  Second.



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



          21            (No response.)



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          23            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  All opposed.



          25            (No response.)
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  The matter passes.



           2            Moving on to page 5 --



           3            MEMBER GENTLES:  Mr. Chairman, just a point of



           4   reference.  Is that how Condition 4 is usually worded,



           5   with the exception, of course, of the specific



           6   municipalities?



           7            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Yes.  I believe it is.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  I believe it is.



           9            MEMBER GENTLES:  Okay.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  No. 5 is on page 5, lines 1 through



          11   4.



          12            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move condition 5.



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  Second?



          14            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



          15            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          16            MEMBER LITTLE:  Mr. Chairman, I have a question.



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  Certainly, Member Little.



          18            MEMBER LITTLE:  Does this -- and maybe it's a



          19   legal question.  I'm not sure.  Does this condition



          20   obligate the applicant to follow the recommendations that



          21   were made with regard to -- there were several species,



          22   the owl, the burrowing owl, and several species that the



          23   recommendation was that a survey be done before



          24   construction begins.



          25            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, Member Little, I do
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           1   read it as you have stated, that it does require that we



           2   consult with Arizona Game and Fish concerning the



           3   recommendations set forth in their letter to Burns &



           4   McDonnell concerning this project as well as consult with



           5   them on a going-forward basis and to comply with all of



           6   their guidance.



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  And that's also with respect to



           8   U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.



           9            Is there a motion to approve?



          10            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So moved.



          11            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          13            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  The condition is approved.



          15            Condition 6 requires the applicant design the



          16   project to incorporate reasonable measures to minimize



          17   electrocution of avian species.  And we're now dealing



          18   with guidelines that have been promulgated but not



          19   formally adopted yet as rules.



          20            But is there a motion to approve No. 6.



          21            MEMBER PALMER:  Move Condition 6.



          22            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Second.



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          24            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  Anybody opposed?
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           1            (No response.)



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  And that was lines 6 through 11 on



           3   page 5.



           4            Moving to line 12, Condition 7.  And it requires



           5   consultation with the State Historic Preservation Office



           6   regarding archeological and other cultural resources.



           7   And that's through line 18.



           8            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So moved, Condition No. 7.



           9            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          11            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  Anyone opposed?



          13            (No response.)



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  Condition 8.  The applicant shall



          15   comply with the notice and salvage requirements of the



          16   Arizona Native Plant Law.  And I won't read the rest of



          17   it.



          18            But do we have a motion?



          19            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Condition 8.



          20            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          22            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Anybody opposed?



          24            (No response.)



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  Moving on to line either 24 1/2 or
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           1   25, but it's No. 9.



           2            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Condition 9.



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  Any second?



           4            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Second.



           5            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



           6            (No response.)



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



           8            (A chorus of "ayes.")



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  Anybody opposed?



          10            (No response.)



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  I didn't mention that that



          12   condition goes on to page 6 through line 10.



          13            Moving on to Condition No. 10.  And it deals



          14   with the discovery of human or funerary remains or



          15   objects and the requirement to comply with A.R.S. 41-865



          16   and 41-844.



          17            MEMBER PALMER:  Move Condition 10.



          18            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Second.



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



          20            (No response.)



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          22            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Anyone opposed?



          24            (No response.)



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  The next provision begins at line
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           1   16, No. 11, that requires within 130 days of the decision



           2   the applicant is required to post signs to the extent



           3   authorized by law advising the public of the decision.



           4            And we did add not too long ago that the



           5   applicant at page 7, line No. 1 and 2, which is where the



           6   condition ends, that applicant shall make every



           7   reasonable effort to communicate the decision either



           8   approving or disapproving the certificate in digital



           9   media.



          10            Is there any motion to approve?



          11            MEMBER PALMER: So moved 11.



          12            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Second.



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  Any further discussion?



          14            (No response.)



          15            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          16            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  Anybody opposed?



          18            (No response.)



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  That's approved.



          20            And we'll move on to page 7, Condition No. 12.



          21            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Condition 12.



          22            MEMBER GENTLES:  Second.



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



          24            (No response.)



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.
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           1            (A chorus of "ayes.")



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  It goes on page 7, again, lines 4



           3   through 13.



           4            Condition No. 13.



           5            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Condition 13.



           6            MEMBER GENTLES:  Second.



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



           8            (No response.)



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          10            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Anybody opposed?



          12            (No response.)



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  Condition 13 is approved.



          14            Condition 14.



          15            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Condition 14.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  Second?



          17            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



          19            (No response.)



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          21            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  And that's through lines 16 through



          23   line 20.



          24            Line 21 is recommend Condition 15.



          25            MEMBER PALMER:  Move Condition 15.
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           1            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Second.



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



           3            (A chorus of "ayes.")



           4            CHMN. KATZ:  And I forgot to ask if there was



           5   any discussion, but anybody opposed?



           6            (No response.)



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  Condition 16 begins on line 26 or



           8   26 1/2.



           9            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Move Condition 16.



          10            MEMBER DRAGO:  Second.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  And that goes on to page 8, line 1.



          12            Is there a second?



          13            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Yes, there was, Len.



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  Any further discussion?



          15            (No response.)



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  The condition is approved.



          17            MEMBER HAMWAY:  We've got to take a vote.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  I'm getting old and senile.



          19            All in favor of Condition 16.



          20            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  Anybody opposed?



          22            (No response.)



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  The condition passes.



          24            Take your time to read Condition 17, which



          25   begins on page 8, line 3, through line 23 on that page.
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           1            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Condition 17.



           2            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion.



           4            (No response.)



           5            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



           6            (A chorus of "ayes.")



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  Anyone opposed.



           8            (No response.)



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  Condition 18 requires the



          10   applicant, APS, to submit the compliance letter annually



          11   identifying the progress of the project.  And it goes on.



          12   And that's on page 8, line 25 1/2, going through page



          13   No. 9, line No. 9.



          14            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Condition 18.



          15            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



          16            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Quick question, Mr. Chairman.



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  Sure.



          18            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Somebody said earlier about



          19   Luke Air Force Base.  Wouldn't that be the Department of



          20   Defense or even the State Department would be included in



          21   all these?  Because they are an interested party, to say



          22   the least.  Is that necessary for these, or is this just



          23   a state document again?



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  Any comment from counsel?  I don't



          25   know that it hurts us to include Luke Air Force Base.
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           1   The state statutes that I regularly deal with just



           2   require us to notify the affected military facility and



           3   not the Department of Defense.  But I don't know whether



           4   counsel thinks it should be added or not.



           5            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, I would say that the



           6   requirement to comply with Luke's height limitations and



           7   concerns, as I understand it, is enforced by the Federal



           8   Aviation Administration, and that requirements are



           9   covered by Condition No. 4.



          10            This provision deals with the compliance



          11   certificate and I guess notification.  Or I guess we're



          12   on -- are we on 19?



          13            MEMBER HAMWAY:  18.



          14            MR. DERSTINE:  And so I think if it's the



          15   Committee's desire that we somehow notify Luke Air Force



          16   Base in addition to these local jurisdictions, I think



          17   we're okay with that.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  Do I have a motion to amend to



          19   include Luke Air Force Base?



          20            MEMBER GRINNELL:  I'll make that motion.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Grinnell has moved.



          22            Any second?



          23            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Second.



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



          25            (No response.)
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor of the amendment.



           2            (A chorus of "ayes.")



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  Anyone opposed?



           4            (No response.)



           5            CHMN. KATZ:  We will add Luke Air Force Base to



           6   that condition on page 9.



           7            Condition 19?



           8            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Condition --



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  Oh wait.  We didn't vote on the --



          10   I think we voted on the amendment.



          11            MEMBER GRINNELL:  I move Condition 18 as



          12   amended.



          13            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Second.



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



          15            (No response.)



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          17            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  Anyone opposed?



          19            (No response.)



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  Now we'll move to Condition 19.



          21            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Condition 19.



          22            MEMBER DRAGO:  Second.



          23            MEMBER LITTLE:  Can I propose an amendment that



          24   we also add Luke Air Force Base to that one?



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  Was there a second to the motion to
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           1   amend?



           2            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Second.



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



           4            (No response.)



           5            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



           6            (A chorus of "ayes.")



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  We will add Luke Air Force Base as



           8   a party to get notified.



           9            And now do we have a motion --



          10            MEMBER PALMER:  Move 19 as amended.



          11            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Second.



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          13            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  Anybody opposed?



          15            (No response.)



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  Moving on.  The next section -- and



          17   that was Condition 19, lines 11 through 13 on page 9.



          18            We're now picking up at line 14 with Condition



          19   20 that deals with transfer or assignment of the



          20   certificate.



          21            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Condition 20.



          22            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Second.



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



          24            (No response.)



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.
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           1            (A chorus of "ayes.")



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  Anyone opposed?



           3            (No response.)



           4            CHMN. KATZ:  It passes.



           5            No. 21 is on line 18 through line 22 of page 9.



           6            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Condition 21.



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  Is there a second?



           8            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



          10            (No response.)



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          12            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  Anybody posed?



          14            (No response.)



          15            CHMN. KATZ:  Condition 22 begins at line I guess



          16   23 1/2 or 24.  That runs to line 28 on page 9 or the



          17   bottom of page 9.  And I know that our lines and page



          18   numbers may have been changed on the amended document



          19   Chairman No. 2.



          20            But do we have a motion to approve Condition 22?



          21            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So moved.



          22            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Discussion?



          24            (No response.)



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.
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           1            (A chorus of "ayes.")



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  And that runs through page 10, line



           3   4.



           4            MEMBER LITTLE:  Mr. Chairman.



           5            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes.



           6            MEMBER LITTLE:  I don't see anything in there



           7   about the area that is being investigated for



           8   undergrounding.  I don't see any --



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  That's the next condition.



          10            MEMBER LITTLE:  It's not on the one on my



          11   screen.  I apologize.



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  While we could have done it



          13   differently, this is what was stipulated or agreed to



          14   between Arizona Public Service and the City of Peoria.



          15            Is that substantially correct, Counsel?



          16            MR. GOLESTAN:  That's correct, Mr. Chairman,



          17   with one small grammatical correction, but, yes, it has



          18   been stipulated to in substance.



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  And do you agree, Mr. Golestan?



          20            MR. GOLESTAN:  Yes.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  And where is the grammatical error



          22   in Condition No. -- this would be No. 23.



          23            MR. GOLESTAN:  Line 10 says "constructed."



          24   Should be "construed" after "current."



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  I don't think we need a formal
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           1   motion to amend.  That's just a grammatical error.  So



           2   please read it.  And line 10, "construed" rather than



           3   "constructed."



           4            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Condition 23.



           5            CHMN. KATZ:  Any second?



           6            MEMBER DRAGO:  Second.



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



           8            (No response.)



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          10            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Anyone opposed?



          12            (No response.)



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  We now have some Findings of Fact



          14   and Conclusions of Law that begin on page 10, line 14.



          15            And Finding of Fact or Conclusion of Law No. 1:



          16   The Project aids the state and the southwest region of



          17   the United States in meeting the need for an adequate,



          18   economical, and reliable supply of renewable electric



          19   power.



          20            MEMBER PALMER:  Move Finding of Fact and



          21   Conclusion of Law 1.



          22            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Second.



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



          24            (No response.)



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.
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           1            (A chorus of "ayes.")



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  The second Finding is the project



           3   aids the state preserving a safe and reliable electric



           4   transmission system.



           5            Motion?



           6            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Fact and Conclusion of



           7   Law No. 2.



           8            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  It's been seconded.



          10            Any discussion?



          11            (No response.)



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          13            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  Anyone opposed?



          15            (No response.)



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  The condition is approved.



          17            Finding of Fact and Conclusion of Law No. 3 on



          18   page 10, line 21 through 22.



          19            Do we have a motion?



          20            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Finding of Fact No. 3.



          21            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



          23            (No response.)



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          25            (A chorus of "ayes.")
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Anybody opposed?



           2            (No response.)



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  It passes.



           4            No. 4 is at line 23 through line 25.



           5            MEMBER PALMER:  Move Finding of Fact and



           6   Conclusion 4.



           7            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Second.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



           9            (No response.)



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          11            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  Anybody opposed?



          13            (No response.)



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  Finding of Fact and Conclusion of



          15   Law No. 5:  The conditions placed on the Project in the



          16   Certificate resolve matters concerning balancing the need



          17   for the Project with its impact on the environmental and



          18   ecology and so forth.



          19            Please read it and if we could have a motion.



          20            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Finding of Fact No. 5.



          21            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



          23            (No response.)



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          25            (A chorus of "ayes.")
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  And the condition does go on to



           2   page 11 through line 2.



           3            And picking up at line 3, No. 6, Finding of Fact



           4   and Conclusion of Law.  The Project is in the public



           5   interest.



           6            And when you're comfortable.



           7            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move Finding of Fact No. 6.



           8            MEMBER PALMER:  Second.



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor.



          10            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Now what we're going to do is take



          12   a look at page No. 2, lines 17 through 22.  And I'll read



          13   that for the record.



          14            At the conclusion of the hearing, the Committee,



          15   after considering the (i) Application, (ii) evidence,



          16   testimony and exhibits presented by Applicant and



          17   intervenors, and (iii) comments of the public, and being



          18   advised of the legal requirements of Arizona Revised



          19   Statutes Section 40-360 through Section 40-360.13, upon



          20   motion duly made and seconded.



          21            And we're now going to take a vote on this.  And



          22   it will be a roll call vote.  And we're going to need a



          23   motion to -- I think we have a motion right now.  I think



          24   we need a vote.  And then we approve.  Any disagreement?



          25            Okay.  What I'd like to do is if you are going





                  COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440



                  www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ

�



                       LS CASE NO. 198      VOLUME III      03/02/2022

                                                                      454





           1   to be voting in favor of this CEC as it's currently



           2   written with whatever amendments we've agreed to and I



           3   would just ask -- I'm going to start with Mr. Drago.



           4            How do you vote on this matter?



           5            MEMBER DRAGO:  I vote aye.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Ms. Hamway.



           7            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I vote aye.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Palmer.



           9            MEMBER PALMER:  I vote aye and would just like



          10   to commend the applicant on a good application.  These



          11   are never easy, and there are always mitigating



          12   circumstances.  And this is important.  And I appreciate



          13   the fact that they look far enough out ahead to keep



          14   things moving.  We can't wait until the 11th hour to do



          15   these.  And I appreciate their foresight and preparation



          16   in getting these ready.



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. French.



          18            MEMBER FRENCH:  I vote aye.



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  And Mr. Grinnell.



          20            MEMBER GRINNELL:  I'm sorry.  I was on mute.



          21            For me, I guess it's getting a little easier to



          22   read information beforehand and follow it a lot easier



          23   without having 20 letters arrive with changes and



          24   additions and everything else.



          25            I'm not comfortable with the 10-year extension
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           1   or 20-year part.  But overall, it's a good plan.  And I



           2   will leave it to Mr. Gentles to opine on the public



           3   relations since that's his bailiwick.



           4            But thank you to all the people present.



           5            I vote aye.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.



           7            Member Little.



           8            MEMBER LITTLE:  I vote aye.



           9            I would like to second what Mr. Drago said about



          10   the application.  And I would also like to encourage the



          11   applicant and the City of Peoria to do everything



          12   possible to get that section of the line underground.  I



          13   know that it's very expensive to underground transmission



          14   lines of this voltage.  However, particularly when we



          15   have a customer who is willing to bear the cost, I think



          16   that it's important that we recognize the needs of the



          17   public in these areas.



          18            Thank you.



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  And you vote how again?  Aye.



          20            MEMBER LITTLE:  Aye.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  And last, but not least,



          22   Mr. Gentles.



          23            MEMBER GENTLES:  I vote aye.



          24            And I would just like to say that I do



          25   appreciate the applicant's forward thinking and their
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           1   work ahead of time with the public to get their input.



           2   And while we realize there are some people that say they



           3   weren't notified or didn't receive the notification, I'm



           4   comfortable with the process that they followed to make



           5   sure that notification was appropriate.



           6            And so while I do compliment the applicant, I



           7   don't want people to think I'm going soft or anything.



           8   I'm going to keep a sharp eye on how this public outreach



           9   works.  But in this case, I think they did a fairly



          10   decent job.



          11            With that, I vote aye.



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  And I vote aye.



          13            And I do want to thank the lawyers for their



          14   organized preparation.  And I trust that both the City of



          15   Peoria and APS will continue to negotiate in good faith



          16   to determine the best route in the subject area in



          17   dispute as to whether it should be undergrounded or its



          18   location or otherwise modified.



          19            And that being said, as I said, I vote aye.



          20            And I think there are eight of us.  And the vote



          21   was eight in favor and zero opposed.



          22            Is there anything further that we need to take



          23   care of before we recess this proceeding?



          24            (No response.)



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  Hearing nothing, I want to thank
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           1   everybody for their participation.



           2            Our next hearing for the Committee Members is I



           3   believe on March the 14th in Florence, Arizona.  And I'm



           4   encouraging everybody, if they can, to be physically



           5   present if you are able.  I understand some of you, it's



           6   a hardship or a long-distance trip, and I understand



           7   that.



           8            Anyway, I appreciate all of you.



           9            And the last thing I would ask is we need APS to



          10   make sure that this CEC, as approved and edited, gets



          11   sent to Tod.  Tod and I will probably meet tomorrow or on



          12   Friday, and I'll make sure it's in proper order and sign



          13   off on it, and we'll get it back to you.



          14            Thank you all.



          15            (The hearing concluded at 1:49 p.m.)
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           1   STATE OF ARIZONA       )

                                      )

           2   COUNTY OF MARICOPA     )



           3        BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were

               taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,

           4   true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to

               the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings

           5   were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced

               to print under my direction.

           6

                    I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of the

           7   parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the

               outcome hereof.

           8

                    I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical

           9   obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and

               ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix,

          10   Arizona, this 6th day of March, 2022.
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                          ___________________________________

          14                      CAROLYN T. SULLIVAN

                               Arizona Certified Reporter

          15                           No. 50528
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          17

                    I CERTIFY that COASH & COASH, INC., has complied

          18   with the ethical obligations set forth in

               ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).

          19
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          23

                           __________________________________

          24                      COASH & COASH, INC.

                                Arizona Registered Firm

          25                           No. R1036
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